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INDIABULLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CIN: L65922DL2005PLC136029
Registered Office: 5" Floor, Building No. 27, KG Marg, Connaught Place, New Delhi — 110 001
Email: homeloans@indiabulls.com, Tel: 011-43532950, Fax: 011-43532947, Website: www.indiabullshomeloans.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the SEVENTEENTH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING of the members of INDIABULLS
HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED will be held on Monday,
September 26, 2022 at 4:00 P.M. IST (“AGM”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”),
to seek the consent of the shareholders of the Company
(“Members”), on the agenda herein below through remote
electronic voting (“E-voting”).

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited standalone and
consolidated financial statements of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, and Reports of the Board’s and Auditors
thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sachin Chaudhary
(DIN: 02016992), a Whole Time Director & Key Managerial
Personnel, designated as Executive Director & Chief
Operating Officer, who retires by rotation as a director and
being eligible, offers himself for re- appointment.

3. To fix the annual remuneration of Messrs S.N. Dhawan
& CO LLP (member firm of Mazars, an international
audit, tax and advisory firm based in France), Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000050N/N500045
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India), Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company at X
1,65,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Sixty Five Lacs only)
plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses incurred by such auditor, in connection with the
audit of the accounts of the Company for the financial
year 2022- 23 and for such years thereafter till the same
is revised, subject to fulfillment of the eligibility norms
by such Joint Statutory Auditors in each financial year of
their appointment [During the financial year 2021-22,
from November 15, 2021, to end of the fiscal year [four
and half months], the Company had paid % 1,20,00,000/-
(Rupees One Crore Twenty Lacs only) plus applicable taxes
and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses to the said
firm, against the shareholders’ existing authorization for
payment of X 1,50,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Fifty Lacs
only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of
pocket expenses for financial year 2021-22].

4. To fix the annual remuneration of Messrs Arora &
Choudhary Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 003870N issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India), Joint Statutory Auditors
of the Company at X 66,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Six Lacs
only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of
pocket expenses incurred by such auditor, in connection

with the audit of the accounts of the Company for the
financial year 2022- 23 and for such years thereafter till
the same is revised, subject to fulfillment of the eligibility
norms by such Joint Statutory Auditors in each financial
year of their appointment [During the financial year
2021-22, from November 15, 2021, to end of the fiscal
year [four and half months], the Company had paid
% 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lacs only) plus applicable taxes
and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses to the said
firm, against the shareholders’ existing authorization for
payment of X 60,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Lacs only) plus
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses for financial year 2021-22].

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Item No 5:

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution,
as a Special Resolution, for the re-appointment of Mr. Gagan
Banga (DIN: 00010894) as a Whole-Time Director & Key
Managerial Personnel and designated as Vice — Chairman,
Managing Director & CEO of the Company, for a further period
of five years, with effect from March 19, 2023:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196,
203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the applicable rules made thereunder (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the
time being in force), Articles of Association of the Company,
consent of the members, be and is hereby accorded to the re-
appointment of Mr. Gagan Banga (DIN: 00010894) as a Whole-
Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel, designated as
Vice-Chairman, Managing Director & CEO of the Company, for
a further period of five years, w.e.f. March 19, 2023.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 197, 198, Schedule V and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modifications or
re-enactments thereof for the time being in force), Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Gagan Banga, during his
tenure of five years, w.e.f. March 19, 2023, as Vice-Chairman,
Managing Director & CEO of the Company, shall be paid a
remuneration, subject to an upward revision of upto 15% on
annual basis, as set out in the explanatory statement pursuant
to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, annexed to this
Notice, subject to however that the remuneration to be paid
shall be as recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board, from time to time
during his said tenure, which shall be within the overall ceiling
of remuneration prescribed in the Act read with Schedule V and
applicable Rules thereto, as amended from time to time.”
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Item No. 6:

To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution,
as a Special Resolution, for the re-appointment of Mr. Ashwini
Omprakash Kumar (DIN: 03341114) as a Whole-Time Director
& Key Managerial Personnel and designated as Deputy
Managing Director of the Company, for a further period of five
years, with effect from March 19, 2023:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196,
203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the applicable rules made thereunder (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof for the
time being in force), Articles of Association of the Company,
consent of the members, be and is hereby accorded to the re-
appointment of Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar (DIN: 03341114)
as a Whole-Time Director & Key Managerial Personnel and
designated as Deputy Managing Director of the Company, for a
further period of five years, w.e.f. March 19, 2023.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 197, 198, Schedule V and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modifications or
re-enactments thereof for the time being in force), Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Ashwini Omprakash
Kumar, during his tenure of five years, w.e.f. March 19, 2023,
as Deputy Managing Director of the Company, shall be paid a
remuneration, subject to an upward revision of upto 15% on
annual basis, as set out in the explanatory statement pursuant
to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, annexed to this
Notice, subject to however that the remuneration to be paid
shall be as recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board, from time to time
during his said tenure, which shall be within the overall ceiling
of remuneration prescribed in the Act read with Schedule V and
applicable Rules thereto, as amended from time to time.”

Item No. 7:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as
a Special Resolution, for issue of Non-Convertible Debentures,
not in the nature of equity shares, of the Company, on private
placement basis, upto the existing authorization of X 50,000
Crores:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules framed thereunder, the Housing Finance
Companies lIssuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on a
Private Placement Basis (NHB) Directions, 2014 and Master
Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, the SEBI (Issue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 2021, the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
as may be amended from time to time, and subject to other
applicable regulations/ guidelines, consent of the members
of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors of the Company (hereinafter called the “Board”,
which term shall be deemed to include any committee(s)
constituted/to be constituted by the Board to exercise its
powers conferred by this resolution) to issue Redeemable
Non-Convertible Debentures, secured or unsecured (“NCDs”)
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and/or Bonds (issuance of NCDs and/or Bonds shall not be
in the nature of equity shares), which may or may not be
classified as being Tier Il capital under the provisions of the
Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions 2010, for cash,
either at par or premium or discount to the face value, for
an aggregate amount not exceeding X 50,000 Crore (Rupees
Fifty Thousand Crore only) under one or more shelf disclosure
documents and/or under one or more letters of offer and/or
under one or more Placement Memorandum, as may be issued
by the Company, and in one or more series, during a period
of one year commencing from the date of this Annual General
Meeting, on private placement basis, from time to time, such
that the aggregate amount to be raised through issue of such
NCDs and/or Bonds (issuance of NCDs and/or Bonds shall not
be in the nature of equity shares), shall not exceed X 50,000
Crore (Rupees Fifty Thousand Crore only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized
and empowered to arrange or settle the terms and conditions
on which all such monies are to be borrowed, from time to time,
as to interest, repayment, security or otherwise howsoever as
it may think fit and to do all such other acts, deeds and things,
as it may deem necessary, in its absolute discretion, including
to execute all such agreements, documents, instruments and
writings as may be required and to delegate all or any of its
powers herein conferred, to any Committee of Directors and /
or Directors and / or officers of the Company, to give effect to
the authority of this resolution.”

Item No. 8:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as a Special Resolution, for the payment of remuneration/
commission/ incentives to Non-Executive Directors:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuantto the provisions of Sections 197, 198
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder, the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including
any amendments, modifications, variations or re-enactment
thereof, the Company be and is hereby authorized to pay to its
non- executive directors (i.e. directors of the Company other
than its Managing Director and/or the Whole-time Directors),
in addition to sitting fees and/ or reimbursement of expenses
for attending the meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Company and/or Committees thereof (Board), subject to an
overall ceiling of 1% (one percent) of the net profits of the
Company, for each financial year, as computed in the manner
laid down in Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, or any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, to any one
or more directors, every year for a period of three years with
effect from April 1, 2023, in such manner, as the Board may,
from time to time, determine.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Sd/-

Amit Jain

Place: Gurugram Company Secretary
Date: August 20, 2022 FCS: 5433



NOTES:

1.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, in respect of the business as set out in the
AGM Notice is annexed hereto.

Considering the present COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular dated
May 5, 2022, read together with circulars dated April 8,
2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020 and January 13, 2021
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted
convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM” /
“Meeting” / “e-AGM”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”)
or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the
physical presence of the members at a common venue.
In accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the AGM of the
Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The deemed
venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the
Company.

The Company has made arrangements through KFin
Technologies Limited (“KFin” / “KFintech”), Registrars
and Transfer Agents, to provide VC / OAVM facility for
conducting the AGM through VC / OAVM. The Members
can join the AGM 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by
following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 the Companies
Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM
is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on
his/ her behalf and the Proxy need not be a Member of
the Company. However, since this AGM is being held
pursuant to the applicable MCA Circulars as mentioned
hereinabove, through VC / OAVM, physical attendance
of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of Proxies by the Members will not
be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and
Attendance Slip are not annexed to this AGM Notice.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the route
map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto.

Corporate Members intending to depute their authorized
representatives to attend the Meeting through VC / OVAM
are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy
of the Board Resolution together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory (ies) who are
authorized to attend and vote at the Meeting on their behalf.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such
joint holder who is higher in order of names will be entitled
to vote.

The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel
and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts
or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested,
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and all documents

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Notice

referred to in the Notice and Secretarial Auditors
certificate, on implementation of ESOP Scheme(s) of the
Company in compliance with applicable SEBI regulations
and all related approvals, are available for inspection by
the Members electronically from the date of circulation of
this Notice up to the date of the 17" AGM.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as
amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred
only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019,
except in case of request received for transmission or
transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate
all risks associated with physical shares and for ease
of portfolio management, members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider converting their
holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the
Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agent M/s
KFin Technologies Limited for assistance in this regard.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the
Company shall remain closed from Friday, September 23,
2022 to Monday, September 26, 2022 (both days inclusive)
for the purpose of 17t AGM of the Company.

The Company has appointed Mr. Nishant Mittal,
(Membership No. 553860), Proprietor of M/s. N Mittal
& Associates, Practicing Chartered Accountant, as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e — voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

Members holding shares in single name are advised to avail
the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them
pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Members holding shares in physical form
desiring to avail this facility may send their nomination in
the prescribed Form No. SH-13 duly filled in to the RTA of
the Company. Members holding shares in electronic mode
may contact their respective DPs for availing this facility.

SEBI has mandated submission of Permanent Account
Number (“PAN”) by every participant in the securities
market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to provide their PAN details to their
respective DPs with whom they are maintaining their
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form
can submit their PAN details to the RTA.

Members of the Company are requested to note that as
per the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act,
2013, dividends not en-cashed/ claimed by the Members
of the Company, within a period of 7 (seven) years from
the date of declaration of dividend, shall be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) by the
Company. Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend of X 0.65
Crore pertaining to the Financial Year 2013-14 and 2014-
15 got transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund after giving due notice to the members. Also, the
Company has transferred 3,100 equity shares pertaining
to the Financial Year 2013-14 and 2014-15 in respect of
which dividend has not been received or claimed for seven
consecutive years to Demat Account of IEPF Authority.
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15.

16.

04

The Members, whose unclaimed dividends /shares have
been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making
an online application to the IEPF Authority in web Form
No. IEPF — 5 available on www.iepf.gov.in along with
requisite fees as decided by the Authority from time to
time. Members/claimants can file only one consolidated
claim in a Financial Year as per IEPF Rules. The Company
and IEPF Authority shall deal with the application in the
manner provided in IEPF Rules.

The details of Dividends declared and paid by the Company
and the corresponding tentative due dates for transfer
of such un — cashed / un — claimed dividend to IEPF are
provided on the website of the Company at https://www.
indiabullshomeloans.com.

Members who have not encashed / claimed the dividend
warrant(s) so far in respect of the those Financial Years are,
therefore, requested to make their claims to the RTA of the
Company well in advance of the above tentative dates.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority Rules, 2016 (IEPF Rules), all
shares on which dividend has not been paid or claimed
for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred
to an IEPF suspense account (in the name of the Company)
within 30 (thirty) days of such shares becoming due for
transfer to the Fund.

It is in the Members interest to claim any un-cashed
dividends and for future, opt for Electronic Clearing Service,
so that dividends paid by the Company are credited to the
Members account on time.

The Company for claiming the dividend for the aforesaid
years. The details of the unclaimed dividends are
available on the Company’s website at https://www.
indiabullshomeloans.com/ and Ministry of Corporate
Affairs at www.mca.gov.in.

In accordance with, the General Circular No. 2/2022 dated
May 05, 2022 issued by MCA, read with Circulars No.
14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and No. 02/2021
dated January 13,2021, owing to the difficulties involved in
dispatching of physical copies of the financial statements
(including Report of Board of Directors, Auditor’s report
or other documents required to be attached therewith),
such statements including the Notice of AGM are being
sent in electronic mode to Members whose e-mail
address is registered with the Company or the Depository
Participant(s).

As physical copies of the Annual Report 2021 — 22 will
not be sent by the modes permitted under Companies
Act, 2013, the Annual Report and 17" AGM Notice are
available on the Company’s website at https://www.
indiabullshomeloans.com/ and websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited at https://www.bseindia.com and
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17.

18.

www.nseindia.com respectively and on the website
of KFintech at https://evoting.kfintech.com, for those
members whose email ids are not registered with the
Company / KFin.

Rule 18 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 requires a company to
provide advance opportunity at least once in a Financial
Year to the Members to register his / her e-mail Ids
and any changes therein. In accordance with the said
requirements, we request the Members who do not have
their e-mail Ids registered, get the same registered with
the Company or changes therein by submitting a duly
filled-in ‘E-communication Registration Form’ appended to
this 17" AGM Notice as well as available on the Company’s
website at https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/
investor-relations/agm by the name “E-Communication
Registration Form”. Alternatively, those shareholders who
have not yet registered their email address are requested
to get their email addresses registered with their DP or
RTA at the link https://ris.kfintech.com/clientservices/
mobilereg/mobileemailreg.aspx for electronic and Physical
folios respectively.

Members desiring any information with regard to financial
statements are requested to write to the Company at an
early date so as to enable the management to keep the
information ready.

PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

i. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108
of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as
amended from time to time, Regulation 44 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations andin terms of SEBI vide circularno.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December
9, 2020 in relation to e-Voting Facility Provided by
Listed Entities, the Members are provided with the
facility to cast their vote electronically, through the
e-Voting services provided by KFintech, on all the
resolutions set forth in this Notice. The instructions
for e-Voting are given herein below.

ii. However, in pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/ HO/
CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020
on “e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”,
e-Voting process has been enabled to all the
individual demat account holders, by way of single
login credential, through their demat accounts /
websites of Depositories / DPs in order to increase the
efficiency of the voting process.

iii. Individual demat account holders would be able
to cast their vote without having to register again
with the e-Voting service provider (ESP) thereby not
only facilitating seamless authentication but also
ease and convenience of participating in e-Voting
process. Shareholders are advised to update their
mobile number and e-mail ID with their DPs to access
e-Voting facility.
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Vi.

Vii.

Notice

The remote e-Voting period commences Friday, September 23,2022 at 10.00 A.M. (IST) and ends on Sunday, September
25, 2022 at 5.00 P.M. (IST).

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company
as on the cut-off date, being Monday, September 19, 2022.

Any person holding shares in physical form and non- individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company and
becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain
the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@Kfintech.com. However, if he / she is already registered with
KFintech for remote e-Voting then he /she can use his / her existing User ID and password for casting the vote.

In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and who acquires shares of the Company and
becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date may follow steps
mentioned below under “Login method for remote e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode”.

The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting and e-AGM are explained herein below:
Step 1: Access to Depositories e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2: Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical and non- individual
shareholders in demat mode.

Step 3: Access to join virtual meetings (e-AGM) of the Company on KFin system to participate e-AGM and vote at the
AGM.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

1)

Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
NSDL

User already registered for IDeAS facility:
1. Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com
2. Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” under ‘IDeAS’ section.

3. On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successful authentication,
click on “Access to e-Voting”

4. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to
e-Voting service provider website for casting the vote during the remote e-Voting
period.

Il.  User not registered for IDeAS e-Services:
1. Toregister click on link : https://eservices.nsdl.com

2. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Proceed with completing the required fields.

4. Follow steps given in point |

Alternatively by directly accessing the e-Voting website of NSDL
1. Open URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
2. Click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen.

4. Post successful authentication, you will requested to select the name of the company
and the e-Voting Service Provider name, i.e.KFintech.

5. On successful selection, you will be redirected to KFintech e-Voting page for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding | Existing user who have opted for Easi / Easiest
securities in demat mode with
CDSL

1. Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or URL: www.cdslindia.com
2. Click on New System Myeasi

3. Login with your registered user id and password.

4

The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of ESP i.e. KFintech
e-Voting portal.

5. Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast your vote.
User not registered for Easi/Easiest

1. Option to register is available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/
EasiRegistration

2. Proceed with completing the required fields.

3. Follow the steps given in point 1
Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website of CDSL

1. Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com
2. ll. Provide your demat Account Number and PAN No.

3. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded
in the demat Account.

4. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP, i.e
KFintech where the e- Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholder login|1. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your DP

through their demat accounts registered with NSDL /CDSL for e-Voting facility.

/ Website of Depository

Participant

2. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.

3. Click on options available against company name or e-Voting service provider —
Kfintech and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of KFintech for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period without any further authentication.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forgot user ID and Forgot
Password option available at respective websites. Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for
any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Securities held with NSDL Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Securities held with CDSL Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or contact at 022 — 23058738 or 022 — 23058542 — 43
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Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:

)

Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other
than Individual’s shareholders holding securities in
demat mode and shareholders holding securities in
physical mode.

A.

Members whose email IDs are registered with
the Company/ Depository Participants (s), will
receive an email from KFintech which will include
details of E-Voting Event Number (EVEN), USER
ID and password. They will have to follow the
following process:

Launch internet browser by typing the URL:
https://evoting.kfintech.com/

Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and
password). In case of physical folio, User ID will
be EVEN (E-Voting Event Number) xxxx, followed
by folio number. In case of Demat account, User
ID will be your DP ID and Client ID. However, if
you are already registered with KFintech for
e-voting, you can use your existing User ID and
password for casting the vote.

After entering these details appropriately, click
on “LOGIN”.

You will now reach password change Menu
wherein you are required to mandatorily change
your password. The new password shall comprise
of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper
case (A- Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric
value (0-9) and a special character (@,#,S, etc.,).
The system will prompt you to change your
password and update your contact details like
mobile number, email ID etc. on first login. You
may also enter a secret question and answer of
your choice to retrieve your password in case you
forget it. It is strongly recommended that you do
not share your password with any other person
and that you take utmost care to keep your
password confidential.

You need to login again with the new credentials.

On successful login, the system will prompt you
to select the “EVEN” i.e., ‘Indiabulls Housing
Finance Limited- AGM” and click on “Submit”

On the voting page, enter the number of shares
(which represents the number of votes) as
on the Cut-off Date under “FOR/AGAINST” or
alternatively, you may partially enter any number
in “FOR” and partially “AGAINST” but the total
number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken together shall
not exceed your total shareholding as mentioned
herein above. You may also choose the option
ABSTAIN. If the Member does not indicate
either “FOR” or “AGAINST” it will be treated
as “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be

Notice

counted under either head.

Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts
shall choose the voting process separately for
each folio/ demat accounts.

Voting has to be done for each item of the notice
separately. In case you do not desire to cast your
vote on any specific item, it will be treated as
abstained.

You may then cast your vote by selecting an
appropriate option and click on “Submit”.

A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK”
to confirm else “CANCEL’ to modify. Once you
have voted on the resolution (s), you will not be
allowed to modify your vote. During the voting
period, Members can login any number of times
till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

Corporate / Institutional Members (i.e. other
than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also required
to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format)
of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter etc.,
authorizing its representative to attend the
AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to
cast its vote through remote e-voting. Together
with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly
authorised representative(s), to the Scrutinizer
at email id nishantmittal1995@gmail.com
with a copy marked to evoting@kfintech.com.
The scanned image of the above-mentioned
documents should be in the naming format
“Corporate Name_Even No.”

Members whose email IDs are not registered with
the Company / Depository Participants(s), and
consequently the Annual Report, Notice of AGM
and e-voting instructions cannot be serviced, will
have to follow the following process:

Members who have not registered their email
address and in consequence the Annual Report,
Notice of AGM and e-voting instructions cannot
be serviced, may temporarily get their email
address and mobile number provided by KFintech,
by accessing the link: https:// ris.kfintech.com/
clientservices/mobilereg/mobileemailreg.aspx.
Members are requested to follow the process as
guided to capture the email address and mobile
number for sending the soft copy of the notice
and e-voting instructions along with the User ID
and Password. In case of any queries, member
may write to einward.ris@kfintech.com.

Alternatively, member may send an e-mail
request at the email id einward.ris@kfintech.
com along with scanned copy of the signed copy
of the request letter providing the email address,
mobile number, self-attested PAN copy and Client
Master copy in case of electronic folio and copy
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of share certificate in case of physical folio for
sending the Annual report, Notice of AGM and
the e-voting instructions.

After receiving the e-voting instructions, please
follow all steps above to cast your vote by
electronic means.

Details on Step 3 are mentioned below:

1)

Instructions for all the shareholders, including
Individual, other than Individual and Physical, for
attending the AGM of the Company through VC/
OAVM and e-Voting during the meeting.

i.  Member will be provided with a facility to attend
the AGM through VC / OAVM platform provided
by KFintech. Members may access the same
at https://emeetings.kfintech.com/ by using
the e-voting login credentials provided in the
email received from the Company / KFintech.
After logging in, click on the Video Conference
tab and select the EVEN of the Company. Click
on the video symbol and accept the meeting
etiquettes to join the meeting. Please note that
the members who do not have the User ID and
Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the
User ID and Password may retrieve the same
by following the remote e-Voting instructions
mentioned above.

ii. Facility for joining AGM though VC / OAVM
shall open at least 15 minutes before the
commencement of the Meeting.

iii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting
through Laptops / Desktops with Google Chrome,
Safari, Internet Explorer, Microsoft Edge, Mozilla
Firefox 22.

iv. Members will be required to grant access to
the webcam to enable VC / OAVM. Further,
Members connecting from Mobile Devices or
Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile
Hotspot may experience Audio / Video loss due
to fluctuation in their respective network. It is
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

As the AGM is being conducted through VC /
OAVM, for the smooth conduct of proceedings of
the AGM, Members are encouraged to express
their views / send their queries in advance
mentioning their name, demat account number
/ folio number, email id, mobile number at
investor.relations@indiabulls.com Questions /
queries received by the Company till September
24, 2022 shall only be considered and responded
during the AGM.

The Members who have not cast their vote

ANNUAL REPORT

through remote e-voting shall be eligible to cast
their vote through e-voting system available
during the AGM. E-voting during the AGM s
integrated with the VC / OAVM platform. The
Members may click on the voting icon displayed
on the screen to cast their votes.

A Member can opt for only single mode of voting
i.e., through Remote e-voting or voting at the
AGM. If a Member casts votes by both modes,
then voting done through Remote e-voting shall
prevail and vote at the AGM shall be treated as
invalid.

Facility of joining the AGM through VC / OAVM
shall be available for atleast 2000 members on
first come first served basis.

Institutional Members are encouraged to attend
and vote at the AGM through VC / OAVM.

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS

Speaker Registration: The Members who wish to speak
during the meeting may register themselves as speakers
for the AGM to express their views. They can visit https://
emeetings.kfintech.com and login through the user id and
password provided in the mail received from Kfintech. On
successful login, select ‘Speaker Registration’ which will
opened from September 23, 2022 to September 24, 2022.
Members shall be provided a ‘queue number’ before the
meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the
speakers at the AGM to only those Members who have
registered themselves, depending on the availability of
time for the AGM.

Post your Question: The Members who wish to post their
questions prior to the meeting can do the same by visiting
https://emeetings.kfintech.com. Please login through the
user id and password provided in the mail received from
Kfintech. On successful login, select ‘Post Your Question’
option which will opened from September 23, 2022 to
September 24, 2022.

In case of any query and / or grievance, in respect of
voting by electronic means, Members may refer to the
Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting
user manual available at the download section of https://
evoting.kfintech.com (KFintech Website) or contact Mr.
PSRCH Murthy, Sr. Manager — RIS, at evoting@kfintech.
com or call KFintech’s toll free No. 1-800-309-4001 for any
further clarifications.

The Members, whose names appear in the Register
of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on Monday,
September 19, 2022, being the cut-off date, are entitled to
vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. A person
who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat
this Notice for information purposes only. Once the vote
on a resolution(s) is cast by the Member, the Member shall
not be allowed to change it subsequently.
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VI.

VII.

This AGM Notice is being sent to all the Members, whose
names appear in the Register of Members/ List of Beneficial
Owners as received from National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) / Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL) as on August 26, 2022. In case a person has
become a Member of the Company after dispatch of AGM
Notice but on or before the cut-off date for E-voting, he/
she may obtain the User ID and Password in the manner as
mentioned below:

i. If the mobile number of the member is registered
against Folio No./ DP ID Client ID, the member
may send SMS: MYEPWD <space> E-Voting Event
Number+Folio No. or DP ID Client ID to 9212993399

1. Example for NSDL:

MYEPWD <SPACE> IN12345612345678
2. Example for CDSL:

MYEPWD <SPACE> 1402345612345678
3. Example for Physical:

MYEPWD <SPACE> XXXX1234567890

ii. If e-mail address or mobile number of the member
is registered against Folio No. / DP ID Client ID, then
on the home page of https://evoting.kfintech.com/ ,
the member may click “Forgot Password” and enter
Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to generate a
password.

Members who may require any technical assistance
or support before or during the AGM are requested to
contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-309-4001
or write to them at evoting@kfintech.com.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion
of AGM, count the votes cast at the AGM and thereafter,
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the
presence of at least two witnesses, who are not in the
employment of the Company. The Scrutinizer shall submit
a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast
in favour of or against, if any, within the prescribed time
limit after the conclusion of the AGM to the Chairman or
a person authorised by him. The Chairman or any other
person authorised by him shall declare the result of the
voting forthwith.

The resolution(s) will be deemed to be passed on the AGM
date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in
favour of the resolution(s). The Results declared along with
the Scrutinizer’s Report(s) will be available on the website
of the Company at https://www.indiabullshomeloans.
com/ and Service Provider’s website at https://evoting.
kfintech.com and the communication will be sent to the
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Notice

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE ORDINARY/
SPECIAL BUSINESSES PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ WITH REGULATION 36
OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015:

As required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the following statement sets out all material facts relating to
the special business mentioned under Resolution Nos. 5 to 8 of
this Notice. Explanation to ordinary business mentioned under
Resolution Nos. 2, 3 and 4 has been provided on a voluntary
basis.

Resolution Nos. 3 and 4:

In compliance with RBI guidelines for appointment of Statutory
Central Auditors (SCAs) /Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial
Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including Housing
Finance Companies) (RBI Guidelines) issued by Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) on April 27, 2021 and relevant FAQs (RBI guidelines),
the Members of the Company vide their authorization dated
November 15, 2021 appointed Messrs S.N. Dhawan & CO
LLP (member firm of Mazars, an international audit, tax and
advisory firm based in France), Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 000050N/N500045 issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India) and Messrs Arora & Choudhary
Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
003870N issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India), as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period
of 3 (three) consecutive years to hold office until the conclusion
of the 19" Annual General Meeting of the Company, subject
to them continuing to fulfill the applicable eligibility norms.
The Members had also authorized payment of fees to Messrs
S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP and Messrs Arora & Choudhary
Associates, amounting to X 1,50,00,000 and X 60,00,000
respectively, plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of
pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the audit
of the accounts of the Company for the financial year 2021-22.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has paid the
following amounts (excluding applicable taxes) to its statutory
auditors:

(Amount in X)

Name Statutory Audit Fee®

S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP* 1,07,50,000
S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP** 1,20,00,000
Arora & Chaudhary Associates** 60,00,000
Total 2,87,50,000

*Tenure: April 1, 2021 to November 13, 2021.
**Appointed with effect from November 15, 2021

Please note that in the above table, the amounts for S.N.
Dhawan & CO LLP and Arora & Chaudhary Associates are only
for four and half months from November 15, 2021, to the end
of FY 2021-22

$Amount excluding Certification Fee plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them in
connection with the audit of the accounts of the Company.
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It is now proposed to fix the annual remuneration payable to
the Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company as under, plus
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses
incurred by them in connection with the audit of the accounts
of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 and for such
years till the same is revised:

Name Statutory Audit Fee®
S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP 1,65,00,000
Arora & Chaudhary Associates 66,00,000
Total 2,31,00,000

The Company is pursuing a retail-focused tech-enabled asset-
light business model. Mr. Sachin Chaudhary is driving the retail
business and is at the fore-front of shaping this next leg of the
Company’s growth.

The shareholders of the Company vide their authorization of July
29, 2021 had approved the appointment of Mr. Sachin Chaudhary,
as Whole Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel, designated
as Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer (COO) of the
Company, on the main terms and conditions inter-alia including as
under, which shall remain unchanged:-

$Amount excluding Certification Fee plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them in
connection with the audit of the accounts of the Company.

Messrs S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP is a member firm of Mazars, an
international audit, tax and advisory firm based in France.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company
unanimously recommended payment of remuneration to Messrs
S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP and Messrs Arora & Choudhary Associates,
being the Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company as set out at
Resolution Nos. 3 and 4 of this Notice for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their relatives are in any way concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in Resolution Nos. 3 and 4
of the Notice.

Resolution Nos. 2,5 & 6:

Ordinary Resolution for the reappointment of Mr. Sachin
Chaudhary (DIN: 02016992), a Whole Time Director & Key
Managerial Personnel, designated as Executive Director & Chief
Operating Officer, who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment and Special Resolution(s) for
the re-appointment of (i) Mr. Gagan Banga (DIN: 00010894)
as a Whole-Time Director & Key Managerial Personnel and
designated as Vice — Chairman, Managing Director & CEO of the
Company, (ii) Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar (DIN: 03341114)
as a Whole-Time Director & Key Managerial Personnel and
designated as Deputy Managing Director of the Company, for
a further period of five years, with effect from March 18, 2023:

Mr. Sachin Chaudhary

Mr. Sachin Chaudhary, 48 years of age, established the retail
mortgage lending business at the Company and in his executive
capacity has been the business head of retail mortgages since
2005. In a short span of just 17 years, Mr. Sachin Chaudhary
has been successful in establishing one of the country’s largest
retail mortgage franchises. His experience and expertise spans
all operating functions of retail mortgages which has been
vital in building a retail mortgage business that has clocked
impressive book growth with tight control over asset quality while
maintaining strong profitability. During the course of his career Mr.
Sachin Chaudhary has developed a strong connect with market
participants and he is very adept at spotting industry trends across
the country’s diverse geography. As a Board member, drawing
from his deep experience and market knowledge, he contributes
to shaping the strategy for the retail mortgage business.
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5 years with effect from October 21, 2021
Director, liable to retire by rotation
Executive Director & Chief Operating
Officer

Salary payable shall be in the range of
X 20,00,000 to X 40,00,000 per month during
the duration of his appointment.

Period
Nature
Designation

Remuneration

Mr. Sachin Chaudhary's annual salary
increments will be capped at a maximum of
15% p.a. The upper cap of X 40,00,000 per
month mentioned above is a mathematical
computation of 15% compounding for 5
years, and is only an enabling authority to the
Board and/or Nomination and Remuneration
Committee to decide on the salary payable to
Mr. Sachin Chaudhary. It may be noted that
the salary payable to Whole-time Directors is
commensurate with the performance of the
Company, which is in accordance with the
remuneration policy and is reviewed every
year by the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee.
Performance Stock options/SARs in terms of ESOP plans

related incentive | of the Company.
Sitting Fees Nil

The remuneration paid to Mr. Sachin Chaudhary, during the
financial year ended 31 March, 2022, is mentioned in the
Annual Return as on March 31, 2022, which is available on
the Company’s website on https://www.indiabullshomeloans.
com/uploads/downloads/ihfl-annual-return-mgt-7-
fy-22-0333213001661262586.pdf.

Mr. Sachin Chaudhary has post graduate qualification in Finance
from Centre for Management Development and an Executive
MBA from Columbia Business School. In the course of his career,
he has worked with ICICI Bank and GE Money. At ICICI Bank he was
part of the team that launched the home loans product.

Mr. Sachin Chaudhary holds 127,500 Equity Shares of the Company
and is not related to any other director on the Board of the
Company. He is also a director on the Board of Indiabulls Capital
Services Limited and Nilgiri Investmart Services Limited (Formerly
known as Nilgiri Financial Consultants Limited), both of which are
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. He is a member of
Board constituted Management Committee, Securities Issuance
Committee, Asset Liability Management Committee, Customer
Grievance Committee, Investment Committee, ESG Committee
and Chairman of Identification Committee, of the Company
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In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, Mr. Sachin Chaudhary, as a Director of the Company,
retires by rotation, and being eligible, he has offered himself to
be reappointed as such in the ensuing AGM

Mr. Gagan Banga

Mr. Gagan Banga - Vice-Chairman, Managing Director & CEO,
holds a Post Graduate Diploma in Management and has 23 years
of industry experience. He brings deep operational knowledge
and first-hand experience in shaping the business strategy of the
Company.

Mr. Banga has been managing the Company since inception, first
in his capacity as the Chief Executive Officer and now as the Vice-
Chairman, Managing Director & CEO of the Company. Under Mr.
Banga’s able leadership, the Company has emerged as India’s 3™
largest housing finance company. The Assets Under Management of
the Company have grown at a fifteen year CAGR of 23% while net
worth and revenues at a fifteen year CAGR of 14%. Over the last 4
years, following the default by IL&FS in September 2018, the NBFC/
HFC sector has been going through a prolonged liquidity squeeze. The
COVID-19 pandemic and the disruption to the economy has posed
challenges on the asset quality front and to near- and mid-term
growth. Under Mr. Banga’s guidance, the Company has not only ably
navigated through these turbulent times, but has been successful in
building a fortress balance sheet - equity capital raises have boosted
the Company’s capital levels, asset quality is stable, the Company
has built strong provision buffer and also has an optimally matched
ALM. This helped the Company get its long term credit rating outlook
revised by CRISIL, ICRA, Brickwork and Moody’s to ‘Stable’, ending two
years of negative outlook on its rating.

The salary of Mr. Gagan Banga, as Vice Chairman, Managing
Director and CEO of the Company, in FY19 was X 16.6 Crores. In
terms of the shareholders’ existing approval for annual increment
cap of 15%, this would have been X 25 Crores for FY22. However,
in FY19 and in FY20, Mr. Banga took voluntarily salary cuts,
and for FY22, his salary was X 10 Crores per annum (excluding
perquisites as per Company's policy), [40% of the X 25 Crores as
per the increment cap approved by the shareholders], along with
performance bonus of 50% of salary. For FY22, Mr. Banga did not
take any performance bonus.

Accordingly, the proposed main terms and conditions of re-
appointment of Mr. Gagan Banga, as Whole Time Director
and Key Managerial Personnel designated as Vice-Chairman,
Managing Director & CEO of the Company, are as under:

Period 5 years with effect from March 19, 2023
Nature Director, liable to retire by rotation
Designation Vice-Chairman, Managing Director & CEO
Remuneration | Mr. Banga’s present gross annual salary is

X 10 Crores (excluding perquisites as per
Company's policy) and his annual salary
increments will be capped at a maximum of
15% p.a. It may be noted that the salary payable
to Whole-time Directors is commensurate
with the performance of the Company, which
is in accordance with the remuneration policy
and is reviewed every year by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

Notice

Performance Stock options/ SARs in terms of ESOP plans of

related the Company.

incentive
Depending on the performance of the
Company, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee may approve performance bonus
upto 50% of the gross annual salary being paid
to Mr. Banga

Sitting Fees Nil

Post Retirement | Subject to fulfilling the eligibility criteria, Mr.

Benefit Banga shall be entitled to post- retirement

benefit(s) in the form of medical benefits
and all other benefits as are provided to the
directors and/ or senior employees of the
Company, in accordance with the schemes
framed/to be framed by the Company and
as approved by the Board of Directors or
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
Directors, from time to time.

The valuation of perquisites will be as per the Income-Tax
Rules, 1962, in cases where the same is otherwise not possible
to be valued.

The remuneration paid to Mr. Gagan Banga, during the
financial year ended 31t March, 2022, is mentioned in the
Annual Return as on March 31, 2022, which is available on
the Company’s website on https://www.indiabullshomeloans.
com/uploads/downloads/ihfl-annual-return-mgt-7-
fy-22-0333213001661262586.pdf.

Mr. Banga holds 35,41,105 Equity Shares of the Company and is
not related to any other director on the Board of the Company.

He is also a director on the Board of GSB Advisory Services Private
Limited. Heis also, member of board constituted Risk Management
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Committee
for Restructuring, Reschedulement, and Monitoring of Asset
Quality, NPA and Write-off, and ESG Committee and Chairman of
Review Committee of the Company. He has resigned from the Board
of Dhani Services Limited and Dhani Loans & Services Limited w.e f.
March 14, 2022.

Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar

Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar - Deputy Managing Director
has more than 22 years’ experience in Retail Mortgage Finance
and Corporate Lending to the Real Estate sector. Prior to
joining Indiabulls, he worked with HDFC Ltd. for over 10 years,
leading the Corporate Mortgage Business. With extensive
professional experience of mortgage-backed lending to both
retail and corporate segments, Mr. Kumar has deep market
knowledge and has been instrumental in business strategizing.
With the turn in real estate cycle, the Company is looking to
recommence doing wholesale lending, in an AIF structure. Mr.
Kumar’s rich experience in handling and growing this segment,
both at Indiabulls and HDFC Ltd. will be invaluable in restarting
and growing this business. He has strong academia experience
and has been a Visiting Professor of Finance at Jamnalal Bajaj
Institute of Management Studies, Mumbai, one of India’s
premier business schools. He has deep knowledge of financial
markets and has made essential contribution to setting the
Company’s funding strategy.
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Thesalary of Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar, as Deputy Managing
Director of the Company, in FY19 was X 7.85 Crores. In terms of
the shareholders’ existing approval for annual increment cap of
15%, this would have been X11.93 Crores for FY22. However, in
FY19 and in FY20, Mr. Kumar took voluntarily salary cuts, and for
FY22, his salary was X 5 Crores per annum [42% of the X 11.93
Crores as per the increment cap approved by the shareholders],
along with performance bonus of 50% of salary. For FY22,
Mr. Kumar did not take any performance bonus.

The proposed main terms and conditions of re-appointment of
Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar, as Whole Time Director and Key
Managerial Personnel designated as Deputy Managing Director
of the Company, are as under:

Period 5 years with effect from March 19, 2023
Nature Director, liable to retire by rotation
Designation Deputy Managing Director

Remuneration Mr. Kumar’s present gross annual salary

is X 5 Crores and his annual salary
increments will be capped at a maximum
of 15% p.a. It may be noted that the
salary payable to Whole-time Directors
is commensurate with the performance
of the Company, which is in accordance
with the remuneration policy and is
reviewed every year by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

Stock options/ SARs in terms of ESOP
plans of the Company.

Performance
related incentive

Depending on the performance of
the Company, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee may approve
performance bonus upto 50% of the gross
annual salary being paid to Mr. Kumar
Sitting Fees Nil

Post Retirement | Subject to fulfilling the eligibility criteria,
Benefit Mr. Kumar shall be entitled to post-
retirement benefit(s) in the form of
medical benefits and all other benefits as
are provided tothe directors and/ or senior
employees of the Company, in accordance
with the schemes framed/ to be framed
by the Company and as approved by the
Board of Directors or Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of Directors,
from time to time.

The valuation of perquisites will be as per the Income-Tax
Rules, 1962, in cases where the same is otherwise not possible
to be valued.

The remuneration paid to Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar, during
the financial year ended 31 March, 2022, is mentioned in the
Annual Return as on March 31, 2022, which is available on
the Company’s website on https://www.indiabullshomeloans.
com/uploads/downloads/ihfl-annual-return-mgt-7-
fy-22-0333213001661262586.pdf.
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Mr. Kumar is a Mechanical Engineer from Indian Institute of
Technology, Roorkee and a Master in Management Studies
from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of Management Studies, Mumbai.
He has also completed his advanced Studies in International
Housing Finance from Wharton School, University of
Pennsylvania, U.S.A. He doesn’t hold any Equity Share in the
Company and is not related to any other director on the Board
of the Company.

He is not on the Board of any other Company. He is a member
of board constituted, Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Securities Issuance
Committee, Customer Grievance Committee and Asset Liability
Management Committee of the Company and Chairman of
Management Committee and Investment Committee of the
Company.

The Company has grown significantly under the leadership
and guidance of Mr. Sachin Chaudhary, Mr. Gagan Banga and
Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar. Keeping in view their vast
experience, knowledge and managerial skills, the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee has recommended to the Board,
(i) the re-appointment of Mr. Sachin Chaudhary consequent
to his retirement on rotation and (ii) the re-appointment of
Mr. Gagan Banga as a Whole-Time Director & Key Managerial
Personnel, (ii) Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar as a Whole-Time
Director & Key Managerial Personnel, as such, for a further
period of five years w.e.f. March 19, 2023, consequent upon
completion of their existing term on March 18, 2023. The Board
is of the view that it will be in the best business interest of the
Company that.

(a) Mr. Sachin Chaudhary (DIN: 02016992), a Whole-time
Director and Key Managerial Personnel designated as
Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer, who retires
by rotation, be reappointed;

(b) Mr. Gagan Banga (DIN: 00010894) be re-appointed as a
Whole-Time Director & Key Managerial Personnel and
designated as Vice — Chairman, Managing Director & CEO
of the Company for another term of Five years with effect
from March 19, 2023.

(c) Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar (DIN: 03341114) be re-
appointed as a Whole-Time Director & Key Managerial
Personnel and designated as Deputy Managing Director of
the Company, for another term of Five years with effect
from March 19, 2023.

Company’s Performance undertheLeaderships ofthe Executive
Directors, Mr. Sachin Chaudhary, Mr. Gagan Banga and
Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar:

Despite an extremely challenging period due to the ongoing
pandemic, the Company, under the leadership and guidance of
the board and the senior management team has ably navigated
the difficult macro-economic environment and ended FY 2021-
22 on very strong financial footing:
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Particulars !

CRAR [Standalone] 22.5%
Tier 1 [Standalone] 16.6%
Net Debt to Equity 2.6x
Cost to Income Ratio 21.0%
Book Spread 2.4%
Total Provisions as a % of Loan Book 2.8%
Gross NPA 3.2%
Net NPA 1.9%

Through FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22, the Company raised X 5,290
Crores of regulatory equity/ quasi-equity capital through a QIP,
sale of investment in OakNorth Bank and FCCB issuances. The QIP
and FCCB transactions received considerable participation from a
number of diversified and high-quality investors across USA, UK,
Asia and Europe, including existing investors. This is a testament
to the faith that investors have reposed in the long term prospects
of the company. As a result of the capital raises, the Company’s
capital adequacy as at end of FY 2021- 22 stands at 22.5%, with
Tier 1 of 16.6%, on a standalone basis. At a gearing of 2.6x, the
Company is one of the least levered companies among its peers.

The Company’s asset quality has remained stable through
FY 2021-22 despite a period of acute macro-economic stress
brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic and resultant
lockdowns. Owing to the stable asset quality, FY 2021-22 credit
costs for the Company were at only 0.6% of the average total
loan assets. To fortify its balance sheet, the Company has built
up total provisions of X 1,645 Crores on balance sheet which is
over 2x times of the regulatory requirement and equivalent to a
healthy 2.8% of its loan book.

The Company’s Gross NPAs as at end of FY 2021-22 are at 3.21%
while Net NPAs stand at 1.89% - both numbers are computed at a
consolidated level on the total loan assets managed.

Even though the Company rationalized its balance sheet growth
following the IL&FS default triggered liquidity squeeze for the
NBFC/ HFC sector followed by the COVID-19 pandemic, over the
last decade, the Company has clocked impressive growth under
the leadership and guidance of the Whole-Time Directors and
the senior management team. The Company closed FY 2021-22
with a balance sheet size of X 81,973 Crores, up from X 3,336
crores at the end of FY 2006-07 — a CAGR of 24%. Loan assets
have also grown at a CAGR of 23% since FY2006-07 to close FY
2021-22 at X 72,211 Crores.

Growth in IBHFLs Balance Sheet Size and Loan Assets [Amount in % Crores]

Balance Sheet
15 CAGR- 24%

81,973
57,231

3,335

FYO7 FY15 FY22

Note: FY07 and FY15 numbers are on applicable IGAAP and FY22
numbers are on applicable IND AS and hence not comparable.

Notice

Loan Assets
15 Year CAGR- 23%
72,211
52,235
3,098
FYO7 FY15 FY22

The Company now has a maturing retail asset-light business
model, having established the intended co-lending partnerships
with 6 banks and financial institutions and an established
‘originate and securities’” model with 24 banks and financial
institutions. In FY 2022-23, the Company is looking to scale up
disbursals under this model and to regain its place as one of the
largest mortgage originator in the country. Also, the Company
went slow in doing incremental wholesale loans about 4 years
back, having sensed the stress being built up in this sector.
With the turn in the real estate cycle over the past 1 year,
the Company believes the time is ripe to resume doing new
wholesale loans, in an AIF structure. Hence, in FY 2022-23, the
Company would also focus on operationalizing wholesale co-
lending model through an AIF platform.

Given the Company has already walked this path successfully
in the past under the able leadership of Mr. Banga, Mr. Kumar
and Mr. Chaudhary, their rich experience and expertise will be
invaluable to the Company for its next leg of growth.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution as set out at
Item No. 2 of this Notice, for the approval by the shareholders,
as an Ordinary resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Sachin
Chaudhary as a Director, liable to retire by rotation and offered
him-self for re-appointment.

Further, the approval of members at Item No. 2 of this Notice
is not sought for payment of remuneration to Mr. Sachin
Chaudhary. Payment of remuneration to Mr. Sachin Chaudhary,
Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer of the Company
is in accordance with the existing shareholders approval dated
July 29, 2021.

Further, pursuant to and in terms of the provisions of Section
196 and 197, Schedule V and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders’ approval, by way
of a Special Resolution, is required for the re-appointment
of Whole-Time Directors and Key Managerial Personnel’s
of the Company and payment of remunerations. The Board
accordingly recommends, passing of the Special Resolution(s),
as set out at Item No. 5 & 6 of this Notice, for the approval of
the Members of the Company.

Except the proposed appointees, in resolutions set out at
Iltem Nos. 2, 5 & 6 of this Notice, proposing their respective
re-appointment and payment of remuneration, none of the
Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Persons (KMPs) of
the Company or any relatives of such Promoters, Directors or
KMPs, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the resolution.
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Resolution No. 7:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as a Special Resolution, for issue of Non-Convertible
Debentures, not in nature of equity shares, of the Company,
on private placement basis, upto the existing authorizations
of X 50,000 Crores:

The shareholders of the Company at its Extraordinary General
Meeting held on April 18, 2022 had authorized the Company
to issue Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) and Bonds (not in
the nature of equity shares), up to a limit of X 50,000 Crores.
However, in accordance with the applicable laws viz. the
Companies Act, 2013; the Housing Finance Companies Issuance
of Non-Convertible Debentures on a Private Placement Basis
(NHB) Directions, 2014 and Master Direction — Non-Banking
Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021; the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) 2021; and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as may be
amended from time to time; the authorization is valid for one
year from the date of approval i.e. up to April 17, 2023. As on
June 30, 2022, the outstanding NCDs issued by the Company
stood only at X 23,731 Crores, on a consolidated basis. Now,
approval of Members is being sought upto the shareholders
existing authorization dated April 18, 2022 of upto X 50,000
Crores, for issue of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)and/
or Bonds (issuance of NCDs and/or Bonds shall not be in the
nature of equity shares), for extending validity of their existing
authorization dated April 18, 2022, till one year post receipt of
shareholders’ authorization approval in the AGM.

The Board is of the view that a limit of X 50,000 Crores for issue
of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) and Bonds (issuance of
NCDs and/or Bonds shall not be in the nature of equity shares),
is adequate for the next one year, commencing from the date
of this AGM.

NCDs represent a cost-effective source of funding and a reliable
means of diversification. A diversified funding profile affords
the Company multiple avenues of borrowing, which from a
cost and liquidity perspective are often complementary to
one another, enabling the Company to run a cost effective and
efficient funding programme. Non-Convertible Debentures
provide access to the widest set of investors and thus the
deepest pool of funding. NCDs can be raised from domestic
debt investors such as mutual funds, insurance companies,
pension and provident funds, banks; Domestic retail NCDs
can be raised from regular individuals and also High Networth
Individuals [HNIs]. Through Fiscal Year 2022 and quarter 1 of
Fiscal Year 2023, the Company raised X 1,479 Crores through
retail issue of NCDs. Retail NCD issues will now be a regular
perpetual source of fund raising for the Company, and will
lead to greater ‘granularisation’ and ‘retailisation’ of its liability
franchise. International NCDs represent another very deep pool
of debt capital from foreign institutional investors, pension and
provident funds and international banks.

Over the last six years, the Company’s reliance on bank term
loans is down from 48% at the end of Jun 2016 to 31% at the
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end of Jun 2022 and this has been largely replaced by funding
from NCDs and loan sell downs. The proportion of NCDs has
increased from 31% as the end of Jun 2016 to 35% as the end
of Mar 2022.

W ECHE

Sell Down

M Bank Loans

Commercial Papers

W Mon-Convertible
Debentures

Jun-16

Jun-22

Within its peer-set of AA rated companies, the Company has
the largest stock of NCD/ bond borrowings (on a consolidated
basis) as on June 30, 2022:

Company Outstanding NCDs/ Bonds

(X Crores)
Indiabulls Housing Finance 23,731
PNB Housing Finance 6,757
Manappuram Finance 6,097
IIFL Finance 9,983
JM Financial 6,343
Shriram City Union Finance 6,913

Source: Company financial results and investor presentations

The Company’s net gearing, on a consolidated basis, is very
moderate at 2.5x, this compares with 5.7x for the top-5 HFC
peers and 5.0x for the top-5 NBFC/HFC peers. The Company’s
non- convertible debentures and bonds presently total up to
X 23,731 Crores as on June 30, 2022, on a consolidated basis. Net
of repayments and new issuances, a limit of 50,000 Crores would
be adequate for the Company, especially since its business model
is now one of asset-light growth. Even if the Company borrows
via NCDs up to the limit of X 50,000 Crores, the Company’s net
gearing will rise only to 4.0x, which is still well below the average
for the top-5 HFCs. Also, the total borrowings of the Company, on
a consolidated basis, will rise to only 4.4x times from the present
2.8x times of the net owned funds of the Company, against a
regulatory upper limit of 12x times the net owned funds.

Being a non-deposit accepting non-bank lender, the Company
relies on wholesale sources of borrowing to undertake its
lending business. As a prudent measure, the Company always
maintains ample amount of liquidity on its balance sheet to
shield the business from any short-to mid-term disruptions
in accessing monies from its various borrowing sources. This
liquidity is either parked as bank balances or in investments. In
computing net gearing, the Company merely offsets this ready
liquidity from its borrowings.

None of the issuance of various types of Non-Convertible
Debentures for which approval is being sought vide this
resolution would be in the nature of equity shares.



Pursuant to and in terms of the provisions of Section 42 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 14(2) of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, the Board
of Directors of the Company, subject to shareholders’ approval,
by way of a Special Resolution, can raise funds through issue of
NCDs and/or Bonds (issuance of NCDs and/or Bonds shall not be
in the nature of equity shares),which can be classified as being
Tier Il capital under the provisions of Housing Finance Companies
(NHB) Directions 2010, beyond April 17, 2023, on a private
placement basis, up to one year from the date of shareholders’
approval to the resolution, as set out at Item No. 7 of this Notice.

Accordingly, as an enabling authorization, approval of the
Members is being sought by way of a Special Resolution as set
out at Item No. 7 of this Notice, authorizing the Board to issue
NCDs and/or Bonds (issuance of NCDs and/or Bonds shall not
be in the nature of equity shares), which can be classified as
being Tier Il capital under the provisions of Housing Finance
Companies (NHB) Directions 2010, on a private placement
basis, during a period of one year from the date of this Annual
General Meeting of the Company, up to an aggregate amount
not exceeding X 50,000 Crores.

The Board accordingly recommends, passing of the Special
Resolution, as set out at Item No. 7 of this Notice, for the
approval of the Members of the Company.

None of the Promoters, Directors and Key Managerial Persons
(KMPs) of the Company or any relatives of such Promoters,
Directors or KMPs, are in any way concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.
7 of this Notice.

Item No. 8: Special Resolution for enabling payment of upto
1% of Net Profits to Non-Executive Directors of the Company

Over the past 2 years, the management team has been working
towards the goal of institutionalization of the Company. Towards
this end, Mr. Sameer Gehlaut, founder of IBH, relinquished the
Chairmanship of the Board in Aug 2020, and later, in Mar 2022,
resigned from his Non-Executive Director post stepping down
from the Board of the Company. Mr. S.S. Mundra, ex-Deputy
Governor of the RBI, is now the Chairman of the Board. Thus,
the Company is now a board governed professionally managed
financial institution. All key committees such as Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk Management
Committee and ESG Committee are now chaired by independent
directors with relevant experience. The board now has regular
and direct oversight on all key areas of executive operations.

Considering the need for the enlarged role and active
participation/ contribution of Non-Executive Directors to
achieve the growth in operations and profitability of the
Company, it is appropriate that the services being rendered by
them to the Company are recognized by it by way of payment
of compensation, commensurate with their contributions, as
permissible within the applicable regulations.

The Company’s non-executive directors between them have
extensive experience in the fields of financial sector regulation
and supervision, banking, insurance, judiciary, accounting, and
law enforcement etc. The non-executive directors both exercise

Notice

effective oversight, and also guide the senior management
team. Their experience and inputs have been invaluable,
especially so over the course of the last four years, as the
Company faced headwinds affecting the NBFC/ HFC sector, and
the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.

The shareholders of the Company vide their approval dated
September 7, 2020, had authorized the Company to pay
incentive upto 1% of its net profits to its Non-Executive
Directors. Such approval is valid upto the FY 2023. The proposed
limit of 1%, as set out in the Agenda Item No. 8 of this Notice,
is an overall limit upto which the Board shall be authorised to
fix the manner/ criteria inter-alia the time devoted by the Non-
Executive Directors for determining the final amount payable to
any one or more such Directors, every year for a period of three
years with effect from April 1, 2023.

The details of commission and sitting fees paid/ payable to
the non-executive directors for the financial year 2021-22
is mentioned in the Annual Return as on March 31, 2022,
which is available on the Company’s website on https://www.
indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/ihfl-annual-
return-mgt-7-fy-22-0333213001661262586.pdf. It may be noted
that the commission that can be paid to the non-executive
directors including independent directors for the financial
year 2021-22 is 1% of the net profits of the Company i.e.,
X10.47 Crores calculated in terms of section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013, whereas the commission as approved by the Board
of Directors and payable to the non-executive directors for the
financial year 2021-22 is X 4.51 Crores which represents 0.43%
of the net profit calculated as aforesaid. The special resolution as
set out at Item No. 8 of this Notice is an enabling authority to the
Board of Directors of the Company to decide on the commission
payable to the non-executive directors.

The Board recommends the payment of remuneration/
commission/ incentives to Non-Executive Directors of the
Company and proposes to have the approval of the members,
by way of special resolution in terms of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, on the Agenda
Item No. 8 of this Notice.

All the non-executive directors, including independent
directors and their relatives are deemed to be interested in the
resolution set out at Item No. 8 of this Notice.

None of the whole-time directors/ key managerial personnel
of the Company or their relatives are in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution at
Item No. 8 of this Notice.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Sd/-

Amit Jain

Place: Gurugram Company Secretary
Date: August 20, 2022 FCS: 5433
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To,

KFintech Technologies Limited

Unit : Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Selenium Tower B, Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad — 500 032
Toll free No. 1800 309 4001

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com

Dear Sir / Madam,

| hereby register / update my email address provided below for receiving all communication from the Company through electronic
mode:

Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID

Name of the First Registered Holder

Registered Address

Email ID (to be Registered)

Signature of the First Registered Holder

Date:

Notes:
1. On registration/ updation, all the communications will be sent to the registered e-mail Id.

The form is also available on the website of the Company at www.indiabullshomeloans.com under the heading ‘https://www.
indiabullshomeloans.com/investor-relations/agm-notice’ by the name “E-Communication Registration Form2022”.

2. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to ensure to keep their e-mail Id updated with the Depository
Participants with whom they are holding their Demat Account.

3.  Members are requested to keep their depository participants/Company’s Registrar- KFintech Technologies Limited informed
as and when there is any change in the e-mail Id. Unless, the email Id given here-in-above is changed by you by sending
another communication in writing, the Company will continue to send all the communication to you on the above mentioned
email Id
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report and other statements — written and
oral — that we periodically make contain forward-
looking statements that set out anticipated results
based on the management’s plans and assumptions.
We have tried, wherever possible, to identify such
statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’,
‘estimate’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’,
‘believes’, and words of similar substance in
connection with any discussion of future performance.
Although we have been prudent in our assumptions, we
cannot guarantee that these forward-looking
statements will be realised. The achievement of results
is subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate
assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or
uncertainties materialise, or should underlying
assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could
materially vary from those anticipated, estimated or
projected. Readers should bear this in mind. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-
looking statement whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.



ndia is home to more than a billion beating hearts, all integral in

building a distinct identity for our nation. Each person a defining

beat that gives this land meaning as a nation of proud people.
And one of the primary aim for a vast majority of our countrymen is
to own a home that establishes their own identity within this
country.

The dream of owning a home today is not limited to urban cities, but
extends well beyond. Emerging cities and evolving rural areas that
make up the vast majority of our country are fast becoming the
primary housing demand centers, creating their own category -
“Bharat”. We see limitless opportunities in this market.

At Indiabulls Housing Finance, we pride ourselves at being able to
understand the needs of today's home buyer, and create solutions
that make this journey possible - both conveniently and affordably.
This belief is powered by all our stakeholders. From our customers
that form the base of our motivations to our investors, lenders and
workforce that help materialise our efforts, our journey has been
held steady due to their constant efforts. Driven by the motivation to
provide exemplary customer experiences, we have devoted our
efforts towards a retail focused, tech-enabled, low-cost, asset-light
business model to help us both service customers in the best
manner possible as well as scale this business sustainably. This is
best exemplified with the end-to-end home loan fulfilment offering
on our e-Home Loan platform. The tech focus is fortified with a
strong commitment to robust corporate governance practices and
corevalues, in line with our aim to maintain sustainable growth.

As we continue to evolve and provide offerings that best
accommodate the expectations of today's consumers, our offerings
will ensure that the home buying experience is hassle-free,
transparent and most importantly, affordable.

We stand steadfast in our mission to
ensure that Bharat is not just a land our
people reside in, but home to call their own.
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Mr. Subhash Sheoratan Mundra

Mr. Bishnu Charan Patnaik

Mr. Achuthan Siddharth

Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra

Mr. Satish Chand Mathur

Justice Mrs.Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.)
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal

Mr. Gagan Banga

Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar

Mr. Sachin Chaudhary

Mr. Mukesh Garg
Mr. Amit Jain

Mr. Ramnath Shenoy
Tel: 022-61891444
Email: investor.relations@indiabulls.com

S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP

(Member firm of Mazars, an international audit, tax and
advisory firm based in France)

Chartered Accountants

51-52, 2nd Floor, Sector 18, Udyog Vihar Phase-IV,
Gurugram, Haryana 122016

Arora &Choudhary Associates
Chartered Accountants

8/28, W.E.A, Abdul Aziz Road,
Karol Bagh,

New Delhi - 110005

Neelam Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries
D-2/16, Darya Ganj, New Delhi — 110002

5th Floor, Building No. 27, KG Marg Connaught Place,
New Delhi- 110001

Email: helpdesk@indiabulls.com

Website: www.indiabullshomeloans.com
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18th Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road,
Mumbai — 400 013, Maharashtra

Plot No.422B, Udyog Vihar, Phase - 1V,
Gurugram —122 016, Haryana

KFin Technologies Limited

(formerly KFin Technologies Private Limited)
Unit: Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited,
Selenium Building, Tower B, Plot No. 31-32,
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad - 500032

e Australia and NewZealand Banking Group Ltd
e Axis Bank

¢ Bank of Baroda

¢ Bank of India

* Bank of Maharashtra
e Barclays Bank

e Canara Bank

e Catholic Syrian Bank
e Central Bank of India
e Citi Bank NA

e Deutsche Bank

¢ Federal Bank

e HDFC Bank

¢ |ICICI Bank

* |DBI Bank

e IDFC First Bank

e Indian Bank

e Indian Overseas

¢ Karnataka Bank

¢ Kotak Mahindra Bank
e MUFG Bank Ltd.

® Punjab and Sind Bank
* Punjab National Bank
¢ RBL Bank Ltd

¢ Shinhan Bank

e State Bank of India

¢ UCO Bank

e Union Bank of India

* Yes Bank
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FY 22 Key Highlights

Balance Sheet Loan Assets Revenue NII

381,973 cr. 372,211 cr. 38,994 cr. 32,752 cr.

PAT Net NPA Employee Strength

31,178 cr. 1.89% 4,603

We are the third largest housing finance company in the country. A technology focussed
organisation thatintroduced India to its very first end-to-end digital home loan technology platform,
we are proud to have been of service to more than 1.2 million happy home owners across the
country, and have collectively disbursed loans of over X2.94 lakh Crores.

As we have grown over the years, customer delight has been an unwavering priority. We pride
ourselves in being able to provide our customers with smart solutions and rich experiences through
our 4,600+ employees operating across our nationwide network of 151 branches, 8,000+ channel
partners, and our pioneering digital platforms that offer customised solutions and round- the-clock

service to our customers.

We pride ourselves in providing quality customer experience throughout a customer’s journey; right
from helping them find the perfect property to supporting them through the more detailed
requirements of credit due-diligence, approval, and eventual fulfilment with disbursal of the loan.
Every solution is tailor-made to ensure that the home buying process is not just happy, but a
memorable one.
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Our Offerings

Beyond home loans for Resident Indians and Non-Resident
Indians (NRIs), we also offer loans to small businesses and
MSMEs, against their properties - unlocking the financial
potential of their properties, and home loan balance
transfers — that give customers the option to switch to us
from their existing loans for better service, terms or top-up
loanamounts.

Our Foundation

Our success rests on strong foundations. As an
organisation, our efforts have always been towards
enabling affordable, accessible and hassle-free smooth
home buying experience for our customers. This ambition
has been driven by our principles of Transparency,
Customer First, Integrity and Professionalism which are
coretoour existence.

RATINGS

OUR
GOALS

Customer Delight -
provide hassle-free smooth
home buying experience

Financial Inclusion -
ensure housing finance
is made more accessible
and affordable

Long Term Rating Short Term Rating

CRISIL
(An S&P Global Company)

ICRA

(@ Moody's Investor Services Company)

CARE

BRICKWORK
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Over the past year, IBH’s focus on creating a sustainable growth path has been characterised by
establishment of strong co-lending partnerships, increasing loan sell down/securitisation and tech-
enabled distribution to drive a steady revenue stream whilst also maintaining a lean balance sheet. The
retail asset-light business model is a catalyst for growth driven by low capital requirements, higher fee
income and cost-effective operations through tech-enabled distribution helping proliferate a capital
accretive high RoA business.

On the back of promising and strategically chosen co-lending partnerships with reputed partners such
as Central Bank of India, Yes Bank, Indian Bank, Punjab & Sind Bank, RBL Bank and Canara Bank. IBH is
better placed to cater to a wide range of customers’ home financing and LAP needs across more
geographies, ticket sizes and yield-spectrum. The ability to reach wider audiences dovetails perfectly
with the organisation’s focus of complementing services in urban markets with a strong focus on
providing similar services to the “Bharat Markets”, which have traditionally not been afforded such
home buying experiences.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22
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To be able to provide best-in-class home buying experiences to a wider range of geographies and
customers, IBH has adopted a Phygital Strategy that is designed to best optimise the advantages of
digital and physical touchpoints for customers.

With eHome Loans, India’s first completely online end-to-end home loan fulfilment platform, India’s
fast growing tech-savvy audience can enjoy unparalleled services at their fingertips, without having to
visita branch. Customers can not only fill the application form online but also upload various documents
which are then pushed through an analytics-driven underwriting engine to provide credit appraisals via
central hub locations on a real time basis. On approval, the disbursement is also done digitally which
offers an unmatched convenience to customers, as it substantially reduces paperwork and the time
taken for various physical touchpoints and visits.

The platform has been created keeping all stakeholders within a home loan process in mind. Existing
users can enjoy round the clock services such as support from customer care, Al enabled chatbots and
more, negating the need to visit branches physically to resolve issues. The platform is also integrated
with channel partners, direct sales agents, insurance partners and others to ensure shorter working
capital cycles, quicker closure of payments for origination fees, and more cross-sell and up-sell
opportunities.

IBH has utilized this digital platform to establish lean branches across the country, with a special focus on
Tier lll & IV locations, to support lesser digital-savvy customers avail services physically. A combination
of both ensures that IBH can expand its reach beyond urban markets into the under-penetrated
geographies and extend credit facilities to the under-serviced population of the country, leaping
towards an all-inclusive growth. Tech-enabled lean branches help IBH make cost-efficient expansion
into these geographies, thus aiding profitability in the absence of high volume business on account of
lower ticket-sizes

In adopting a 360° approach, IBH expects a strong competitive advantage in both established urban
markets, wherein the organisation enjoys strong brand equity, and in lower competition locations,
where it is extending credit to under-penetrated populations, essentially helping drive Bharat’s growth

inanall-inclusive manner.
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At IBH, we believe that sustainable development is the path to a bright collective future. The
organisation’s objective of sustainable growth is driven by an effort to affect positive environmental and
social impact and robust governance practices. Maintaining strong environmental, social and corporate
governance standards is a continuous process for IBH, as it works to constantly improving the
benchmarks set for itself.

IBH has engaged CERE (Centre of Environmental Research & Education) to assess the current
environmental footprint of the organisation. The Company has set itself a target of FY32 to achieve
Carbon Neutral status. The organisation’s intensified focus to leverage technology across all aspects is
an investment not just in improving operational efficiencies, but also in reducing the organisation’s
environmental footprint.

In its quest to drive sustainable growth, a primary focus for the organisation is to put the people at the
heart of its business - customers and employees alike. Continued focus on affordable housing, now
bolstered by the organisation’s phygital strategy, will place customers first and will drive a financially
inclusive environment. Stronger efforts for more diversity amongst the workforce, tailored training
initiatives and flexible working opportunities are aimed at enriching employee experiences and growth.
Beyond its stakeholders, the organisation is also invested in giving back to the society, and has invested
inwomen empowerment, education and healthcare.

The organisation is also focused on governance practices meeting the highest ethical standards,
transparency and accountability.

The primary aim for IBH has been to maintain sustainable growth, and its ESG goals only aid along this
trajectory.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22
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CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Introduction

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited [IBH], firmly believes that for an organisation to succeed in long term, it is imperative to
keep the overall well-being of the society at the core of its values and purpose. Our main objective in this regard is to do
meaningful work with measurable output and maximumimpact on the society.

IBH’s vision is to contribute towards a society where quality healthcare, education and livelihood opportunities converge to
create an equitable future for all families and communities. Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability are not mere
obligations for us but we yearn to transform Bharat into a stronger and healthier nation.

Indiabulls Foundation [IBF] is the CSR arm of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited, and drives the various social engagement
initiatives of the Company. As the Social Development arm of IBH, IBF assesses the pressing needs of the marginalized
communities, and delivers tailor-made, technology-driven solutions aimed at improving overall living standards of the
communities it works with.

Vision Thematic Areas
To build an inclusive India by empowering

the underprivileged people and creating

sustainable livelihood opportunities for them.

Mission
Making a meaningful difference
to the lives of all its beneficiaries.

13
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Onthe basis of the Thematic Areas IBH designs, monitors

and evaluates initiatives that are need based to ensure

maximum benefit to the identified beneficiaries. * Jan SwaSthya ' SChOIarShlps
Following is the list of initiatives IBH has initiated and * Kalyan Vahika * IAS Students
continues to expand: . ..

P  Charitable Clinics Hostels

* COVID Care Kits

Processes followed at IBH
AtIBH, the following processes are followed for smooth end to end implementation of the projects.

1. IBFidentifies pressingsocial problems of marginalized communities. In this regard, the team first pre-assesses the
situation and thenidentifies the remote locations where under-priviledged people need utmost attention.

2. Subsequently, the team preparesa comprehensive planand designs social engagement programmes that best suits
and benefits its beneficiaries.

* Identifying social problems of marginalized community

Need
Assessment

* Narrowing down specific geographiclocation

» Conducting baseline survey for project preparation

* |dentification of local resources (human resource,
Planning logistics etc)
&  Defining project objectives

Execution » Strategic planning of mechanisms and tools for project
implementation

Monito ring & e Constant monitoring and interaction with beneficiaries
Evaluation & » Evaluation of project processes and progress

Impact * Preparing final report based on project outcomes and
Assessment impact assessment

14
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Following initiatives have been undertaken by
IBF in Fiscal Year 2021-22:

Il Jan Swasthya Kalyan Vahika (JSK) - Mobile Medical Vans:
Total Outlay of Rs. 6.35 Crores

JSK is @ mobile community healthcare project serving the poor in the urban underprivileged areas. This initiative
successfully diagnosed and treated more than 3,75,000 patients from the period between April 2021 and March 2022,
taking the cumulative patient served count to more than 56,15,000 till 315* March 2022 since inception.

Baseline Survey and Community Need Assessments were conducted prior to initialization of the projectsin urban areas. The
healthcare needs identified across geographical areas differed in nature. It was identified that despite adequate healthcare
options available in urban areas, socio-economic status of people residing there makes healthcare less affordable for them.
Indiabulls Foundation through its Janswasthya Kalyan Vahika project aimed at bridging this gap and providing quality
healthcaretoall.

JSK is a door-step model where the van goes to the beneficiary’s village. The program focuses on providing wide range of
preventive and curative primary healthcare. Each van runs 6 days a week on a rotational basis and caters to approximately
15-16locations per week and diagnoses approximately 100-150 patients per day.

In FY 2021-22, Indiabulls Foundation operated 31 Mobile Medical vans in Mumbai, Thane and Raigad districts of
Maharashtra.

Indiabulls Foundation has developed a comprehensive and transparent reporting system. In this system, the healthcare
team, each day, reports the daily patient count to their immediate healthcare supervisor, which is followed by a detailed
weekly Management Information System (MIS). Subsequently, this weekly MIS is used to create monthly and quarterly
reports. These reports are backed with photographs, case studies, testimonials, success stories etc. to assess the actual
impact created by the project. Track & Trace is implemented through a Global Positioning System (GPS). This is a real-time
tracking device attached in every vanto track the whereabouts of the van.

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs), such as HR SOP, Induction SOP, Doctor SOP, Pharmacist SOP, Driver SOP, Monitoring
SOP, Reporting SOP, Project Launch SOP, Inventory SOP etc. are put in place to standardize each and every activity to be
carried out by each member of the project team for a seamless operation of the project across all locations.

15
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Bl Testimonials of JSK - Mobile Medical Van beneficiaries

1. Patient Name: Kalyani Budhar BEFORE TREATMENT AFTER TREATMENT

Age:6years
Location: Ase

“I was diagnosed with Chicken Pox along with other skin
allergy and itching. | also had fever with body pain. | am
being treated for Chicken pox and skin ointments have
been given to reduce the itching. Also paushtikahar has
been strongly recommended by the doctor to ensure
supply of required nutrients for my growth. Within a span
of 1 month of treatment, | can see significant improvement
in my health condition”.

2. Patient name: Vijaya Ghatal
Age:27
Location: Sadakwadi

“I'was getting skin rashes which were quite itchy but due to
work at home | was avoiding going to the doctor. The IBF
medical van came to our village and the doctor said | have
scabies all over my body. The doctor prescribed medicines,
cream and lotion and also due to deficiency of nutrients |
was given B complex syrup which helps in improving
immune system”.

Il Indiabulls Foundation Charitable Clinics: Total Outlay of Rs.12.47 Lacs

Indiabulls Foundation Charitable Medical Clinics cater to the
health care needs of urban poor, underserved community,
providing medical consultancy, health check-ups and
discounted medicines. Indiabulls Foundation operated from
2 medical clinics in Mumbai that provided primary,
preventive and curative health care services to weaker and
underprivileged patients of urban slums. These clinics have
successfully diagnosed and treated more than 4,539 patients
from the period between April 2021 and March 2022, taking
the cumulative patient served count to 9,23,545 patients till
31%*March 2022, since inception.

These clinics provide diagnosis by a professional MBBS
registered doctor with counselling & discounted medicines given. Qualified medical personnel and six days per week of
operation ensures timely and effective health care to weaker sections of the society.

Indiabulls Foundation has developed a comprehensive and transparent reporting system. In this system, the healthcare
team, each day, reports the daily patient count to their immediate healthcare supervisor, which is followed by a detailed

16
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weekly Management Information System (MIS). Subsequently, this weekly MIS is used to create monthly and quarterly
reports. These reports are backed with photographs, case studies, testimonials, success stories etc. to assess the actual
impact created by the project. Every clinicis monitored through a real time surveillance system. Through this, not only their
actions can be monitored in real time, but can also be recorded with audio visual facility.

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs), such as HR SOP, Induction SOP, Doctor SOP, Pharmacist SOP, Housekeeping SOP,
Monitoring SOP, Reporting SOP, Project Launch SOP, Inventory SOP etc. are put in place to standardize each and every
process by each member of the project team for a seamless operation of the project across all locations.

In support of India’s fight against COVID, IBH has joined hands with Dhani Healthcare to distribute 25 Lakhs Covid Care
Health Kits free of cost, to any member of the public. Each kit contains a monthly dose of preventive care medicines (VitC,
VitD, Zinc, Paracetemol) for two people to help boost immunity.

With the rising cost of higher education day by day, it is extremely difficult for the families with lower socio-economic
conditions to support their children to achieve higher education. Indiabulls Foundation Scholarship Program aims to
encourage and promote quality higher education among meritorious students from economically challenged families to
nurture their careers. Indiabulls Foundation understands that a large number of deserving students who have an urge to
pursue their higher education are unable to do so owing mainly to financial constraints. In view of this, Indiabulls
Foundation offers scholarships to deserving students to pursue their education after 12" standard and launch a sustainable
careerinany educational field of the student’s choice.

IBF through its scholarship programme, has helped many students gain the confidence to achieve greater success in their
careers. 378 students in FY2021-22 and 1,853 students since inception have been awarded IBF scholarship for their higher
education.

Indiabulls Foundation wanted to support and encourage young girls of rural India with the aim of making them self-
dependent. IBF believes that identifying and encouraging potential in girls of rural India is the key to building a society where
women are self-dependent and empowered to raise voice against suppression, fighting for their rights and educate their
coming generations. Doing this can bring about powerful social change and creates opportunities for young girls to realize
their potential in fulfilling their dreams & ambitions, claim for gender equality and eradicate the evils like dowry system
from the society. It will also motivate other girls by setting an example if someone from their village or society gets selected
for a reputed job. It will be an ongoing process in which young girls will be identified and made to appear in competitive
exams at National and State levels, after providing proper guidance through senior professionals.

Ateam of volunteers consulting retired and working professionals from different fields, who held responsible post/position,
was formed to identify the potential of girl students from rural areas. They guide the students, suggest books from the
library facility provided, arrange group discussions as well as conduct mock interviews to help these students prepare for
the exams.

Around 10 students from the programme have been selected as class 1 officers in IAS, IPS, IRS & other allied services under
UPSCand have cleared state level exams and hold high posts in state departments.

These officers have now joined the team of volunteers to motivate the other girl students in their area by giving motivational
speechesin Schools and Colleges. They also help inidentifying the potential candidates for future batches.

17
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In line with the organisation’s efforts to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance, there has been a
consolidated push to ensure greater oversight by a strong board with more representation of independent directors as well
astobringdirectinstitutional oversight on the operations of the Company.

The Board is now led by ex-RBI Deputy Governor Mr. S. S. Mundra, who is a Non-Executive Independent Director, amongst
the 60% independent directors that make up the Board of Directors. Key sub-committees such as Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC), Risk Management and ESG Committee too are majorly or completely comprised of
independent directors. As a further move towards transforming the Company to a Board-governed professionally run
Company, Mr.Sameer Gehlaut, the founder of the organisation, stepped down from the Board in Q4 of FY2021-22. Further,
Mr. B.C. Patnaik, Managing Director of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC), has been inducted onto the Board as a
Nominee Director of the LIC. LICis IBH’s largest institutional shareholder and bondholder.

Non-Executive [Independent] Chairman

Mr. Mundra is a seasoned banker, with a distinguished career spanning over four
decades, during which he held various high level positions, including Chairman and
Managing Director of Bank of Baroda, Executive Director of Union Bank of India, Chief
Executive of Bank of Baroda [European Operations] amongst others, culminating as the
Deputy Governor of Reserve Bank of India, from where he finally demitted his office in
July 2017.

Mr. Mundra has expertise in banking, supervision, management and administrative
matters. During his illustrious career, spanning over forty years with various banks, he
held several positions across functions and locations, both in India and abroad and has
handled diverse portfolios, like core central banking, commercial banking — wholesale
and retail, banking regulation and supervision, financial markets, treasury management,
planning, economic research, investment banking, risk management and international
banking etc.

LIC Nominee Director

Mr. B.C. Patnaik is Managing Director of Life Insurance Corporation of India and also
serves on the Board of various LIC group companies like LIC Cards Services Limited, LIC
Mutual Fund Trustee Private Limited and LIC Nepal Ltd.

Mr. Patnaik holds a post graduate degree in Arts (Political Science).He is also a Fellow
member of Insurance Institute of India (FIII).
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Mr. Achuthan Siddharth (ex-Partner, Deloitte, Haskins & Sells)
Independent Director

Mr. Siddharth Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company, isa Commerce and Law
graduate from the Mumbai University, a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and an associate member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India. He was associated with Deloitte, Haskins & Sells for over 4 decades and served as
Partner for 33 years. He has vast and varied experience in the field of Audit of domesticas
well as multinational companies in sectors such as Manufacturing, Hospitality,
Technology and Non-Banking Financial Services.

Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra (ex-MD & CEO, Bank of India)
Independent Director

Mr. Mohapatra Chairman of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Company, is a former MD & CEO, Bank of India and is a
seasoned banker. He had a distinguished career spanning over three decades, during
which he held various high level positions, including Executive Director of Canara Bank
and Chief Executive Officer of Hong Kong and Singapore Centres of Bank of India. Mr.
Mohapatra has vast knowledge and multi - dimensional banking experience including
Treasury Operations, International Banking, Priority Sector Lending, Corporate Lending,
Marketing, Recovery and Human Resources.

Mr. Satish Chand Mathur, IPS (ex-Director General of Police, Maharashtra)
Independent Director

Mr. Mathur is a retired officer of the Indian Police Service [IPS] and is an ex-Director
General of Police, Maharashtra. During his illustrious career spanning nearly 37 years, he
held various sensitive and challenging assignments such as Commissioner of Police,
Pune, Director General of Anti-Corruption Bureau, Maharashtra culminating at the helm
of an over 2.25 lakh force of Maharashtra Police. He also served in the Central Bureau of
Investigation from 1996 to 2003.
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Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd. Supreme Court Judge)
Independent Director

Justice Misra Chairperson of ESG Committee of the Company, is a retired Judge of the
Supreme Court of India. Before her elevation to the Supreme Court of India, she was the
Chief Justice of Jharkhand High Court, prior to which she has also served as a Judge of
Patna High Court and of Rajasthan High Court. Before joining the Judiciary, she practiced
law for around 21 years in the Supreme Court of India specializing in civil, criminal &
constitutional matters.

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal
Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director

Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal has rich and varied experience of around three decades in
regulatory, governance, compliances, risk management, business strategy and finance
sector, by virtue of his close involvement with the growth and evolution of India’s
financial sector. Mr. Mittal worked for more than twenty years at the Reserve Bank of
India [RBI] in middle and senior management positions and has been at the forefront of
macroeconomic and financial sector issues. As General Manager of the Banking
Supervision in RBI, he was responsible for monitoring and surveillance of country’s
banking system. Mr. Mittal was closely involved in coordination with various financial
markets, e.g. debt, money, forex and capital market. Mr. Mittal also worked as Financial
Sector Advisor to Qatar Central Bank during 2006-07. In his earlier stint as executive
director, Mr. Mittal was involved in mentoring, guiding and advising the Company in
strategicand regulatory matters.
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Gagan Banga Sachin Chaudhary Mukesh Garg
Vice Chairman, MD & CEO Deputy Managing Director Executive Director & COO Chief Financial Officer

J ) ¢
Ashwin Mallick Ramnath Shenoy M. S. Walia Hemal Zaveri
Head, Treasury Head, Analytics & Investor Relations ~ National Business Manager Head Banking

%

Rajiv Gandhi Somil Rastogi Naveen Uppal Salesh Yadav
Managing Director & CEO, ICCL Head, Credit Chief Risk Officer Head Collections

Niharika Bhardwaj Mukesh Chaliha

Chief Human Resource Officer Head Operations
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Vice Chairman, MD & CEO

Over the past 2 years, people across the world have
showcased the indomitable human spirit, as we fought a
once in a century pandemic that impacted one and all.
Through this period, humanity endured loss of lives,
livelihoods, and destruction of wealth on an enormous
scale. Yet, we came back strong, navigating through
these tough times, to contain the pandemic within a
couple of years, which a century back, would have taken
adecade.

The world economy, including the Indian economy,
staged a strong comeback post the 'Delta’ variant led
devastating wave of the pandemic in the first quarter of
FY 2021-22. Sustained policy support, benign financial
conditions and an impressive traction in vaccinations
helped nurture a global recovery. Policy support helped
in shoring up financial positions of financial institutions,
containing non-performing loans and maintaining
solvency and liquidity globally. On the domestic front,
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while the ferocity of the second wave of COVID-19
dented economic activity, monetary, regulatory and
fiscal policy measures helped curtail the solvency risk of
financial entities, stabilise markets, and maintain
financial stability. However, by the end of the year, rising
inflation on account of the continued aggressive
accommodative monetary policies by global central
banks, supply-side disruptions, mainly due to the
Russian invasion of Ukraine and fears of more COVID-led
lockdowns in China dented global economic recovery,
especially hurting emerging economies, such as India.

Despite the setbacks from the second and third wave of
COVID-19, the resurgence in the Indian real estate
market continued its strong momentum. Home loan
interest rates on offer continues to be way below the
long-term average, and this, combined with other
factors such as increased affordability on the back of
steady wage inflation, stable property prices, attractive
discounts offered by developers and supportive
regulatory policies helped residential property sales
scale new heights and exceed those pre-COVID, across
price segments. The real estate property cycle has
indeed turned, and this augurs very well for your
Company.

The Indiabulls team too displayed its indomitable spirit,
as the Company put up a resilient performance during
the year in spite of the two devastating waves of COVID-
19 pandemic. Our balance sheet size at the end of FY
2021-22 stood at X 81,973 Crores while total loan assets
stood at X 72,211 Crores. As we continued with our
efforts to reduce our wholesale book and focused on
creating a granular retail loan book, our on-balance
sheet loan book consolidated further and closed the
year at X 59,333 Crores. Our Profits after tax saw
quarter-on-quarter growth for all quarters during the
year and stood atX 1,178 Crores for the complete fiscal.

Asset-Light Model

As | had communicated in my last year's letter to the
shareholders, the year FY 2021-22 was to be an year of
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“Growth and Transition” for the Company. Your
Company swiftly transitioned to its new retail-focused
tech-enabled asset-light business model by establishing
co-lending partnerships with 6 banks and financial
institutions. For home loans, we have partnered with
Central Bank of India, Yes Bank, Indian Bank and Punjab
& Sind Bank for co-lending, while for secured MSME
loans, we have partnered with RBL Bank, Central Bank of
India, Canara Bank and Punjab & Sind Bank. We have
chosen our partners very strategically such that the co-
lending partnership will also be beneficial to them,
fulfilling their requirements in terms of the type of
assets, yield, geographical penetration etc. that they are
looking for, so as to ensure that the co-lending
partnership is mutually beneficial and long lasting.
Disbursals through the co-lending model significantly
picked up from the third quarter of the year, after the
markets fully opened up following repeated COVID-19
related lockdowns, and through our asset-light model,
whichisa combination of co-lending and sell down.

With the turnaround in the real estate sector and on the
back of improved accessibility to funding, your Company
is back to being among the top four mortgage
originators within the HFC space. To take full advantage
of the favourable landscape in the housing sector, we
added close to 1,200 employees and opened 28
branches, on a net basis, during FY 2021-22. The new
technology-enabled smart branches are being opened
in Tier-3 and Tier-4 towns, under our Smart City Home
Loan and Smart City LAP loans segments, to cater to the
people from Bharat who dream of owning their own
home, but are credit underserved due to sparse
availability of lenders at such locations.

Fortress Balance Sheet

We continued with our endeavour of creating a fortress
balance sheet through maintaining a strong capital
position, healthy liquidity on balance sheet, adequate
provisioning pool and a well-matched ALM.

- Strong Capital Position: Your Company's capital
position improved during the year with its capital
adequacy at a consolidated level at 32.6% and Tier 1 at
27.2% at the end of the year. Our net gearing further
improved to 2.6x. With the Company having shifted to
anasset-light business model, | expect the net gearing to
stabilize at 2.5x levels.

- Healthy Liquidity: The Company raised liquidity of close
to X 25,000 Crores during the year, from various
domestic and foreign banks and financial institutions as

well as retail investors through NCD issues. Retail NCD
issues will now be a regular perpetual source of fund
raising for the Company, and will lead to greater
'‘granularisation' and 'retailisation' of its liability
franchise. Your Company's Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)
stood comfortably at 219% at the end of FY2021-22,
againstaregulatory requirement of 50%.

- Matched ALM: Your Company continued to deploy its
excess liquidity so as to ensure that its ALM is optimally
matched. During the year, we had a large bond
repayment of 6,576 Cr falling due in September 2021.
We successfully repaid these monies, through proactive
management of ALM, whereby, we had already
repurchased X 4,340 Cr of maturing bonds by May 2021
itself, utilizing our excess liquidity. We also voluntarily
created areserve fund for repayment of our USD 350 Min
of Dollar bonds falling due in May 2022, wherein, the
Company periodically transferred the total maturity
proceeds of these bonds, in four tranches of 25% each,
to a debt repayment trust, managed by IDBI Trustee,
which was ultimately utilized towards scheduled
redemption of these bonds. The Company will continue
to undertake such proactive management of ALM by
utilizing its strong capital position and comfortable
levels of liquidity to provide comfort and confidence to
its bond holders and further strengthen the Company's
credentials.

- Adequate Provisioning Pool: Your Company has built
up a strong provisioning pool of X 1,645 Crores on
balance sheet, which is over two times of the regulatory
requirement and equivalent to a healthy 2.8% of our
loan book.

Institutionalization of the Company

We began the process of institutionalizing the Company
2 years back with an aim to transform it into a Board-led
professionally managed Company with best-in-class
corporate governance. Towards this end, the Founder,
Mr. Sameer Gehlaut, in 2020, relinquished the
Chairmanship of the Board, and which is now assumed
by Mr. S.S. Mundra, ex-Deputy Governor of the RBI.
Further, the Board was strengthened through the
induction of new independent directors such as Mr. A
Siddharth, ex-partner Deloitte Haskins & Sells for 30+
years, who now Chairs the Audit Committee. Other
independent directors like Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra
(ex-MD & CEO, Bank of India); Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha
Misra (Retd. Supreme Court Judge); and Mr. Satish
Chand Mathur, IPS (ex-Director General of Police,
Maharashtra) were also inducted into the board. We
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rationalised board committees to tighten board
oversight, with all key committees such as Audit, Risk
Management, ESG being chaired by independent
directors with relevant experience. The Board now has
regular and direct oversight on all key areas of executive
operations.

In December 2021, as a further step towards
institutionalizing the Company, Mr. Gehlaut reduced his
stake in the Company, which was bought by marquee
global institutions such as Blackstone, ADIA and others.
Post this, in March 2022, Mr. Gehlaut stepped down
from the Board of the Company and submitted request
for de-promoterization of himself and other promoter
group companies. The de-promoterization has been
approved by the Board, the shareholders, as well as the
lead lender of our working capital lender consortium. |
expect the entire process to be completed within
Calendar Year 2022, subject to receipt of requisite
approvals.

In April 2022, we have inducted Mr. B.C. Patnaik, the
Managing Director of the Life Insurance Corporation of
India, onto the Board of the Company, as a nominee
director of LIC, which is the largest institutional
shareholder and the largest bondholder of the
Company. With the induction of Mr. Patnaik, majority
(60%) of your Company's Board now comprises of
Independent Directors, in-line with globally accepted
and followed good corporate governance practices.

Credit Rating

Continuing with the positive momentum of FY 2020-21,
your Company, in FY 2021-22, received revision in rating
outlook to 'Stable' from domestic rating agencies ICRA
and Brickwork and International rating agency Moody's.
The turnaround in the Company's rating trajectory is a
firm validation of the management's efforts over the
past 2 years in creating a fortress balance sheet, the
Company's shift towards a retail-focused tech-enabled
asset-light business model and the Company's
transformation towards a Board managed
professionally runinstitution.

Successful execution and achievement of stated goals of
last year has rejuvenated the management to get
aggressive in their approach towards business in the
coming year. We have laid out broad areas of work
where we will be focussing on achieving certain specific
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targets. The areas of focus for FY 2022-23 would be:
1.Scaling up the Retail Asset-Light Business

2.0perationalization of AIF Platform for Wholesale
Loans

3.Continuing Institutionalization of the Company

Scaling up the Retail Asset-Light Business

| believe the real estate cycle has completed its
recovery phase and is now in the expansion phase,
which will continue for the next 3 — 4 years. With
strong macroeconomic factors supporting demand
and supply increasing commensurately catalysed
through supportive regulatory policies, | believe the
next few years are going to be very favourable for the
housingfinance sector. We have prepared ourselves to
take full advantage of this opportunity, having
successfully laid the foundation of our asset-light
businessmodelinFY2021-22.

On the co-lending side, our intended partnerships are
now in place and disbursals under the model are
increasing quarter-on-quarter. Tech integration with 2
partners is already complete, and within FY 2022-23,
tech-integration with remaining partners will be
completed as well. The scalability of this model is now
well established, and which is evident by the fact that
various banks are lining up to establish co-lending
relationships with multiple HFCs and NBFCs, with the
banks themselves also making huge investments in
implementing the technology and digital platforms for
co-lending. For FY 2022-23, we have committed demand
for disbursing X 15,000 Crores of retail loans through co-
lending with our partners banks. On the sell-down side,
our partners continue to vie to purchase our retail loan
book, having witnessed the performance of our pools
purchased by them over the years.

Together, through the two models, we are on track to
disburse X 15,000 Crores retail loans in FY 2022-23 and
scale it up further to X 20,000 Crores in FY 2023-24. |
believe the consolidation phase of our Assets Under
Management (AUM) has ended, and we have formed a
base for a 10% growth in AUM for FY 2022-23 and 15%
for FY 2023-24. We will achieve this by continuing to
invest in people, technology, and opening new branches
in Tier-3 and Tier-4 towns — serving the credit-
underserved Bharat, to effectively scale up the retail
asset-light business model.
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Operationalization of AIF Platform for Wholesale Loans

Havingoperationalized the retail co-lending model,
our focus in FY 2022-23 would be to now
operationalizethewholesale co-lendingthroughan
AIF platformin partnership with 3 global real estate
focused funds. The platform will focus on lending to
commercial real estate to tap the Lease Rental
Discounting opportunity, construction finance for
residential and commercial projects, investing in
stressed asset opportunities and providing
mezzanine finance wherever the opportunity
presents itself. We plan to disburse X 10,000 Cr
throughthesefundsinFY2022-23 andscaleitupto
X 15,000 Cr in FY 2023-24. Of the loans disbursed
throughtheAlF, our participationwouldonlybe 5% -
10%, which will remain on our balance sheet, while
we will earn processing fees and annual
management fees on the entire amount disbursed.
This platform will generate an RoA of 5.0%+ for the
Company,aidingour profitability.

Continuing Institutionalization of the Company

We will continue to work on taking further concrete
steps toward institutionalizing the Company. Subject to
receipt of regulatory approvals, we expect to conclude
the process of depromoterization of Mr. Gehlaut in CY
2022. We are also engaging with a few marquee global
investors to bring them in as strategic investors into the
Company. This will help bolster capital, as well as
support our credit ratings. Subsequently, such
significant institutional investors will also be offered
board seats, thus bringing direct institutional oversight
into the operations of the Company.

Together, the above three areas of focus will govern the
way we operate from FY 2022-23 and beyond, as we look
to regain our position as one of the largest originator of
retail loans in the non-banking space in the country and
establish ourselves as a Board-driven professionally-
managed Company.

In our last year’s Annual Report, we had laid down
objective targets for the Company over the next 5 years
and 10 years to improve upon its operations such that
they adhere to ESG best practices. | am happy to report
that we have started taking operational steps within the
organization as well as in partnership with external
parties towards achieving these goals. To enable all

stakeholders to do an independent review of the
Company’s sustainability initiatives, we have enabled a
link on the Company’s website which details all the steps
being taken by the Company towards achieving its ESG
objectives.

To adopt the best-in-class corporate governance
practices, your Company has voluntarily applied to be a
part of NSE Prime — a set of norms that prescribes
Corporate Governance standards stricter than extant
requirements for NSE listed companies.

We have also constituted an ESG committee, chaired by
Justice Gyan Sudha Misra, retired judge of the Supreme
Court of India, to review the ESG initiatives being taken
by the Company in partnership with S&P and
Sustainalytics.

Adoption of best ESG practices has now been ingrained
in our day to day operations and will increasingly
command higher focus from all individuals of the
Company.

Before | conclude, | would like to thank our Board,
management team and our employees for their hard
work and loyalty for standing by the Company during its
tough phase. The Company's new business model has
now stabilized and is scaling up, and this would not have
been possible without the innovative thinking, hunger
for success and conscientious dedication from its
employees to achieve the Company's goals, which has
been at the cornerstone of Indiabulls' resurgence over
the past year. | would also like to express my gratitude
and appreciation to our customers, lenders, investors,
partners, regulatory authorities and most importantly,
all our shareholders for reposing their faith in the
Company's management and its long-term growth
journey.

Gagan Banga
Vice Chairman, MD & CEO
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SUSTAINABLE AND RESPONSIBLE

GROWTH

At Indiabulls Housing Finance, we have embedded
ESG as a sense of responsibility that continues to
shape our decisions, business strategy, and firm-wide
goals and commitments. ESG is ingrained in the way
we think and operate and is a core part of our culture.
We are committed to growing our business in a
responsible manner, as we continue to respect the
environment and strengthen our sustainability
efforts. Our Company has worked tirelessly to fulfil
our most fundamental responsibility: supporting the
environment, our employees, customers, and
stakeholders. We also continue to advance financial
inclusion in underserved communities, expanding the
scope of our work to areas such as healthcare,
education, affordable housing and basic
infrastructure.

Environmental impact has become an important area
of focus for organisations across sectors, particularly
as climate related risks are increasingly becoming an
important area of focus. With the future in mind, and
through our expanded ESG program, we've
accelerated efforts to significantly mitigate our
impact on the environment and be carbon neutral by
FY32. As we continue to evolve our ESG priorities to
address ever-changing realities around the world, we
remain committed to our laid targets and sharing our
progress — as maintaining integrity, fairness and
transparency are important values for us in our
engagement with our stakeholders

The BRSR is our voluntary effort towards enhancing
and strengthening our ESG disclosure and is our first
attempt at releasing the BRSR (Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report). We intend
toshare our ESG journey and key learnings with all our
stakeholders through this report.

While many of the steps that are embedded in
everyday operations of the Company are in keeping
with ESG best practices, this year [FY23],in addition to
achieving the committed targets of the forthcoming
years, the Company will also implement leading data
privacy and information security practices to achieve
ISO 270001:2013 certification and will ensure
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compliance with RBI's Master Direction on
“Information Technology Frameworks for NBFCs”. By
doing so, the Company will be able to maintain the
confidence and loyalty of its customers, as well as
provide its stakeholders with a transparent and
independently ratified view of the company's
operations and ESG perspective. In this section the
Company is also laying out where it stands on key ESG
aspects, and restating its objective targets for FY27
and FY32

Achievements in FY22

Cyber Security Maturity Assignment [CSMA]:
Cyber-security gap analysis and risk
management

Formation of ESG Committee, chaired by
Justice Gyan Sudha Misra, to oversee the ESG
initiatives taken by the Company and its
effective implementation

Voluntary application to NSE Prime, a set of
norms that prescribes Corporate
Governance standards stricter than extant
requirements for NSE listed companies

Partnership with ESG World platform for a
live link on Company's website
(

) detailing the
sustainability related initiatives being taken
by the Company

“.Q,'.':‘::



https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/investor-relations/esg-world
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/investor-relations/esg-world
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The Company is committed to reducing the environmental impact of its operations and continues to make
changes to its processes to optimise resource usage and reduce wastage. Optimal technology deployment,
reduction in paper consumption, reduction in water consumption, and cutting down on travel and fuel
consumption in general, are key considerations that business managers across teams and locations bear in
mind in the conduct of the Company's operations, processes and day-to-day activities.

The Company's Environmental Management System (EMS) which is ISO 14001:2015 certified, focuses on
assessing the environmental cost of the Company's services and activities, and seeks to reduce or eliminate
the negative impact and increase the positive effects. ISO 14001 is an iterative framework that helps ensure
adherence to environmental performance standards and continuously improve upon it. The framework helps
the Company document its processes from an environmental perspective and more importantly, gives it a
means to measure and minimize the environmental impact of its
operations. The Company is also collaborating with partners that
provide solutions for conservation of energy and resources.

The Company has engaged CERE [Centre of
Environmental Research and Education] to assess .
its current environmental footprint.
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Climate action is at the heart of IBH's business
strategy and it recognizes its corporate responsibility
to address global challenges such as climate change.
By absorbing new technologies, including clean
technology, promoting energy efficient equipment,
and conserving energy, the Company strives to
reduce its greenhouse gas emissions and energy
consumption by a significantamount.

As part of IBH's efforts to reduce climate change, we
have implemented a number of good actions, such as
turning off the lights in the office at night, slightly
lowering the air conditioning, or taking devices off the
plugs when they are not needed, and encouraging
employees to take public transportation or carpool
with colleagues living nearby.

The Company's Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions during
the year were 0.58 MTCO,e per rupee of turnover and
Scope 3 GHG emissions were 0.11 MTCO,e per rupee
of turnover, at a standalone entity level. IBH has
engaged CERE to measure the Company'sScope 1,2 &
3 emissions on yearly basis and suggest measures for
improvement and undertake training of employees
on thisfront.

The Company has committed to reduce its scope 1
and 2 GHG emissions by 25% by FY27 & 30% by FY32
and reduce its scope 3 GHG emissions by 25% by FY27
& 35% by FY32.

Amongst its peers, the Company has taken the lead in
introducing an end-to-end online home loan
application and fulfilment platform “eHome Loans”,
for both its customers and its customer-facing
employees. eHome Loans has helped slash paper
consumption and has done away with the need for
physical transportation and storage of document
files. As the platform has gained traction, in the last
three years, our printing and stationery cost per
eHome Loan file has reduced by ~65%. The company
continues to focus on improving process efficiencies
to further reduce this expense and is also investing in

training of its employees to encourage a larger
proportion of customers to use the application. The
Company strives to increase the digital home loans
application share inits sourcing pie. Digital home loan
application increased from 30% in FY21 to 37% in
FY22 of IBH's retail loan sourcing. The Company
targets to increase this further to 55% by FY27 and to
75% by FY32.

The application not only provides an end-to-end
solution for new customers looking to avail aloan, it is
also a service platform for existing customers. ~80%
(by volume) of the information or documents sought
by customers regarding their loan, is now available
through the platform —these service requests used to
earlier come on telephone calls or customers used to
visitthe branchin person. Similarly, ~60% (by volume)

of the services required by the customer post
disbursement can be requested through the
application. These include services where earlier
physical documents like SoA (Statement of Accounts)
or Interest Certificate were printed and mailed to the
customer. In order to promote the use of the
application, the Company has invested in educating
customers on these services and aims to increase the
number of service requests through digital mediums
from the present 30% [FY22: 20%] to 50% by FY27 and
t0 80% by FY32.

The Company continuously works at improving its
processes and ways of operating to reduce the impact
on the environment by optimizing the usage of
resources and reducing waste generation.
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Efficiency in modes of communication

The Company has cut down its paper-based
communication with its stakeholders [customers,
regulators, investors, lenders, employees etc.] by up
to 70% in the last 5 years by effective use of emails,
soft copies of documents and other digital modes.
The Company's employee portal 'inet', which is
accessible to all employees, is leveraged to ensure all
relevant communication reaches employees through
a single channel. Employees are also trained on email
etiquettes such as use of compression tools to reduce
email size, regular cleaning and maintenance of
mailing lists, marking emails only to essential people
etc.

Steps have also been taken to use paperless means of
communication with its shareholders, vendors and
customers. For instance, soft copies of the annual
report 2020-21 along with the notice convening the
16" Annual General Meeting with its Corrigendum,
the Extra-ordinary General Meeting Notice, and

{11
o
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dividend unpaid reminder letters were sent
electronically to 19,36,722 shareholders so as to
minimize the usage of paper.

The Company's initiative on digitization has led to the
creation of a Customer Portal where customers can
access details related to their loan on their laptops or
mobile devices. E-receipts against customer
payments have ensured that we issue receipts either
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in the form of SMS or e-mail thus saving on paper.
Over 99% of the Company's customers now repay
their loans through electronic modes of payment,
phasing out physical cheques

Energy Efficiency

The Company has undertaken initiatives and energy
efficient measures at its office premises such as use of
LED light fittings. As committed last year, CFL and
older types of light fittings have been replaced by LED
light fittings in 80% of our offices by the end of FY22.
We are confident and on course of achieving the goal
of fitting LED lightings in 100% of our offices by the
endof FY23.

In many upcountry locations of the Company, where
power supply is unreliable and is not round-the-clock,
diesel power generators are used. The Company is
exploring other environmentally friendly back-up
power generation solutions such as solar and storage
batteries, and also implementing means of reducing
power consumption when the supply is from diesel
powered generators. The Company has installed a
solar power panel with a capacity of 10 KW at its
Chandigarh branch. An average of 40 units of
electricity is produced each day by this solar panel.
Furthermore, the Company is assessing more such
locations for installation of solar panels in the coming
fiscal year to reduce dependence on non-renewable
sources of energy.

The Company'stargetis to reduce diesel consumption
for power generation by 40% by FY27 and by 75% by
FY32. If efficient sources of power storage, such as
battery banks, are available in the next few years at
reasonable cost, the Company will completely phase
out usage of diesel generators.

The Company is collaborating with partners that
provide solutions for conservation of energy and
resources. The Company's Corporate Office in
Mumbai is LEED Gold Certified. The Company
incrementally aims that 10% of its offices by FY27 will
either be in a green buildings' premise or will be fully
powered by renewable energy sources.

Travel and Commute
In a bid to reduce the Company's carbon footprint,
over the last 5 years, video conference systems have
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been set up at key office locations to cut down on
intra-city travel.

Reduce, reuse and recycle to minimize waste,
including e-waste

Besides the initiatives around reduction in paper use,
the company believes in creating a cultural
environment of consciousness.

The Company has adopted a “No Single use Plastic”
policy and, as an example, has replaced plastic bottles
with central water systems in pantries and glass
bottles/ jars. Everyday-use office stationery is now
made of recycled paper. Employees have also been
trained on waste segregation and all offices now
segregate waste, recycle the recyclable waste, and
targetreducing non-recyclable waste.

The metro cities have tied up with recycling
companies to recycle all recyclable waste in that
region. Also, for e-waste generated by the Company,
tie-ups with a handful of green certified recycling
vendors have been done to centrally manage and
recycle the pan-India e-waste. The company aims to
recycle over 90% of all waste in tier-1 cities by end of
FY25.

Company is extending loans to individuals and
families for purchase of homes; business loans to
micro, small and medium enterprises; and loans to

developers for construction of houses. Interest rates
and facilities for this loan are directly tied to
supporting environmentally and socially sustainable
economic activity. As a lender of size and reach across
the country, through its selection of customers and
customer segments, and terms of the loans, it can
influence beneficial environmental and social impact
of the loans it extends. The innovative approach of
linking ESG with the funding helps both the planet as
well as growing our balance sheet. Going forward,
sustainability focused financing will play an important
role among borrowers and lenders, assisting the
country's long-term and sustainable progress.

While there are credit policies in place to exclude
certain sectors on the basis of their risk profile or
exclude loans to businesses that do not have strong
governance practices, the Company has also updated
its policies to exclude businesses that have a negative
environmental and social impact. For example,
companies in the supply chain of fossil fuels or those
that generate significant amounts of waste/ pollution
are not extended loans. Similarly, Companies that
harm animals or belong to sectors that have poor
human rights track record are also not given loans.

Sectors/ developers that have a positive environmental
and social impact are incentivised. For example, real
estate developers that promote the use of innovative
technologies such as green certified buildings and
other energy efficient measures for construction of
their projects will be given lending rate discounts.
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A.Leverage ontechnology

e Share of e-home loan applications-55% by FY27 and 75% by FY32

¢ Fulfilling service requests of customers through digital mediums-50% by FY27 and
80% by FY32

¢ Digitalinitiatives for customer/ stakeholderinteraction through efficient modes of
communication

B. Reduce environmental footprint

¢ Reductioninscope 1and 2* GHG emissions-25% by FY27,30% by FY32
e Reductioninscope 3* GHG emissions-25% by FY27,35% by FY32

¢ Recycle over 90% of all waste in tier-1 cities by end of FY27

e LEDlightingin 100% of offices by FY23

¢ Renewable powered offices to be 10% of all offices by FY27

e Plant1lakhtreesbyFY27and 2.5 lakhtrees by FY32

¢ “NoSingle use Plastic” policy has been adopted since FY18

C. Responsible lending

¢ Lendingrate discount for customers who have a positive environment and social
impact

e Excludelendingto customers who do not meet ESR framework criteria of the
company

*Our Scope 1 and 2 emissions include emissions from fuel consumption in own
vehicles, emissions due to fuel use in DG sets and purchased electricity.

AQur Scope 3 emissions include business travel, employee commute, and paper, waste.
The above targets have been taken considering FY19 as the base year
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Our social initiatives comprises of the steps we take towards
becoming a preferred employer for our employees, creating
superior experiences for our customers and towards
developing stronger sustainable communities.
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Employee

Employees are the Company's most valuable assets
and helping them realise their full potential is a
mutually beneficial endeavour. The Human Resource
function looks after employee recruitment, training,
performance management and overall well-being.
We believe in employee empowerment and our
efforts are focused on creating a happy and healthy
work environment. Our people have been and will
continue to be our core strength

a o

i. Supporting the Employees during COVID-19

The first quarter of the Fiscal Year 2021-22 was
plagued by the second wave of the COVID-19
pandemic. Post the lifting of restrictions, once our
offices were active, the Company prioritised the well-
being and safety of its employees and took necessary
precautions at its offices to ensure safety of its
employees. With most services being available
online, efforts were made to educate customers so as
to minimise visits of customers to the branches unless
itisabsolutely essential.

A QRT (Quick Response Team) at the Company level is
available to provide any support required at the
Company's branches or to its employee. QRTs ensure
that all business units have business continuity and
incident management plans in place. 100% of the
company's employees are now vaccinated against
COVID-19.
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ii. Employment atIBH

The Company employed 4,603 employees as at 31"
March, 2022. The Company has always advocated a
business environment that favours equal employment
opportunities for all without any discrimination with
respect to caste, creed, gender, race, religion,
disability or sexual orientation. The Company provides
a workplace environment that is safe, hygienic,
humane and which upholds the dignity of its
employees. The Company does not use child labour
directly or indirectly in any of its offices. As at March
31, 2022, the male: female ratio was 79:21 for the
Company's managerial staff. It is the Company's target
to get this to a 70:30 male: female ratio by FY27 and to
60:40 (or better in favour of female employees) by
FY32.

All Senior
96%
21% G 4%
Middle Junior
93% .
[ Male Female

The Company has always focused on giving
opportunity to young talent. The average age of the
employees at the Company is 35 years. As at March
31, 2022, 53% of the employees were under 35 years
of age, up from 48% as at March 31, 2021. The
Company's target is to maintain this average age
through FY27 and Fy32.

3%

44% 53%

Upto35 [36-50 M Above 50 years

The Company has a “Career Management Program”
to develop in-house talent. Existing employees are
always preferred to fill new job openings. In the last
fouryears, on an average ~30% employees were given
managerial roles internally and the Company would
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like to focus on maintaining this number at a
minimum of 40% going forward.

Performance management system in line with our
Reward and Recognition policy helps us in driving a
high performance culture. The average vintage of the
senior management team is 10.1 years, middle
management is 10.2 years and junior team is 4.1
years.

iii. Training and Development of Employees

The Company believes in the holistic development of
its employees. The Company fosters a learning
culture that supports development of its employees
and provides a platform for meaningful and
purposeful careers.

Job specific knowledge gaps, skills and competencies
are identified during the performance appraisal
process. Through constant learning and development
interventions, the Company ensures that its
employees are adequately trained in functional and
behavioural skills to sustain high standards of service.
The Company nominates its employees for self-
development and leadership programs for further
enhancing their competencies and skill-sets.

Digitization programs undertaken by the Company
has enabled creation of an environment that fosters
learning and growth even remotely. This readiness
proved to be very useful during the pandemic as
training and development programs continued.
Online training of over 6,686 man hours was
conducted throughout the year spanning across 128
online sessions. To train the newly joining millennial
young talent, the Company has partnered with
reputed vendors to create “gamified” e-learning
modules.

As a Company, we realize the importance of
continuous learning and regular workshops are held
covering key processes and procedures like customer
service standards, underwriting process, collection,
credit disbursals, treasury functions and ESG
initiatives of the Company.

Learning and development needs are also identified
on the basis of internal audit reports as well as
customer and employee feedback. On-the-job

training, job rotation or training through various
programs — internal, external are offered to
employeesto upgrade their competencies.

The “Good to Go Buddy” and mentoring programs
formulated by the Company ensures that all new
employees integrate into its working culture and
value systems. Each new employee is mapped to a
buddy and a mentor to help them understand and
blend with its existing employees in a seamless
manner.

iv. Long term and Short term performance linked
reward and recognition program
The Company has always believed in rewarding and
recognizing consistent performers. These rewards
and recognition could be financial or non-financial in
nature. Performance is measured on key KPIs which
include business metrics as well as initiatives taken
towards customer delight or ESG in line with the goals
of the Company.

e Special Reward Programs and ESOP distribution/
Share appreciation rightsis linked to long term
performance measures which are aligned to the
Company's goals.

e Performance linked incentive plan were introduced
duringthe yeartoincentivise the employees for
their hard work

v. Employee Engagement and Feedback

The Company firmly believes that highly engaged
employees are more productive. The Company
encourages its employees to regularly participate in
sports, outings, get-togethers, milestone celebrations,
festivities, and team building programs. The Company
has a separate budgetary allocation for this purpose

Employees have been sensitized on environmental
impact of various aspects of the Company's
businesses and also of human activities in general,
and are provided with motivational “do's and don'ts”
that they and their family can implementin day to day
lives. Employees are encouraged to share any
inspirational initiatives they took at the branch or at
home to inspire others as well. They have also been
keptinformed about various steps the Company takes
towards social causes and are encouraged to
contribute to CSR initiatives monetarily by voluntarily
contributing funds from their salaries.
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The Company believes in smooth and effective
communication to ensure better flow of information
and understanding amongst its employees which
enables better communication, teamwork and
transparency within the organization. Any employee,
irrespective of hierarchy, has access to the members
of senior management for sharing ideas, suggestions
or even personal grievances.

The Company has strengthened its vigilance
mechanism by adopting a Whistle Blower Policy. The
said policy which has been uploaded on the
Company's website, and also communicated to all its
employees, aims to promote good governance, instil
faith and empower all stakeholders to fearlessly voice
their concerns.

vi. Creating a diverse and inclusive work
Environment

For IBH, safety of its employees is of paramount
importance and as a good corporate citizen, it is
committed to ensuring safety of all its employees at
the work place.

The Company has zero tolerance for discrimination or
harassment in any form, on the basis of race, colour,
religion, sex, age, disability, marital status and sexual
orientation. All new employees are given training on
code of conduct, which includes our approach to
inclusion and non-discrimination as part of the
orientation program.

The Company has formulated and adopted a Gender
Sensitization program and has constituted an Ethics
Cell and Complaint Committee. The Company has
zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the
workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder.

Also, to ensure confidentiality, a dedicated e-mail
address has been created for employees to report
complaints pertaining to sexual harassment at the
workplace. The complaints reported on the
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designated e-mail are accessible only by the Anti-
Sexual Harassment (ASH) committee. Mechanisms
have been established to ensure that complaints
received by the Ethical Cell are dealt with promptly,
sensitively, confidentially and in the most judicious
and unbiased manner. During the period under
review, no complaints were received. The Company
ensures that a gender inclusive environment is
provided. To create an inclusive work culture for
women, the awareness for the same is spread
through special workshops and seminars.

Wherever required, women employees have been
provided with laptops to enable them to work from
home. Various activities and initiatives are
undertaken round the year: distribution of health
check-up vouchers, self-defence training sessions for
women employees, seminars on mental and physical
well-being etc.

vii. Welfare programs and Work-Life Balance

The Company's policies are structured around
promoting work-life balance which ensures improved
employee productivity at work. We give our
employees the option of flexible working hours
through our Flexi-time policy to enable them strike a
better work-life balance. This culture permits our
employees to pursue their aspirations, passion and
shape their professional and personal growth.

A mediclaim facility borne by the Company is
provided to employees who have to go through any
medical exigencies or hospitalization. All of our
employees are also covered under accident
insurance.

Also, all our female employees are entitled to paid
maternity leave for up to 26 weeks, including both
pre-delivery and post-delivery leaves. Commissioning
mothers and adopting mothers are entitled to a
maternity leave of up to 12 weeks. We provide our
employees with 32 annual leaves and also have a
mandatory leave policy mandating employees to avail
of continuous 10 days of leave in a year. Male
employees too are entitled to a paid paternity leave
forupto 10 days.
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I. Inclusive Credit Approach

The Company is aligned with the Government's vision
for financial inclusion. It has been the Company's
endeavour toincrease home ownershipinIndiaandis
particularly focused on the mid-income and low-
income Affordable Housing Segment.

The Company has served over 1.2 million customers
and understands that the purchase of a house is the
single largest investment that a person makes in his or
her lifetime. Therefore, its key focus has been to
provide a seamless experience to its customers in the
Affordable-Housing segment in urban and semi-
urban markets.

The Company has adopted a “Phygital” model which
entails a mix of 'physical' and 'digital' means of loan
fulfilment and ongoing loan account management.
The Company offers fully digital, online loan
fulfilment for specific target customer segments
which are well versed with technology, while at the
same time continuing to serve other customers
throughits branch model. The “Phygital” strategy also
helps drive expansion into geographies with low
competitive intensity, contributing to better margins
at low cost-to-income without dilution in credit
standards. The Company is opening technology-
enabled smart branches in Tier-3 and Tier-4 towns,
under its Smart City Home Loan and Smart City LAP
loans segments, to cater to the people from 'Bharat’
who dream of owning their own home, but are credit
underserved due to sparse availability of lenders at
such locations. In Fiscal Year 2021-22, the Company
opened 36 new branches, mostlyin such towns, and is
firmly on way to achieve a target of opening 100 new
branches by Fy25.

The Company's efforts are also directed towards
reduction of its environmental footprint by
promoting the fully digital eHome Loans platform for
its existing customers.

Loans to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
The Company also extends loans to small business
owners and micro, small and medium enterprises

[MSMEs]. These loans help small business owners
unlock the value of their property by availing loan
against their property; these funds are then used by
the customers for productive deployment in their
businesses

Extending home loans to the priority sector [as
defined by the banking regulator the Reserve Bank of
India] is a key area of focus for the Company. The
Reserve Bank of India had revised the housing loan

limits under priority sector lending from X 28 lakh to X
35 lakh in metropolitan cities and from X 20 lakh to X
25 lakh in other cities. Priority sector lending within
home loans is towards affordable housing, and helps
families purchase their first home, thus helping
address the country's vast housing gap. During Fiscal
Year 2022, 58% of loans, by count, were extended to
customers from Economically Weaker Sections [EWS]
and Low Income Group [LIG]. As the Company opens
new Smart branches in Tier-3 and 4 towns, this
number willincrease further.

Lending to small businesses and micro, small &
medium enterprises [MSMEs] also constitutes
priority sector lending, small businesses and MSMEs
are a vital category accounting for 30% of India's GDP.
They are employment generating engines and
employ about 110 Mn people. Many MSMEs are
viewed as belonging to the “informal/ unorganised”
sector and find it difficult to access efficient finance —
timely finance at reasonable rates. The Company
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offers a means to these small businesses and MSMEs
to unlock the value of their property and avail funding
for their businesses at reasonable 'mortgage-backed
finance' rates. Quick decision making also helps the
Company offer timely financing solutions to these
small businesses. The Company thus provides vital
funding support to the economically and socially
crucial small business and MSME sectors of the
country's economy.

Il. Customer experience and satisfaction

A 'customer first' approach is at the core of our
operations. Along with our focus on customer
experience, we also strive to ensure transparency in
our operations and communication. All customer
complaints received across branches/ front channels
are managed through a centralised complaints
management system for tracking and timely
resolution.During Fiscal Year 2021-22, 95% of
customer complaints were resolved within the
regulatory prescribedturn-around-time [TAT], and
90% of respondents rated customer satisfaction as
"above expectation” in the customer satisfaction
survey. We continue to take steps to ensure customer
satisfaction, and aim to increase it from current 90%
to 95% by FY25. The Company has a well-defined
grievance handling mechanism. It ensures that the
redressal is not only prompt but satisfactory to the
customer. For this the redressal team is well trained
and undergoes continuous coaching to ensure that
they are not only clear in their redressal but are also
patient and sensitive with customers who may not be
techsavvy and require extra support.

The Company is committed to the vision of inclusive
growth. As a responsible corporate citizen, the
Company strives to positively impact communities,
and leverages its reach and resources to empower the
underprivileged. During the year, we furthered the
reach and impact of our Corporate Social
Responsibility [CSR] initiatives through our social
development arm—Indiabulls Foundation [IBF].

IBF undertakes a wide gamut of activities in the areas
of Health, Education, and Women Empowerment.
The Foundation connects philanthropic opportunities
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with demonstrated needs, and mobilises resources to
create programmes that have tangible outcomes and
enable the marginalised sections of society to
improve their lives.

Following is the list of initiatives Indiabulls Housing
Finance Limited has initiated in FY22 and continues to
expand:

1. Jan Swasthya Kalyan Vahika (JSK)- Mobile Medical
Vans

2.Indiabulls Foundation Charitable Clinics

3.IBF Scholorship

4. Gramin Yuva Kendra for girls

1. Jan Swasthya Kalyan Vahika (JSK) - Mobile
Medical Vans

Janswasthya Kalyan Vahika is a mobile community
healthcare project serving the poor in the urban
underprivileged areas. This initiative has successfully
diagnosed and treated more than 3,75,000 patients
for the period between April 2021 and March 2022
taking the cumulative patient count to more than
56,15,000till 31" March 2022, since inception.

Baseline Survey and Community Need Assessments
were conducted prior to initialization of the projects
in urban areas. The healthcare needs identified from
both the geographical areas, differed in nature. It was
identified that despite adequate healthcare options
available in urban areas, socio-economic status of
people residing there makes healthcare less
affordable for them. Indiabulls Foundation through
its Janswasthya Kalyan Vahika aimed at bridging this
gap in the urban health care and providing quality
healthcaretoall.

JSK is a door-step model where the van goes to the
beneficiary's village. The program focuses on
providing wide range of preventive and curative
primary healthcare. Each van runs 6 days a week on a
rotational basis and caters to approximately 15-16
locations per week and diagnoses approximately 100-
150 patients per day.

Inthe FY 2021-22, Indiabulls Foundation operated 31
Mobile Medical vans in Mumbai, Thane and Raigad
districts of Maharashtra.

2. Indiabulls Foundation Charitable Clinics
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Indiabulls Foundation Charitable Medical Clinics cater
to the health care needs of urban poor, underserved
community, providing medical consultancy, health
check-ups and discounted medicines. Indiabulls

Foundation operated from 2 medical clinics in
Mumbai that provided primary, preventive and
curative health care services to weaker and

underprivileged patients of urban slums. These clinics
have successfully diagnosed and treated more than
4,539 patients for the period between April 2021 and
March 2022 taking the cumulative patient count to
more than 9,23,545 patients till 31"March 2022, since
inception.

These clinics provide diagnosis by a professional
MBBS registered doctor with counselling &
discounted medicines given. Qualified medical
personnel and six days open a week operation
ensures timely and effective health care to weaker
sections of society.

3. IBF Scholarships

Indiabulls Foundation Scholarship Program aims to
encourage and promote quality higher education
among meritorious students from economically
challenged families to nurture their careers.
Indiabulls Foundation understands that a large
number of deserving students who have an urge to
pursue their higher education are unable to do so
owing to mainly financial constraints. In view of this,
Indiabulls Foundation offers scholarships to
deserving students to pursue their education after
12" standard and launch a sustainable career in
various educational fields of the student's choice.

IBF through its scholarship programme has helped
many students gain the confidence to achieve greater
success in their careers. 378 students in the financial
year 2021-22 and 1,853 students since inception have
been awarded IBF scholarship for their higher
education.

4. Gramin Yuva Kendra for girls

Indiabulls Foundation wanted to support and
encourage young girls of rural India with the aim of
making them self-dependent. IBF believes that
identifying and encouraging potential in girls of rural
Indiais the key to building a society where women are
self-dependent and empowered to raise voice against
suppression, fighting for their rights and educate their
coming generations. Doing this can bring about
powerful social change and creates opportunities for
young girls to realize their potential in fulfilling their
dreams & ambitions, claim for gender equality and
eradicate the evils like dowry system from the society.
It will also motivate other girls by setting an example if
someone from their village or society gets selected
for a reputed job. It will be an ongoing process in
which young girls will be identified and made to
appear in competitive exams at National and State
levels, after providing proper guidance through
senior professionals.

Ateam of volunteers constituting retired and working
professionals from different fields, who held
responsible post/ position, was formed to identify the
potential of girl students from rural areas. They guide
the students, suggest books from the library facility
provided, arrange group discussions as well as
conduct mock interviews to help these students
prepare for the exams.

Around 10 students from the programme have been
selected as class 1 officers in IAS, IPS, IRS & other
allied services under UPSC and have cleared state
level exams and hold high posts in state departments.
These officers have now joined the team of
volunteers to motivate the other girl students in their
area by giving motivational speeches in Schools and
Colleges. They also help in identifying the potential
candidates for future batches.
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SOCIAL

A. Employee welfare and experience

Work towards best-in-class employee experience and be recognized as the preferred
employer

Gender diversity— Of the Company's managerial staff?, 30% to be women by FY27
and 40% to be women by FY32

Employee First-40% managerial job openings to be offered first to existing
employees

Continued focus on training and increase hours of training from 22 hours per person
in FY19to 40 hours per person by FY25 and 60 hours per person by FY32

. Financialinclusion and customer first approach

Financial inclusion—Focus on affordable housing and business loans to micro, small
and medium enterprises. 75% retail lending to be towards affordable housing and
priority sector loans.

“Phygital” Strategy—Add 100 branchesin Tier 3and 4 cities by FY25 respectively. 36
branches already openedin FY22.

Drive customer satisfaction* to 95% by FY25

. Community Service (CSR)

Enhance the value of CSR support and continue to make investments across
programmes that we believe in like women empowerment, education, bridging the
gap of basichuman rights needs etc.

#IBH has been certified as “Great Place to Work” in FY19

AComputed by removing Sales and Collections FOS (Feet-on-Street staff)

*Surveys conducted covering all customers who are on-boarded covering satisfaction
around various parameters around application process and service
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At IBH, corporate governance is a reflection of its value system, encompassing its
culture, policies, and relationships with its stakeholders. Integrity and
transparency are key to our corporate governance practices and performance,
and ensure that we gain and retain the trust of our stakeholders at all times. The
independent Board committees engage throughout the year to deliver best-in-
class governance practices and periodically review the policy framework to
maintain its robustness. As part of its commitment to corporate governance, the
Company ensures timely and accurate disclosures in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards [Ind AS], Security and Exchanges Board of India [SEBI],
Reserve Bank of India[RBI] and National Housing Bank [NHB]
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IBH began the process of institutionalizing the
Company 2 year back with an aim to transform it into

a Board-led professionally managed Company with
best-in-class corporate governance. Towards this end,
the Founder, Mr. Sameer Gehlaut, in 2020,
relinquished the Chairmanship of the Board, and
which is now assumed by Mr. S.S. Mundra, ex-Deputy
Governorofthe RBI.

In December 2021, as a further step towards
institutionalizing the Company, Mr. Gehlaut reduced
his stake in the Company, which was bought by
marquee global institutions such as Blackstone, ADIA
and others. Post this, in March 2022, Mr. Gehlaut
stepped down from the Board of the Company and
submitted request for de-promoterization of himself
and other promoter group companies. The de-
promoterization has been approved by the Board, the
shareholders, as well as the lead lender of our
working capital lender consortium. IBH expects the
entire process to be completed within Calendar Year
2022, subject to receipt of requisite approvals.

Over the past 2 years, the Board has been strengthened
through the induction of new independent directors
such as Mr. A Siddharth, ex-partner Deloitte Haskins &
Sells for 30+ years, who now Chairs the Audit
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Committee. Other independent directors like Mr.
Dinabandhu Mohapatra (ex-MD & CEO, Bank of India);
Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd. Supreme Court
Judge); and Mr. Satish Chand Mathur, IPS (ex-Director
General of Police, Maharashtra) were also inducted
into the board.

The Company rationalised board committees to
tighten board oversight, with all key committees such
as Audit, Risk Management, ESG being chaired by
independent directors with relevant experience. The
Board now has regular and direct oversight on all key
areas of executive operations.

In April 2022, IBH has inducted Mr. B.C. Patnaik, the
Managing Director of the Life Insurance Corporation
of India, onto the Board of the Company, as a
nominee director of LIC, which is the largest
institutional shareholder and the largest bondholder

of the Company. With the induction of Mr. Patnaik,
majority (60%), Company’s Board now comprises of
Independent Directors, in-line with globally accepted
andfollowed good corporate governance practices.

Our current statutory auditors are Mazars [through
Indian Member Firm S. N. Dhawan & CO LLP] and
Arora & Choudhary Associates. Prior to this, for well
over a decade, the Company [at a consolidated level]
has had one of the big 4 audit firms as its statutory
auditor. Reputed audit firms serve to ensure
transparency, accountability and proper risk
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assessment and mitigation planning in the best
interest of all stakeholders.

The Company also engages in a credible and
transparent manner with all its stakeholders’ viz.
shareholders, investors, regulators, research

analysts, rating agencies, employees, customers and
channel partners, and clearly communicates its long-
term business strategy. All its actions are governed by
its values and principles, which are reinforced at all
levels of the Company.

The Company has a well-defined risk governance
structure which includes periodic reviews and close
monitoring to enable building a sustainable business
that takes care of the interests of all stakeholders. The
risk management policy lays down guidelines for all
key operational areas. Comprehensive annual risk
review exercises help in continually updating the risk
management policy. The policy also defines role of
the Company’s Risk Management Committee which
oversees all aspects of the business, especially credit

underwriting.

Knowledgeable and trained credit officers are a
lending company’s first line of defence against
business risks. The Company has a well-charted
growth path for credit resources. New recruits are
groomed by senior managers and grow within the
system handling incrementally nuanced cases.
Through this, their credit authorities get enhanced.
Performance of the underwritten portfolio is closely
monitored and constructive training is continuously
imparted.

The Company has adequate system of internal
controls for business processes, with regard to
operations, financial reporting, fraud control,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, etc.
Regular internal audits and checks ensure that
responsibilities are executed effectively. The Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control
systems and from time to time suggests
improvements for strengthening the existing control
system in view of changing business needs.

Information is a valuable asset and information
pertaining to customers is also a great responsibility.
Safeguarding business information and IT Infrastructure
from any kind of cyber security threat is a top priority,
and this is done through effective monitoring and
implementation of risk mitigation measures. Our
Information Technology Policy, Information Security
Management System Framework and Cyber Security
Policy include detailed directions to ensure the
protection of business information at all levels.

Backup and restore policy has been implemented to
safeguard critical data. We undertake vulnerability
assessment and penetration testing regularly through
internal resources as well as external experts to test
and improve the implemented control measures. The
Company’s “Privacy Policy” ensures the protection of
customers’ personal information. The company
explicitly discloses the manner in which customer
information is collected, stored and used. The policy
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also ensures that the usage of customer information
isin compliance with various statutory and regulatory

authorities’ requirements.

Our Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan
ensured that critical business functions were
available to customers even when branches were not
operational during the COVID-19 induced complete
lockdown phase

Towards fulfilment of one of our ESG goal laid out in
FY21 Annual Report, the Company has appointed a
global accredited partner (a Big4 Consultancy Firm) to
perform Cyber Security Maturity Assessment to
benchmark the information & cyber security against
industry standards. Maturity assessment helped the
company in incorporating tactical and strategic
directions for improving the maturity level and
effectively manage cyber risk.

During Fiscal Year 2021-22, the Company also beefed
up the existing management team with new talent in
IT, IT securityand Compliance.

In Fiscal Year 2021-22, IBH constituted an ESG
committee, chaired by Justice Gyan Sudha Misra, to
oversee the ESG initiatives taken by the Company and
its effective implementation.
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IBH has been a part of the FTSE4Good Index Series,
created by the global index and data provider FTSE
Russell, since January 2017. The FTSE4Good Index
Series is designed to measure the performance of
companies demonstrating strong ESG practices. FTSE
Russell evaluations are based on performance in
areas such as Corporate Governance, Health & Safety,
Anti-Corruption and Climate Change. Businesses
included in the FTSE4Good Index Series meet a
variety of environmental, social and governance
criteria.

To adopt the best-in-class corporate governance
practices, IBH has voluntarily applied to be a part of NSE
Prime — a set of norms that prescribes Corporate
Governance standards stricter than extant requirements
for NSE listed companies.
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GOVERNANCE

A. Corporate governance - Strive towards world-class corporate governance

C.

Institutionalization of the Company: Complete the process of de-promoterization,
subject toregulatory approvals

Empowered, diverse and inclusive Board to protect interest of all stakeholders
Ensure robust compliance and integrity practices

Transparent communication by engaging with stakeholders through various
channels

Focus on ESG initiatives and achievements under the guidance of the Board

. Data privacy - Ensure the safety of stakeholder data

Adoptleading data privacy standards across all operations
Focus on best-in-class information security practice

Cutting edge technology implementations forimproving cyber security and

business agility

Mobile Device Management (MDM)/Enterprise Mobility Management(EMM) for
improved security and data protection posture while enabling seamless mobility of
workforce fostering a hybrid work culture

Adoption of Secure Access Secure Edge for seamless network connectivity, mobility
and agility without compromising security.

Advance Analytics and Threat Intel Integrations across security technology stack for
proactive defence
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Seventeenth Annual Report of the Company along with the audited statement of accounts
for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

The first half of the financial year ended March 31, 2022 continued to be marred by the catastrophic economic and social effects
of the COVID-19 pandemic, with the second wave, fueled by the deadly variant ‘Delta’, wreaking havoc in India and the world over.
Fortunately, quick vaccine approvals and expedited implementation of vaccination programmes helped contain the casualties and
curtail the effect of the third wave of the pandemic in the second half of the year.

Favourable government and central bank policies helped the world economy bounce back from the lows of the second wave of
pandemic. However, the global economic recovery started losing momentum in the second half of 2021, in the face of considerable
uncertainty on account of the war in Europe leading to supply chain disruptions and bottlenecks, front-loaded monetary policy
normalisation by central banks across advanced economies and emerging market economies in response to persistently high
inflation and multiple waves of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Notwithstanding the challenges from inflationary pressures, external spillovers and geopolitical risks, the Indian economy remained
on the path of recovery during the year.

For Indiabulls Housing, FY 2021-22 was a year of transition and growth.

The Company smoothly transitioned to its retail asset-light business model — establishing its intended co-lending partnerships and
scaling up disbursals from the second half of the year. The Company also continued with its endeavor of maintaining a fortress
balance sheet supported by strong capital position, healthy liquidity on balance sheet, adequate provisioning buffer and ensuring
a well-matched ALM.

Financial Highlights (Standalone)

The financial highlights of the Company, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, are as under:

Moren 1021
(Xin Crore)

Profit before Depreciation, amortization and impairment expense 1,030.30 1,482.99

Less: Depreciation, amortization and impairment expense 74.40 90.82

Profit Before Tax 955.90 1,392.17

Less: Total Tax expense 259.79 333.71

Profit for the Year 696.11 1,058.46

Add: Brought forward balance” -25.20 369.14

Amount available for appropriation 670.91 1,427.60

Appropriations:

Interim Dividend paid on Equity Shares (X Nil Per Share (Previous Year X 9.00/- Per - 416.11

Share))

Transferred to Reserve | (Special Reserve U/s 29C of the National Housing Bank 139.22 211.69

Act, 1987)

Transferred to Additional Reserve (U/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 525.00 825.00

1987)

Balance of Profit Carried Forward* 6.69 -25.20

#*without adjusting Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) on Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan (net of tax) to retained
earnings
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: FY21-22 (Consolidated)

Particulars d FY 20-21 (IndAS)
Total Revenues (X Crores) 8,993.9 10,030.1
NIl (Total Income - Finance Cost) (X Crores) 2,752.3 3,090.7
PAT (X Crores) 1,177.7 1,201.6
EPS () 26.42 27.72
CRAR% (Standalone) 22.49 22.84

FINANCIALAND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONSOLIDATED)
Business Update

e TheCompanyclosed FY 2021-22 with a balance sheet size of
X 81,973 Crores and total loan assets of X 72,211 Crores.

e Loan book of the Company stood at X 59,333 Crores at the
end of FY 2021-22.

e The Profit after Tax (PAT) of the Company registered
quarter-on-quarter growth for all four quarters of the
fiscal year. For complete FY 2021-22, PAT for the Company
stood at X 1,178 Crores.

e The Company has fully operational and maturing co-
lending partnerships with Central Bank of India, Yes Bank,
Indian Bank and Punjab & Sind Bank for home loans and
with RBL Bank, Central Bank of India, Canara Bank and
Punjab & Sind Bank for secured MSME loans.

Strong Capital Position

e The Company’s Total Capital Adequacy [Standalone IBH]
stood at 22.49% with a Tier 1 of 16.59% against regulatory
requirement of 15% and 10% respectively.

e The Company’s Net Gearing of 2.6x as at March 31, 2022 is
one of the lowest amongst its peers.

Healthy Liquidity

e Company raised liquidity of X 24,497 Crores during the
year, from various domestic and foreign banks and financial
institutions as well as retail investors through NCD issues.

e The Company’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) stood
comfortably at 219% as at March 31, 2022, against a
regulatory requirement of 50%

ALM Management

e During the year, the Company continued to deploy its
excess liquidity to ensure that its ALM is optimally matched.
The Company successfully repaid its bond repayments of
%6,576 Crfalling due in September 2021, through proactive
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management of ALM, whereby, it had repurchased X 4,340
Cr of its maturing bonds by May 2021 itself, thus utilizing
its excess liquidity to minimize the lumpsum payment
requirement.

e The Company also voluntarily created a reserve fund for
repayment of its USD 350 Mn of Dollar bonds falling due in
May 2022, wherein, the Company periodically transferred
the total maturity proceeds of these bonds, in four tranches
of 25% each, to a debt repayment trust, managed by IDBI
Trustee, which was ultimately utilized towards scheduled
redemption of these bonds.

e The Company will continue to undertake such proactive
management of ALM by utilizing its strong capital position
and comfortable levels of liquidity to provide comfort and
confidence to its bond holders and further strengthen the
Company’s credentials.

Stable Asset Quality

e At a consolidated level, the Company had a provisioning
buffer of X 1,645 Crores on balance sheet, over 2x times
of the regulatory requirement and equivalent to a healthy
2.8% of its loan book.

e At a consolidated level, gross non-performing loans as of
March 31, 2022 amounted to X 2,318 Crores, equivalent to
3.21% of loan assets.

e At a consolidated level, net non-performing loans as at
March 31, 2022 amounted to X 1,364 Crores, equivalent to
1.89% of loan assets.

State of Company’s Affairs

During the year under review, there were no changes in the
nature of business of the Company.

Borrowings from Banks & Financial Institutions other than
Debentures, Securities and ECBs

As on March 31, 2022, the Company’s outstanding borrowings
other than debentures, securities and ECBs stood at X 22,124
Crores vis-a-vis X 26,644 Crores as on March 31, 2021.



Debentures and Securities

Debentures and securities formed 46% of the Company’s
borrowings as at the end of the fiscal year. There were no
commercial papers outstanding as at the year end. As at March
31, 2022, the Company’s consolidated outstanding borrowings,
from debentures and securities stood at X 28,291 Crores vis-
a-vis ¥ 34,897 Crores as at March 31, 2021. The Company’s
secured NCDs have been listed on the Wholesale Debt Market
segment of NSE/BSE and have been assigned ‘AA’ rating
from CRISIL, ICRA and CARE; and ‘AA+’ by Brickwork Ratings.
CRISIL, ICRA, Brickwork and Moody’s has revised the credit
rating outlook from ‘negative’ to ‘stable’ which will enable the
Company to raise funds at a lower cost.

As at March 31, 2022, the Company’s outstanding subordinated
debtand perpetual debtstood atX4,526 Croresand X100 Crores
respectively. The debt is subordinate to present and future
senior indebtedness of the Company and has been assigned the
AA rating by CRISIL, ICRA, CARE and AA+ by Brickwork Ratings.
Based on the balance term to maturity, as at March 31, 2022,
X 3,483 Crores of the book value of subordinated and perpetual
debt is considered as Tier Il, under the guidelines issues by the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and National Housing Bank (NHB),
for the purpose of capital adequacy computation. There are no
NCDs which have not been claimed by the investors or not paid
by the Company after the date on which the NCD became due
for redemption.

Regulatory Guidelines / Amendments

The Company has implemented / complied with the following
new directions / notifications / circulars issued by the RBI:

e  Guidelines on the appointment of Statutory Auditors (April
27,2021).

e Amendment in Master Directions on KYC (May 10, 2021).
e Risk Based Internal Audit (June 11, 2021).

e  Master Direction on (Transfer of Loan Exposure) Direction
2021 (September 24, 2021).

e  Master Direction on (Securitization of Standard Assets)
Direction 2021 (September 24, 2021).

Further, in line with Master Direction — Non - Banking
Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 (RBI HFC Directions), the Company adopted
the guidelines on maintenance of Liquidity Coverage Ratio with
effect from December 1, 2021.

RBI has also issued, Scale Based Regulatory Framework for
NBFCs dated October 22, 2021, which are applicable from
October 01, 2022. This is an integrated framework with respect
to capital requirements, governance standards and prudential
regulations.
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On November 12, 2021, RBI issued a notification on Prudential
Norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning (IRACP) pertaining to Advances, with the objective
of harmonising regulatory guidelines for all lending institutions.
RBI stipulated that borrower accounts be flagged as overdue
as part of their day-end process for the due date. RBI also
stipulated that NPA accounts can only be upgraded to standard
provided all outstanding dues have been fully repaid. In
February 2022, RBI provided time till September 30, 2022 for
NBFCs to comply with the upgradation criteria.

The Company is in compliance with the applicable provisions
and requirements of the RBI / HFC Directions and other
directions / guidelines issued by RBI / NHB as applicable.

Risk Management Framework

With the challenging macroeconomic conditions and
uncertainties, there are heightened risks faced by the Company
which can be inherent or market - related risks. There has been
a continuous focus on identifying, measuring and mitigating
risks by the Company. As a housing finance company, the
Company is exposed to various risks like credit risk, market risk
(interest rate and currency risk), liquidity risk and operational
risk (technology, employee, transaction and reputation risk). A
key risk in the competitive home loans, and mortgage - backed
funding in general, is losing customers that transfer out their
loans for small gains in interest rates, this represents significant
loss of opportunity to the Company given the long - term nature
of mortgage loans.

To identify and mitigate all these risks, the Company has an
effective Risk Management Control Framework that has been
developed encompassing all the above areas. The Company has
a Risk Management Committee (RMC) in place that comprises
of its Directors and Members of its Senior Management team,
who have rich industry experience across domains. The RMC
met multiple times during the year and kept an active watch
on the emergent risks the Company was exposed to. The
Company’s Chief Risk Officer (CRO) oversees the process of
identification, measurement and mitigation of risks. The CRO
reports directly to the Board and meets them multiple times,
and at least once in a quarter, to discuss the risks faced by the
Company and policies to mitigate them.

The Company’s Credit Committee supports the RMC by
identifying and mitigating credit risks to the Company by
formulating policies on limits on large credit exposures, asset
concentrations, standards for loan collateral, loan review
mechanism, pricing of loans etc. The credit committee is also
responsible to frame approach and policies for customer
retention, especially those customers that seek to transfer
their loans out during interest rate cycles when the Company’s
interest rates may be misaligned higher than the best rates
available from other lenders.
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The Company has a robust mechanism to ensure an ongoing
review of systems, policies, processes and procedures to
contain and mitigate risks that arise from time to time. The
Company also has a system for evaluating Grievance Redressal
Mechanism and undertaking complete Root Cause Analysis
(RCA) to ensure recurring grievances are avoided in future
leading to improved customer service standards. Continuous
evaluation of existing controls and requisite improvement/
strengthening based on the assessment is carried out to contain
these risks. The Company encourages sound risk management
culture within the organization

On June 11, 2021, the RBI extended the provisions of the risk
- based internal audit (RBIA) framework to HFCs, which were
requiredtoimplementthe frameworkbyJune 30,2022.The RBIA
framework is an audit methodology that links an organisations
overall risk management framework and provides an assurance
to the Board of Directors and the senior management on
the quality and effectiveness of the organisation’s internal
controls, risk management and governance-related systems
and processes. The RBIA framework will further strengthen the
Company’s overall risk management framework.

Codes and Standards

The Company adheres to the Fair Practices Code (FPC)
recommended by the regulator, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
as well as the National Housing Bank (NHB), to promote good
and fair practices by setting minimum standards in dealing
with customers. The RBI has also issued comprehensive Know
Your Customer (KYC) Guidelines and Anti Money Laundering
Standards in the context of recommendations made by
the Financial Action Task Force on Anti Money Laundering
Standards.

Cross Selling and Distribution of Financial Products and
Services

One of the Company’s key areas of focus is generating fee-
income by cross - selling and upselling various products to its
customers. Leveraging on digital analytics and social media
integration through its eHome Loans technology platform, the
Company continues to stay engaged with its customers helping
it better anticipate their needs, thus opening up cross - selling
and resultant fee generation opportunities. The Company
acts as an agent for multiple insurance companies and cross
- sells life insurance and general insurance products to its
customers, earning a commission on the premiums paid by
the customers. The Company’s insurance attachment rate is
over 80%. The Company has also been successfully selling 2 -3
different policies to its customers through its upselling efforts.
Fee income represents a very important source of income for
the Company and it continues to look at different avenues of
generating and increasing its fee income.
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Learning & Development

At IBHFL, In order to ensure that our employees are equipped
with the right kind of skills, knowledge and abilities to perform
their assigned tasks, learning and development plays crucial
role towards the growth and success of our business.

By opting and incorporating different types of training
workshops and utilizing the most apt methodology to conduct,
we ensure that employees possess and improve upon the skills
required to excel at their work.

The organization is equipped with a dedicated highly
professional set of team players c/a Learning & Development
team as a sub set of Human Resource department, to ensure
that employees are trained in functional and behavioral skills.

Training is based on the identified needs, competency or job
specific knowledge gaps, skills and attitudes as identified
jointly by the employee, department and branch heads and the
human resources department.

The organization strives to provide steady career growth to all
its employees.

Intermittent lockdowns and restricions on movement
during the second wave of COVID-19 pandemic required the
employees to operate from their home for a couple of months
during the financial year under consideration. This remote
working culture required the use of technology to impart
training to ensure that all round development of the employees
continued unhindered.

During the year, the employee training vertical of the human
resources department conducted 128 online & offline training
sessions for 4,330 employees achieving 6,686 man hours of
training. The trainings covered various aspects such as customer
relationship management, credit risk analysis, operational
efficiency, fraud prevention amongst others.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on
May 19, 2021 has declared interim dividend X 9/- per equity
share having face value X 2/- each for the FY 2020-21 and total
outflow amounting to X 416.11 Crores. The Company had not
declared any dividend for the FY 2021-22.

During the year, the unclaimed dividend of X 0.65 crore
pertaining to the Financial Year 2013-14 and 2014-15, got
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund after
giving due notice to the members.

Further, the Company has transferred 3,100 equity shares
pertaining to the Financial Year 2013-14 and 2014-15 in
respect of which dividend has not been received or claimed for
seven consecutive years to Demat Account of IEPF Authority,
in respect of which, individual notice had also been sent to
concerned Shareholders.



Those Members who have not so far claimed their dividend
for the subsequent financial years are also advised to claim it
from the Company or KFin Technologies Limited. Further, in
compliance with the requirements, in terms of the notification
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Company
has till date transferred 22,128 equity shares in respect of
which dividend has not been received or claimed for seven
consecutive years from the Financial Year 2008-09 onwards to
Demat Account of IEPF Authority, in respect of which, individual
notice had also been sent to concerned Shareholders.

Further pursuant to the requirements of SEBI Circular no. SEBI/
LAD-NRO/GN/2016-17/008 dated July 8, 2016, the Dividend
Distribution Policy of the Company is available on the website
of the Company i.e. https://www.indiabullshomeloans.
com/uploads/downloads/ihfl-dividend-distribution-poli
cy-0436865001502456462-0046016001552484803.pdf

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, effective from March 14, 2022,
Mr. Sameer Gehlaut has relinquished the office of Non -
Executive Non — Independent Director of the Company. Also
Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat (DIN: 00017480) and Mr. Prem
Prakash Mirdha (DIN: 01352748), Independent Directors
ceased to be the Directors of the Company as their second term
of five years came to an end on September 28, 2021.

Further, during the financial year 2021-22, the Members of the
Company in their Sixteenth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
held through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual
Means (OAVM) on July 29, 2021 had approved:

a) the appointment of Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra (DIN:
07488705) former MD & CEO, Bank of India and former
Executive Director of Canara Bank, as Non - Executive
Independent Director of the Company, for a period of
three years from November 23, 2020 upto November 22,
2023.

b) re-appointment Mr. Subhash Sheoratan Mundra (DIN:
00979731), formerly the Deputy Governor of Reserve Bank
of India, presently holding the office of Non - Executive
Chairman of the Company, as an Independent Director
for another term of five years with effect from August 18,
2021 up to August 17, 2026.

c) re-appointment of Mr. Sachin Chaudhary (DIN:02016992),
as a Whole - Time Director and Key Managerial Personnel
designated as Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer
of the Company, for a further period of five years w.e.f.
October 21, 2021.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and in terms of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association (MOA) of the Company, Mr. Sachin
Chaudhary (DIN: 02016992), Whole - Time Director of the
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Company, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer
himself for reappointment.

Further during the current Financial Year 2022-23, effective
from April 26, 2022, Mr. B. C. Patnaik (DIN: 08384583),
Managing Director, Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC),
has been appointed as LIC Nominee Director of the Company
and Mr Ajit Kumar Mittal relinquished the office of Executive
Director of the Company and re - designated as Non - Executive
Non Independent Director.

In terms of the applicable legal provisions, the existing tenures
of five years of Mr. Gagan Banga (DIN: 00010894), as a Whole-
Time Director & Key Managerial Personnel and designated as
Vice — Chairman, Managing Director & CEO of the Company and
Mr. Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar (DIN: 03341114) as a Whole-
Time Director & Key Managerial Personnel and designated as
Deputy Managing Director of the Company is coming to an
end on March 18, 2023. The Company has grown significantly
under the leadership and guidance of Mr. Gagan Banga and
Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar. Keeping in view their vast
experience, knowledge and managerial skills, the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company has recommended their re-appointment as such, for
a further period of five years w.e.f. March 19, 2023.

All the present Independent Directors of the Company
have given declaration that they meet the criteria of
Independence laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and
under Regulation 16 (1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR).
The brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed
/ reappointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional
areas, terms of appointment and names of companies in which
they hold directorships and memberships/ chairmanships of
Board Committees, are provided in the Notice convening the
Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of
the Company possess requisite qualifications, experience and
expertise and that they hold the highest standards of integrity.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity share capital of the Company as on March
31,2021 wasX937,143,008/- comprising of 462,571,504 equity
shares of X 2/- each. During the year, the Company has made
the following allotments:

i)  On June 18, 2021 — the Company allotted 78,850 Equity
Shares on account of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
(“FCCBs”) Conversion, for a principal value of USD 250,000.

ii)  On December 20, 2021 — the Company allotted 3,103,976
Equity Shares on account of FCCBs Conversion, for a
principal value of USD 10,250,000.
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iii) On December 31, 2021 — the Company allotted 14,650
Equity Shares on account of ESOP exercise under the ‘IHFL
— IBFSL Employees Stock Option — 2008’

iv) On March 17, 2022 — the Company allotted 3,025,126
Equity Shares on account of FCCBs Conversion, for a
principal value of USD 10,000,000.

After considering the above allotments during the year, the
paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31,
2022 was X 937,143,008 comprising of 468,571,504 Equity
Shares of X 2/- each.

Subsequently, during the current financial year on April 18,
2022, the Company had allotted 30,25,126 equity shares of
face value X 2/- each, upon conversion of FCCB, for a principal
value of USD 10,000,000. As a result the paid-up equity share
capital of the Company increased to X 943,193,260 comprises
of 471,596,630 equity shares of X 2/- each. Further, Company
has not issued any Equity Shares with Differential rights.

PROMOTER RE - CLASSIFICATION

Mr. Sameer Gehlaut (Founder Promoter) along with Innus
Infrastructure Private Limited and Sameer Gehlaut IBH Trust
(Promoter Group Members) collectively referred as outgoing
Promoters vide letter dated March 14, 2022 requested for their
reclassification from Promoters and Promoter Group category
to Public Category in terms of Regulation 31A of SEBI LODR.

The Boad of Directors and Shareholders of the Company had
approved the said request in their respective meetings held
on March 15, 2022 and April 18, 2022. The Company had filed
applications to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited for reclassification of the ‘Outgoing Promoters’ as
‘Public’ under Regulation 31A of SEBI LODR, which are pending
for approval.

ESOP / SAR SCHEMES / SWEAT EQUITY

Presently, the stock options / stock appreciation rights
granted to the Employees operate under different schemes,
namely, IBHFL-IBFSL Employees Stock Option Scheme — 2008,
Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited Employees Stock Option
Scheme — 2013, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited Employees
Stock Option Scheme — 2019 and Indiabulls Housing Finance
Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme — 2021 (hereinafter
individually and/or collectively referred to as the “Scheme(s)”).
During the year, there has been no variation in the terms of the
options granted under any of the schemes and all the schemes
are in compliance with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (SBEB Regulations). The
Company has obtained a certificate from secretarial auditors
on the same. During the year under review, Pragati Employee
Welfare Trust (formerly Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited —
Employees Welfare Trust), in terms of the shareholders’ approval
of the Company, has purchased 6,000,000 Equity Shares of the
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Company from the secondary market. Accordingly, at the end
of the FY 2022, the Trust held 23,000,000 Equity Shares of the
Company. No voting right has been exercised by the Trust in
respect of such shares held by it. During the FY 2021-22, no
Sweat Equity Shares were issued by the Company.

The disclosures on ESOPs and SARs, as required under SBEB
Regulations have been placed on the website of the Company.

During the current FY, on April 26, 2022, the Board constituted
Committee of the Company under Indiabulls Housing Finance
Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme — 2013, granted
10,800,000 (One Crore Eight Lacs) stock options, out of the
lapsed Stock Options, granted earlier, representing equal number
of Equity Shares of face value of X 2/- each of the Company, to
certain eligible Employees including Executive Directors of the
Company and its Subsidiary Companies, at an exercise price
of X 152.85 per Equity Share, being the latest available closing
price of the Equity Share on the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited, prior to the date of the above - mentioned meeting. The
stock options so granted, shall vest within 3 years beginning from
April 27, 2023, the first vesting date. The options vested under
each of the slabs, can be exercised within a period of five years
from the relevant vesting dates.

Further, on July 19, 2022, the Board constituted Committee
of the Company under Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited
Employees Stock Option Scheme — 2013, granted 15,500,000
(One Crore Fifty Five Lacs) stock options, out of the lapsed
Stock Options, granted earlier, representing equal number of
Equity Shares of face value of X 2/- each of the Company, to
certain eligible Employees including Executive Directors of the
Company and its Subsidiary Companies, at an exercise price of
X 96 per Equity Share, (against X 95.70 which was the latest
available closing price of the Equity Share on the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited, prior to the date of the above
- mentioned meeting. The stock options so granted, shall vest
on July 20, 2023 or thereafter, as may be decided by the Board
constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. The options vested under each of the slabs, can be
exercised within a period of five years from the vesting date.

FUND RAISED DURING THE YEAR
() FOREIGN CURRENCY CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUE

During the year, the Company has issued 4.50% Secured
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due 2026 (‘FCCBs’)
of USD 165 Million at par, convertible into fully paid-up
equity shares of face value of X 2/- each of the Company at
an initial conversion price of X 243.05/- per equity share,
on or after November 08, 2021 and up to the close of
business hours on the 10* day before the Maturity Date,
at the option of the FCCB holders. The Maturity Date of
such FCCBs is September 28, 2026. FCCBs, which are not
converted to Equity Shares during such specified period,
will be redeemable on September 28, 2026.



NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs)

(a) Issuance of Secured and Unsecured NCDs, by way of Public Issue

During the FY 2021-22, the Company has successfully raised,
by way of Public Issue, (a) X 792.28 Crores of Secured and
Unsecured NCDs having a face value of X 1,000 each which
were allotted on September 24, 2021, and (b) £552.96 Crores
of Secured NCDs having a face value of X 1,000 each which
were allotted on January 6, 2022.

Further, during the current FY, the Company has
successfully raised, by way of Public Issue, X 133.74 Crores
of Secured NCDs having a face value of X 1,000 each, which
were allotted on April 28, 2022.

These NCDs are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

(b) Details of NCDs which have not been claimed by the Investors

There are no NCDs which have not been claimed by the
Investors or not paid by the Company after the date on
which these NCDs became due for redemption.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public, falling within the ambit of Chapter
V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES

The Equity Shares (ISIN INE148101020) of the Company continue
to remain listed at BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). The listing fees payable to
both the exchanges for the financial year 2021-22 and 2022-
23 have been paid. The GDRs issued by the Company continue
to remain listed on Luxembourg Stock Exchange (“LSE”). The
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (“FCCBs”) are listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”). The
NCDs issued under public issue and on Private Placement basis
are listed on Debt/WDM segment of NSE and BSE.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 AND SECTION 197
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE RELEVANT
RULES AND SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

The information required to be disclosed pursuant to Section
134 and Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
relevant rules (to the extent applicable) and SEBI LODR, not
elsewhere mentioned in this Report, are given in “Annexure A”
forming part of this Report.

AUDITORS
(a) Statutory Auditors

During the year, the RBI had issued guidelines for the
appointment of Statutory Auditors and relevant FAQs
(RBI guidelines). Pursuant to the said RBl guidelines, Messrs

(b)
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S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, being
ineligible to continue as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company, tendered its resignation with effect from
November 14, 2021. The Board placed on record its
appreciation for the professional services rendered by
Messrs S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP during their association with
the Company as its Statutory Auditors.

In terms of the said RBI guidelines and on the basis of
recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board
of Directors, the Shareholders of the Company in their
Extraordinary General Meeting held on November 15,
2021, approved the appointment of Messrs S.N. Dhawan
& CO LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
000050N/N500045 issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India) (member firm of Mazars, an
international audit, tax and advisory firm based in France)
and Messrs Arora & Choudhary Associates, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 003870N issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India), as Joint
Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of 3
consecutive years, subject to them continuing to fulfil the
applicable eligibility norms.

During the financial year 2021-22, the total remuneration
paid by the Company (excluding Certification Fee plus
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses incurred by them in connection with the audit
of the accounts of the Company) to Messrs S.R. Batliboi &
Co. LLP, Messrs S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP and Messrs Arora &
Chaudhary Associates was X 1.075 crore, X 1.20 crore and
X 0.60 crore, respectively.

The Report of Joint Statutory Auditors for the FY 2021-
22, forms part of this Report. The Joint Statutory Auditors
Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark.

The Notes to the Accounts referred to in the Joint Auditors
Report are self - explanatory and therefore do not call for
any further explanation. No frauds have been reported
by the Joint Auditors of the Company in terms of Section
143(12) of the companies Act, 2013.

The Joint Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they
continue to satisfy the eligibility norms and independence
criteria as prescribed by RBI guidelines and the Companies
Act, 2013.

Secretarial Auditors & Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act
read with the rules made thereunder, the Company has
appointed M/s Neelam Gupta & Associates, a firm of
Company Secretaries in practice, as its Secretarial Auditors,
to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company, for the
financial year 2021-22. The Company has provided all
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assistance, facilities, documents, records and clarifications
etc. to the Secretarial Auditors for the conduct of their
audit. The Report of Secretarial Auditors for the FY 2021-
22, is annexed as “Annexure 1”, forming part of this
Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

The Secretarial Compliance Report as prescribed by SEBI is
annexed as “Annexure 2”, forming part of this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report of material subsidiary
company Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited is annexed
as “Annexure 3” forming part of this Report.

(c) Cost Records

The Company is not required to prepare and maintain cost
records pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)”, the Company has undertaken projects
as per its CSR Policy (available on your Company’s website
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/csr-policy) and the
details are contained in the Annual Report on CSR Activities
given in “Annexure 4”, forming part of this Report. These
projects are in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI LODR, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis Report, for the year under review, is
presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI LODR, Corporate Governance
Practices followed by the Company, together with a certificate
from a practicing Company Secretary confirming compliance, is
presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI LODR, Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BR&SR) is presented
in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report.

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 12, 2022
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Vice-Chairman,Managing Director & CEO

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the
information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors
make the following statement in terms of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013:

(a) thatin the preparation of the annual financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to
the Financial Statements have been selected and applied
consistently and judgments and estimates have been
made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, as at
March 31, 2022 and the profit and loss of the Company for
the year ended on that date;

(c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis;

(e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and
that such financial controls were adequate and were
operating effectively; and

(f) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and
operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Company has been able to operate efficiently because of
the culture of professionalism, creativity, integrity and continuous
improvement in all functional areas and the efficient utilization
of all its resources for sustainable and profitable growth. Your
Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of the
contributions made and committed services rendered by the
Employees of the Company at various levels. Your Directors also
wish to express their gratitude for the continuous assistance and
support received from the investors, clients, bankers, regulatory
and government authorities, during the year.

For Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Sd/-
Gagan Banga

Sd/-
Ashwini Omprakash Kumar
Deputy Managing Director

(DIN: 00010894) (DIN: 03341114)
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Annexure — A

Annexure forming part of the Boards’ Report

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Annual Return as on
March 31, 2022 is available on the Company’s website on
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/ihfl-
annual-return-mgt-7-fy-22-0333213001661262586.pdf

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2021-22, 7 (Seven) Board Meetings were
convened and held. The details of such meetings are given in
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.
The intervening gap between these meetings was within the
period prescribed under the Act. Due to exceptional circumstances
caused by Covid - 19 pandemic and consequent relaxations
granted by MCA and SEBI, all Board Meetings in FY 2022 were
held through video conferencing. The notice and agenda including
all material information and minimum information required to
be made available to the Board under Regulation 17 read with
Schedule Il Part-A of the SEBI LODR, were circulated to all Directors,
well within the prescribed time, before the meeting or placed at
the meeting. During the year under review, separate meeting of
the Independent Directors was held on March 10, 2022, through
video conferencing, without the attendance of Non - Independent
Directors and the members of the Company Management.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the
Board reassessed the framework, methodology and criteria
for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole,
including Board Committee(s), as well as performance of
each Director(s) / Chairman and confirmed that the existing
evaluation parameters are in compliance with the requirements
as per SEBI guidance note dated January 5, 2017 on Board
evaluation. The existing parameters includes effectiveness
of the Board and its Committees, decision making process,
Directors / Members participation, governance, independence,
quality and content of agenda papers, team work, frequency
of meetings, discussions at meetings, corporate culture,
contribution, role of the Chairman and management of conflict
of interest. Basis these parameters and guidance note on board
evaluation issued by SEBI, the NRC had reviewed at length
the performance of each Director individually and expressed
satisfaction on the process of evaluation and the performance
of each Director. The performance evaluation of the Board
as a whole and its Committees namely Audit Committee,
Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee as well as the performance of each
Director individually, including the Chairman was carried out
by the entire Board of Directors. The performance evaluation
of the Chairman, Vice - Chairman, Executive Directors and
Non - Executive Director was carried out by the Independent
Directors in their meeting held on March 10, 2022. The Directors
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Also, the Chairman of the Company, on a periodic basis, has
had one - to - one discussion with the Directors for their
views on the functioning of the Board and the Company,
including discussions on level of engagement and contribution,
independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the
Company and its minority shareholders and implementation
of the suggestions offered by Directors either individually or
collectively during different Board / Committee Meetings.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS & THEIR
REMUNERATION

A Board approved policy for selection and appointment of
Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration, is
already in place. The brief of Appointment and Remuneration
Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report forming
part of this Annual Report.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the financial year 2021-22, in terms of the provisions
of Section 186(1) of the Act, the Company did not make any
investments through more than two layers of Investment
Companies. Since the Company is a Housing Finance Company,
the disclosures regarding particulars of the loans given,
guarantees given and security provided is exempt under the
provisions of Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013. As
regards investments made by the Company, the details of the
same are provided in notes to the financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 (Note no.
9 of Standalone Financial Statements).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All the related party transactions, entered into by the Company,
during the financial year, were in its ordinary course of business
and on an arm’s length basis. There are no materially significant
related party transactions entered by the Company with its
Promoters, Key Management Personnel or other Designated
Persons which may have potential conflict with the interest of
the Company at large. None of the transactions with related
parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Act and
hence the information on transactions with related parties
pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Act read with rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 required to be given in the
prescribed form AOC - 2 are not applicable.

Further, the Policy for dealing with Related Party
Transactions is enclosed as “Annexure 5” and is
also available on the website of the Company at
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/ihfl_policy-on-
related-party-transactions-01042022-0512403001654939668.pdf

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an elaborate system of internal controls
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations; it also covers areas like financial reporting, fraud
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control, compliance with applicable laws and regulations etc.
Regular internal audits are conducted to check and to ensure
that responsibilities are discharged effectively. The Internal
Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and
adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its
compliance with regulatory directives, efficacy of its operating
systems, adherence to the accounting procedures and policies
at all branch offices of the Company and its Subsidiaries.
Wherever required, the internal audit efforts are supplemented
by audits conducted by specialized consultants / audit firms.
Based on the report of the Internal Auditors, process owners
undertake corrective actions, in their respective areas and
thereby strengthen the controls.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Apart from the information provided / disclosures made
elsewhere in the Boards’ Report including Annexures thereof,
there are no material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company, occurred between the date
of end of the financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2022
till date of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS

No significant and material orders were passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals, impacting the going concern status and
Company’s operations in future.

However during the year FY 2021-22 Company had paid
X 1,902,000 as compounding fee basis the order issued by the
office of Regional Director, Northern Region in connection with
compounding applications / petitions under section 441 of the
Companies Act, 2013 filed with the ROC for Compounding of
offences, under various provisions of the Companies Act and
Rules made thereunder.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company being a Housing Finance Company does not
require much of technology absorption, however in compliance
of Section 134(3) read with Rule - 8 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, the necessary reporting with regards to technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, is as
under:

A. Technology Absorption

The Company is investing in cutting edge technologies to
upgrade its infrastructure set up and innovative technical
solutions, thereby increasing customer delight & Employee
efficiency. Next Generation Business Intelligence &
analytics tool have been implemented to ensure that
while data continues to grow, decision makers gets
answers faster than ever for timely & critical level decision
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making. The Company has implemented best of the
breed applications to manage and automate its business
processes to achieve higher efficiency, data integrity and
data security. It has helped it in implementing best business
practices and shorter time to market new schemes,
products and customer services. The Company has taken
major initiatives for improved Employee experience, by
implementing innovative solutions and empowering them
by providing mobile platform to manage their work while
on the go.

The Company’s investment in technology has improved
customer services, reduced operational cost and
development of new business opportunities. No
technology was imported by the Company during the last
three financial years including financial year 2021-22.

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

During the year under review, your Company had no
foreign exchange earnings. Foreign exchange expenditure
outgo was X 427.90 Crores.

FOCUS ON ESG TO DRIVE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

As responsible corporate citizen, environmental and social
considerations have always been key factors in the operations
of Indiabulls Housing Finance. The Company has laid out details
about its ESG initiatives in a separate, dedicated section in
the annual report. In compliance of Section 134(3) read with
Rule - 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the necessary
reporting with regards conservation of energy is as under:

Conservation of Energy

The Company operations do not account for substantial energy
consumption. However, the Company is taking all possible
measures to conserve energy. As an ongoing process, the
following are (i) the steps taken or impact on conservation
of energy; (ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing
alternate sources of energy; and (iii) the capital investment on
energy conservation equipment.

The Company is 1ISO 14001:2015 certified for its Environmental
Management Systems (EMS). The Company’s EMS measures
the environmental costs of its services and activities, and seeks
to minimize the negative effects and improve the positive
aspects.

Consumption of electricity and its efficient utilization is an
important area of EMS and the Company has taken many steps
to reduce its carbon footprint on this front. The Company has
been able to reduce energy consumption by using star rated
appliances where possible and also through the replacement of
CFL lights with LED lights. Monitoring resource usage, improved
process efficiency, reduced waste generation and disposal costs
have also supported the cause.



Green Initiatives

The Company’s Environmental Management System (EMS)
focuses on assessing the environmental cost of the Company’s
services and activities, and seeks to reduce or eliminate the
negative impact and increase their positive effects.

The 1SO 14001:2015 specifies the requirements for EMS such
that the negative environmental impact is minimized and overall
environmental performance improves. ISO 14001:2015 is a
systematic framework that checks adherence to environmental
performance standards and also seeks to continuously improve
it.

Environmental sustainability is important to the Company and
is one of the reasons behind the Company’s push to digitize its
processes. Amongst its peers, the Company has taken the lead
in introducing an end - to - end online home loan application
and fulfillment platform, doing away with the traditional pen
and paper process which also involved physical transfer of
loan application files. The ISO 14001:2015 certification helps
the Company document its process from an environmental
perspective and importantly, gives it a means to measure and
minimize the environmental impact of its operations.

Pursuant to the guidelines and notification issued by the
Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India and pursuant
to applicable provisions of the Companies Act and rules made
thereunder and SEBI LODR and the MCA / SEBI Circulars, the
AGM of the Company is being held through Video Conferencing
(“vC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the
physical presence of the Members at a common venue. The
proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the
Registered Office of the Company which shall be the deemed
venue of the AGM. Electronic copies of the Annual Report for
Financial year 2021-22 and Notice of the Seventeenth AGM
are being sent to all the Members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s). The
Members who have not received the said Annual Report and
Notice may download the same from the Company’s website at
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/ and on the websites
of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.
nseindia.com respectively.

The Company is providing e - voting facility to all Members to
enable them to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions
set forth in the Notice of the Seventeenth AGM. This is pursuant
to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as
substituted by Companies (Management and Administration)
Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI LODR.
The instructions for remote e - voting are provided in the Notice
of Seventeenth AGM. The Members may also cast their votes
during the AGM.

Statutory Reports

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 21 of the SEBI LODR, the Company has in
place a Board constituted Risk Management Committee. Details
of the Committee and its terms of reference are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this report.

The Company has a robust Business Risk Management
framework to identify and evaluate business risks and
opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency,
minimize adverse impact onits business objectives and enhance
its competitive advantage. It defines the risk management
approach across the Company and its Subsidiaries at various
levels including the documentation and reporting. At present,
the Company has not identified any element of risk which may
threaten its existence.

The Company has appointed Mr. Naveen Uppal, as the Chief
Risk Officer (CRO) who is, inter alia, responsible for identifying,
monitoring and overseeing risks, including potential risks to the
Company and reporting of the same to the Board. Necessary
measures have been put in place by the Board to safeguard the
independence of the CRO, who interacts with all the Directors
in the Board Meeting. In accordance with the norms set out
by NHB, the CRO has vetted all credit products offered by the
Company from the perspective of inherent and control risks.
The CRO did not have any reporting relationship with business
verticals of the Company or business targets.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, disclosures on Managerial
Remuneration are provided in “Annexure 6” forming part of
this Report. In terms of the provisions of Section 136(1) of the
Act read with the said rules, the Boards’ Report is being sent to
all the Shareholders of the Company excluding the annexure
on the names and other particulars of Employees, required in
accordance with Rule 5(2) of said rules, which is available for
inspection by the Members, subject to their specific written
request, in advance, to the Company Secretary of the Company.
The inspection is to be carried out at the Company’s Registered
Office at New Delhi or at its Corporate Office, at Gurugram,
during business hours on working days (except Saturday and
Sunday) of the Company up to date of ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR NON -
DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE

Non - Executive Directors are familiarized with their roles,
rights and responsibilities in the Company as well as with
the nature of industry and business model of the Company
through presentations about the Company’s strategy,
business model, product and service offerings, customers
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& shareholders profile, financial details, human resources,
technology, facilities, internal controls and risk management,
their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company. The
Board is also periodically briefed on the various changes, if any,
in the regulations governing the conduct of Non - Executive
Directors including independent directors. The details of the
familiarization programmes have been hosted on the website
of the Company and link provided in the Report on Corporate
Governance forming part of this Report.

SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATES COMPANIES

Pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Indian
Accounting Standard (IND AS) - 110 on Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Company has prepared its Consolidated
Financial Statement along with all its Subsidiaries, in the same
form and manner, as that of the Company, which shall be laid
before its ensuing Seventeenth Annual General Meeting along
with its Standalone Financial Statements. The Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company along with its Subsidiaries,
for the year ended March 31, 2022, forms part of this Annual
Report.

Each quarter, the Audit Committee reviews the unaudited
/ audited financial statements of Subsidiary Companies.
Further, the Committee periodically reviews the performance
of Subsidiary Companies. The minutes of the Board Meetings
of the unlisted Subsidiary Companies of the Company and
significant transactions and arrangements entered into by all
the unlisted Subsidiary Companies are placed before the Board
on a quarterly basis. The Board is periodically apprised of the
performance of key Subsidiary Companies, including material
developments.

For the performance and financial position of each of the
Subsidiaries of the Company, included in its Consolidated
Financial Statements, the Members are requested to refer to
Note No.37(b) of the Notes to the Accounts, of Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company and statement pursuant to
first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies
Act 2013, read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
in the prescribed Form AOC - 1 relating to Statement containing
salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiary has
been attached to this report and forms part of the financial
statements.

Further pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the
Act, the financial statements of the Company, consolidated
financial statements along with relevant documents and
separate audited accounts in respect of Subsidiaries,
are also available on the website of the Company at
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/.

Shareholders may write to the Company for the annual
financial statements and any further information on Subsidiary
Companies. Further, the documents shall also be available for
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inspection by the shareholders at the registered office of the
Company.

During the year, Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited (ICCL)
was material Subsidiary of the Company, as per SEBI LODR.

The Company is in compliance with Regulation 24A(1) of the
SEBI LODR. The Company’s unlisted material Subsidiary ICCL
undergoes Secretarial Audit. Copy of Secretarial Audit Report of
ICCL are given in “Annexure 3” forming part of this Report and
is also available on the website of the Company. The Secretarial
Audit report of ICCL does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark. Further, in compliance with
Regulation 24A(2) of the SEBI LODR, Secretarial Compliance
Report of ICCL has also been submitted with the Stock
Exchanges.

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED
TO BE SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the period under review, no Company has become or
ceased to be Subsidiary of the Company. Further, Indiabulls
Asset Management Mauritius, step—down subsidiary of the
Company was struck off w.e.f. July 18, 2022.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Company has the following Board constituted Committees
which have been constituted to have in place the best
corporate governance practices and are in compliance with the
requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and
statutes.

a) Asset Liability Management Committee
b) Audit Committee

¢) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
d) Credit Committee

e) Customer Grievance Committee

f)  Investment Committee

g) IT Strategy Committee

h) Identification Committee

i) Internal Complaint Committee

j)  Management Committee

k) Nomination & Remuneration Committee
I) Risk Management Committee

m) Review Committee

n) Committee for Restructuring, Reschedulement, and

Monitoring of Asset Quality, NPA and Write-off

o) Stakeholders Relationship Committee



p) Securities Issuance Committee

gq) Regulatory Measures Oversight Committee
r) ESG Committee

s) Independent Directors Committee

The details with respect to composition, powers, roles, terms of
reference, etc. of Committees constituted under the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR are given in the Corporate Governance
Report forming part of this Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors state that the Company has complied
with the applicable Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2)
respectively relating to Meetings of the Board, its Committees
and the General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

NUMBER OF CASES FILED, IF ANY, AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER
SECTION 22 OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment
at the workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in
line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder. During the financial year 2021-22, no
cases of sexual harassment were reported.

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) under
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints
received, if any, regarding sexual harassment.

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 12, 2022

Vice - Chairman, Managing Director & CEO
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DETAILS OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER
BANKRUPCY CODE, 2016

INSOLVENCY AND

During the year, no applications were made or case was pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF VALUATION DONE WITH RESPECT TO LOANS
TAKEN FROM BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

During the year, the Company has not done any one time
settlement and hence, there was no difference between
the amount of the valuation done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from
Banks or Financial Institutions.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards
of ethical, moral and legal conduct of its business operations.
To maintain these standards, the Company has implemented
the Whistle Blower Policy (the Policy), to provide an avenue for
Employees to report matters without the risk of subsequent
victimization, discrimination or disadvantage. The Policy applies
to all Employees working for the Company and its Subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the Policy, the whistle blowers can raise concerns
relating to matters such as breach of Company’s Code of
Conduct, fraud, bribery, corruption, employee misconduct,
illegality, misappropriation of Company’s funds / assets etc.
A whistle blowing or reporting mechanism, as set out in the
Policy, invites all Employees to act responsibly to uphold the
reputation of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

The Policy aims to ensure that serious concerns are properly
raised and addressed and are recognized as an enabling factor
in administering good governance practices. The details of
the Whistle Blower Policy are available on the website of the
Company at https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/.

For Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Sd./-
Gagan Banga

Sd/-
Ashwini Omprakash Kumar
Deputy Managing Director

(DIN: 00010894) (DIN: 03341114)
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Annexure - 1

FORM NO. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
(For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited
5t Floor, Building No.27, KG Marg,
Connaught Place, New Delhi - 110001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”/ “IBHFL’). The Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based onourverification of the Company’sbooks, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company, to the extent the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and
clarifications given to us and the representations made by
the Management and considering the relaxations granted by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange
Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID - 19
pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by IBHFL for the Financial
Year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

I.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made
thereunder;

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’)
and the rules made thereunder;

Ill. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye -
laws framed thereunder;

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
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(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021, as applicable;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Non - Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021; as applicable

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing
with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period); and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended.

VI. | further report that, having regard to the compliance
system prevailing in the Company and based on the
representation made by the management of the Company
and on examination of the relevant documents and records
in pursuance thereof, the Company has complied with the
following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

i.  The National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company
being a Housing Finance Company.

ii. The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 read with the
Non - Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 issued on
February 17, 2021 by the Reserve Bank of India.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India covered under the Companies Act, 2013;

During the period under review the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. stated herein above.



We further report that:

a.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non - Executive
Director, Woman Director and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried
out in compliance with the applicable provisions of law.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board
and its Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent sufficiently in advance to the Directors, and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting(s).

Majority decision is carried through with the consent of all
the Directors present in the meeting and members’ views
are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that, based on the information provided and the
representation made by the Company and also on the review of
compliance reports / certificates taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the Company, in my opinion, there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with its
size and operations to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period :

1.

In order to focus on core business of lending and to divest
out of the Mutual Fund business, the Company along with
its Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies, namely Indiabulls
Asset Management Company Limited (IAMCL) & Indiabulls
Trustee Company Limited (ITCL), had executed definitive
transaction document with Nextbillion Technology Pvt Ltd,
part of Groww Group, to divest its entire stake in mutual
fund business at an aggregate purchase consideration of X
175 Crores (including cash and cash equivalents of X 100
Crores, as on closing date) subject to necessary approvals.

During the period has Issued and allotted following Secured
Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of X 1,000
each on public issue basis:

a) 79,22,755 NCDs aggregating to X792.28 Crores on
September 24 ,2021.

b) 55,29,601 NCDs aggregating to X552.96 Crores on
January 6, 2022.

In accordance with shareholders approval obtained on
July 29, 2021, the Company had approved on September
28, 2021 the allotment of USS 165 million of 4.5 percent
Secured Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due 2026 and
convertible into equity shares of X 2.00 each (FCCBs).

Allotted 14,650 Fully Paid Equity Shares of X 2.00 each upon
exercise of vested stock options by employees under the
'IHFL - IBFSL Employees Stock Option - 2008' as follows:
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(a) 3,600 equity shares at an exercise price of X 125.90 per
equity share (including the premium of X 123.90 per
share);

(b) 8,000 Equity Shares at an exercise price of X 158.50 per
Equity Share (including the premium of X 156.50 per
share);

(c) 3,000 Equity Shares at an exercise price of X 153.65 per
Equity Share (including the premium of X 151.65 per
share), and

(d) 50 Equity Shares at an exercise price of X 95.95 per Equity
Share (including the premium of X 93.95 per share}

Issued and allotted Fully Paid Equity Shares of face value
X 2.00/- each pursuant to receipt of notice for conversion of
FCCBs to the holder of such FCCB:

(a) 78,850 Equity Shares on June 18, 2021 at a conversion
price of X 230.14 (including premium of X 228.14) per
Equity Share.

(b) 78,850 Equity Shares on December 20, 2021 at a
conversion price of X 230.14 (including premium of
X 228.14) per Equity Share.

(c) 30,25,126 Equity Shares on December 20, 2021 at a
conversion price of X 243.05 (including a premium of X
241.05) per Equity Share.

(d) 30,25,126 Equity Shares on March 17, 2022 at a
conversion price of X 243.05 (including a premium of X
241.05) per Equity Share.

Mr. Sameer Gehlaut, Promoter and Non - Executive, Non
- Independent Director had resigned from Directorship of
the Company with effect from March 14, 2022 and subject
to necessary approvals under the provisions of the Listing
Regulations, Promoter and Promoter Group Entities have
requested for reclassification of their existing shareholding
in the Company from ‘Promoter and Promoter Group’
category to ‘Public’ category.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is
annexed as Annexure and forms integral part of this report.

For Neelam Gupta and Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

(Neelam Gupta)

Practicing Company Secretary
FCS No.: 3135

CP No.: 6950

PR No.: 747/2020

UDIN: FO03135D000607552

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12.07.2022
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Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report of IBHFL for financial year ended March 31, 2022

To,

The Members
Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

5" Fl

oor, Building No.27, KG Marg,

Connaught Place,

New
Man
1.
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Delhi- 110001
agement Responsibility for Compliances

The maintenance and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, secretarial
standards is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The review of original registers, records and documents of the Company has been hampered during the audit and certain
audit procedures cannot be performed due to government restrictions of lock down and social distancing in view of COVID
19 Global pandemic. We have relied upon the books, records and documents made available by the Company to us through
electronic means and in digital format.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Neelam Gupta and Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

(Neelam Gupta)

Practicing Company Secretary
FCS No.: 3135

CP No.: 6950

PR No.: 747/2020

UDIN: FO03135D000607552

Place : New Delhi
Date : 12.07.2022
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Annexure -2

Secretarial Compliance Report of Indiabulls Housing
Finance Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022

We, Neelam Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries have examined:

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (“the
listed entity”),

(b) the filings / submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

(c) website of the listed entity,

(d) any other document / filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification,
for the year ended March 31, 2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of :

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder;
and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines
issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars / guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, include:-
(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non - Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustee) Regulations, 1993 (in relation to obligations of Issuer Company);
(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable during the review period);

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non - Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations,
2013 (not applicable during the review period);

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018
And circulars / guidelines issued thereunder;
And based on the above examination, | hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars / guidelines issued thereunder,
except in respect of matters specified below:-

Sr. No. Compliance Requirement (Regulations / circulars / guidelines Observations / Remarks of the Practicing

including specific clause) Company Secretary
Not Applicable

(b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars / guidelines issued
thereunder in so far as it appears from our examination of those records.

(c) The following are the details of actions taken against the entity / its Promoters / Directors/ Material Subsidiaries either by SEBI
or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the
aforesaid Acts / Regulations and circulars / guidelines issued thereunder:
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Sr. No. Actions Taken by

Details of violation

Details of action taken E.g. fines,
warning letter, debarment, etc.

Observations/ remarks of the
Practicing Company Secretary,
if any.

1 The National Stock
Exchange of India
Limited (“NSE”)
vide letter dated
December 10, 2021

Non - disclosure in the financial
statements for the quarter and
half year ended September
30, 2021, under regulation
54(2) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and  Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,
2015 of the extent and nature of
security created and maintained
with respect to secured listed
NCDs.

Stock Exchange levied fine of X
27,140/- including GST, which
was paid on December 22, 2021.

The listed entity has paid the fine
on December 22, 2021.

2. BSE Limited vide
email dated

December 10, 2021

Non - disclosure in the financial
statements for the quarter and
half year ended September
30, 2021, under regulation
54(2) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and  Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,
2015 of the extent and nature of
security created and maintained
with respect to secured listed
NCDs.

Stock Exchange levied fine of X
27,140/- including GST, which
was paid on December 22, 2021.

The listed entity has paid the fine
on December 22, 2021.

3. The Securities and
Exchange Board of
India vide its Letter
Dated June 10, 2021

Non - Disclosure of schedule
of earnings call held on August
21, 2020 on the listed entity’s
Website and to Stock Exchanges
under Regulation 46(2)(o) and
30(2) of SEBI LODR, 2015.

The SEBI issued a warning
letter to the listed entity to
ensure strict compliance with
the applicable regulatory
provisions and exercise proper
due diligence. The listed entity
has taken requisite steps for
ensuring compliances.

The Letter was placed at
the Board Meeting held on
September 30, 2021 and it was
confirmed that listed entity
is now disclosing investor call
schedules on its website and
filing with exchanges.

4, The Securities and
Exchange Board of
India vide its Letter
Dated February 22,
2022

Non compliance with
regulations 23(2), 23(3) & 46(2)
of SEBI LODR, 2015 : (a) IHFLs
RPTs policy not in accordance
with Regulations 23(2) and
23(3) of LODR, 2015 till April
24, 2019 and (b) inadequate
disclosure on Company Website
on the Directors’ familarization
programs.

The SEBI issued warning letter to
the listed entity and advised it to:
(a) Take appropriate corrective
actions for website disclosure;
(b) place the letter before Audit
Committee and Board and
forward their comments to stock
exchanges.

The Stock Exchanges were
informed on March 23, 2022 that
(a) the SEBI letter was placed at
the Audit Committee and Board
Meeting of the listed entity,
each held on March 15, 2022.
The listed entity has updated
its website with complete
details, including the number
of familiarization programmes
attended and number of
hours spent by each ID in such
programme during the year and
on cumulative basis.
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(d) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

Sr. No.

Observations of the
Practicing Company
Secretary in the previous
reports

Observations made in the
secretarial compliance
report for the year ended
2021

Actions taken by the listed
entity, if any

Comments of the Practicing
Company Secretary on the
actions taken by the listed

entity

Not Applicable

(e) During the review period the listed entity and its material subsidiary have complied with the provisions of Para 6(A) and 6(B)
of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18*" October, 2019.

For Neelam Gupta & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Neelam Gupta

Company Secretary

FCS No.: 3135

CP No.: 6950

PR No.: 747/20200

UDIN: FO03135D000410168

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 27, 2022
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Annexure -3

FORM NO. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
(For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited
5t Floor, Building No. 27, KG Marg,
Connaught Place, New Delhi - 110001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”/ “ICCL"). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances
and expressing opinion thereon.

Based on our verification and as per documents, information’s
and explanations provided to us by the Company and on the
basis of verifications of books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 315t March, 2022, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board - processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022 according to the
provisions of:

I.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made
thereunder;

Il. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’)
and the rules made thereunder;

Ill. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder;

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulations made thereunder;

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);
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b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Non - Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021;

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing
with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period).

VI. All the Rules, Regulations, Directions, Guidelines and
Circulars including Master Direction - Non - Deposit
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016, issued by the Reserve Bank of
India, as amended from time to time.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
of the following:

i.  Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India covered under Companies Act, 2013;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.



During the period under review the Company has complied
with all the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc., stated herein above.

We further report that:

a. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Director, Non - Executive
Directors, Woman Director and Independent Directors. Ms.
Preetinder Virk was appointed as Non Executive Director
(Woman Director) on 31.03.2022 in place of Mrs. Priya
Jain, who has resigned from Directorship of the Company
on 31.03.2022. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions
of the Act and SEBI LODR.

b. In compliance of Regulations 17(1)(b) of SEBI LODR, which
become applicable to the Company effective September
7, 2021, on a comply or explain basis until March 31,
2023, the Company is in compliance with the same and
the necessary disclosures have been made in quarterly
compliance report on Corporate Governance submitted
to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI
LODR.

c. Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the
Board and its Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance
for meetings other than those held at shorter notice and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting(s).

d. All decisions are carried out with the consent of all the
Directors present in the meeting and members’ views are
captured and recorded in the minutes.

Statutory Reports

We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period the Company
has:

1. Issued and allotted of 20000 Secured Redeemable
Non - convertible Debentures (NCD) of face value of X
10,00,000/- each, aggregating to X 2,000 Crore, on private
placement.

2. Recommended for shareholders’ approval in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, as the payment of Final dividend
of Re.1/- per Equity Share of the Company for the financial
year 2021-22.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is
annexed as Annexure and forms integral part of this report.

For S. K. Hota & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

S. K. Hota

Proprietor

Membership No.: ACS 16165
CP No.: 6425

Date: 11.05.2022
Place: New Delhi

UDIN: A016165D000301923
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Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report of ICCL for financial year ended March 31, 2022

To,

The Members,
Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited (ICCL)

5t Fl
Man
1.

68

oor, Building No. 27, KG Marg, Connaught Place, New Delhi - 110001
agement Responsibility for Compliances

The maintenance and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, secretarial
standards is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S. K. Hota & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

S. K. Hota

Proprietor

Membership No.: ACS 16165
CP No.: 6425

Date: 11.05.2022
Place: New Delhi

UDIN: A016165D000301923
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Annual Report on CSR Activities for Financial Year _
Ending 31st March 2022

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Company focuses its CSR efforts on areas where maximum benefit accrues to society, such as education, health, sanitation,
rural development and environmental conservation etc. The Company also engages with stakeholders including experts,
NGOs, professional bodies / forums, and the government, and takes up such CSR activities that are important for the society
at large. The Company may also undertake such CSR projects of sudden criticality such as providing relief in areas stuck by
natural disasters etc.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. Name of Director Designation / Nature of | Number of meetings | Number of meetings

No. Directorship of CSR Committee of CSR Committee
held during the year | attended during the

year

1. Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.) | Chairman 3 3

2. Mr. Gagan Banga Member 3 2

3. Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar Member 3 3

4. Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat* Chairman 3 Nil

* Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat ceased to be Independent Director of the Company and member of the Committee w.e.f.
September 28, 2021 as his 2" term as Independent Director ended on that date. No meeting of the Committee was held during
his tenure as a member of the Committee.

Web - link consisting Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects as approved by the Board as disclosed on
the website of the Company.

Composition of the CSR Committee shared in point above and is available on the Company’s website at
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/board-of-directors and Policy of the Company and CSR projects is available at
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/csr-policy.

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

There are no projects undertaken or completed as on March 31, 2022, for which the impact assessment report is applicable
in FY 2022. The projects are being under taken on an ongoing basis.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any.

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from | Amount required to be set-off for
preceding financial years (in ) the financial year, if any (in X)
1. 2018-19 Nil Nil
2. 2019-20 Nil Nil
3. 2020-21 Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). X 28,940,009,192

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): X 578,800,184

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). X 578,800,184

69

ANNUAL REPORT


https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/board-of-directors
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/csr-policy

Indiabulls

HOME LOANS
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount Amount Unspent (in )
Spent for the .
Financial Year. Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
(in%) Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5)
section 135(6)
Amount Date of transfer | Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer
578,801,000 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1) () (3) (4) (5) (6) 7 (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sl.No. | Name of the Project. Item Local | Location of the Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation -
from the | area project. duration. | allocated for |  spentin transferred to | Impl ion | Through Imy ing Agency
listof | (Yes/ the project | thecurrent | Unspent CSR - Direct
activities | No). . financial Account for
in (in). Year the project as (Yes/No)
Schedule per section
Vil to the State. | District. (inx). 135(6) (in %). Name CSR Registration
Act. number.
1. Jan  Swasthya Kalyan (i) Yes PAN PAN 3 100,000,000 | 100,000,000 N.A. No Indiabulls CSR000 00380
Vahika  (JSK)-  Mobile India India Years Foundation
Medical Vans
2. Indiabulls  Foundation (i) Yes PAN PAN 3 50,000,000 50,000,000 N.A. No Indiabulls CSR000 00380
Charitable Clinics India India Years Foundation
3. Community Health (i) Yes PAN PAN 3 50,000,000 50,000,000 N.A. No Indiabulls CSR000 00380
Check-up Camps (x) India India Years Foundation
4, Eradicating Hunger- (i) Yes PAN PAN 3 50,000,000 50,000,000 N.A. No Indiabulls CSR000 00380
Nutrition ~ for ~ Under India India Years Foundation
Privileged People
5. Disaster Relief (xii) Yes PAN PAN 3 50,000,000 50,000,000 N.A. No Indiabulls CSR000 00380
Programme India India Years Foundation
6. Promotion of Education- (ii) Yes PAN PAN 3 100,000,000 | 100,000,000 N.A. No Indiabulls CSR000 00380
IBF Scholarship India India Years Foundation
Programme
7. Promotion of Education (ii) Yes PAN PAN 3 60,000,000 | 60,000,000 NA. No Indiabulls CSRO00 00380
including Gramin Yuva India India Years Foundation
Kendra for students
8. Promotion of Education (i) Yes PAN PAN 3 40,000,000 40,000,000 N.A. No Indiabulls CSR000 00380
including Gramin Yuva (ii) India India Years Foundation
Kendra for Girl students
9. Promotion of Education- (ii) Yes PAN PAN 3 28,794,896 28,794,896 N.A. No Indiabulls CSR000 00380
IBF Computer India India Years Foundation
Distribution Programme
10. Animal and Birds Welfare (iv) Yes PAN PAN 3 50,000,000 50,000,000 N.A. No Indiabulls CSR000 00380
Programme India India Years Foundation
11. Disaster Relief (xii) Yes PAN PAN 1 6,104 6,104 N.A. Yes N.A N.A
Programme India India Years
Total 578,801,000 578,801,000
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. Name Item from Local | Location ofthe | Amount Mode of Mode of implementation
No. of the the list of area project. spent implementation | —Through implementing
Project activitiesin | (Yes/ for the — Direct (Yes/ agency.
schedule Vil | No). State. | District. projea No). Name. | CSR registration
to the Act. (inX).
number.
1. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
3. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Total N.A.

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): X 578,801,000

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

(a)

Sl. No. | Particular Amount (in X)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 578,800,184
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 578,801,000
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 816

(iv)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 0
financial years, if any

(v)

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

0

Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. No. | Preceding Amount transferred Amount Amount transferred to Amount remaining
Financial Year. to Unspent CSR spent in the any fund specified under to be spent in
Account under reporting Schedule VIl as per section | succeeding financial
section 135 (6) (in | Financial Year 135(6), if any. years. (inX)
3) (inR). Name of | Amount | Date of
the Fund | (inRs). | transfer.
1. 2018-19 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2. 2019-20 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
3. 2020-21 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Total N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl. Project ID. | Name Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status
No. of the Year in duration. amount spent on amount spent of the
Project. | which the allocated | the project at the end project —
project was for the in the of reporting | Completed
commenced. project (in | reporting Financial Year. | /Ongoing.
). Financial (inX)
Year (in
Rs).
1 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
3 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Total N.A. N.A. N.A.

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR
spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).: No Assets Created During the Year

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). N.A.
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. N.A.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address
etc. N.A.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital
asset). N.A.

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): N.A.

For Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Gagan Banga Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.)

Member (Vice - Chairman, MD & CEO) Chairperson — CSR Committee
(DIN: 00010894) (DIN: 07577265)

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 12, 2022
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Annexure -5

Policy for Dealing with Related Party Transactions

INTRODUCTION

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (the “Company” /
“IHFL”) is governed, amongst others, by the rules and
regulations framed by Securities Exchange Board of
India (“SEBI”). SEBI has mandated every listed company
to formulate a policy on materiality of Related Party
Transactions and also on dealing with Related Party
Transactions. Accordingly, Pursuant to Regulation 23 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations”),
the Company has formulated this policy on materiality
of related party transactions and on dealing with related
party transactions.

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 dated November 9, 2021
(the “Regulations”), this Policy has been amended and
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, based
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its
meeting held on February 9, 2022.

This policy aims at preventing and providing guidance
in situations of potential conflict of interests in the
implementation of transactions involving such related
parties.

In accordance with the Listing Regulations, this Policy shall
govern the Related Party Transactions by the Company and
the subsidiaries of the Company to the extent applicable
to them.

This Policy shall be effective from April 1, 2022.
DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Policy, the following definitions
apply:

a) “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013, for the time
being in force and as amended from time to time.

b) “Applicable Law” includes (a) the Act and rules
made thereunder as amended from time to time;
(b) the Listing Regulations, as amended from time
to time; (c) Indian Accounting Standards; and (d) any
other statute, law, standards, regulations or other
governmental circulars, notifications or instructions
(including circulars, notifications and guidance issued
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India from
time to time) relating to Related Party Transactions as
may be applicable to the Company.

c) “Listing Regulations” means the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, for the time being in force and as
amended from time to time.

d) “Audit Committee” means Committee of Board
of Directors of the Company constituted under
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

e) “Board/Board of Directors” means the board of
directors of IHFL.

f)  “Related Party” shall mean a person or entity that
is related to the Company as defined under Section
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 or under Regulation
2(zb) of the Listing Regulations, as may be amended
from time to time.

g) “Related Party Transaction” shall mean all transactions
as per Section 188 of the Act or under regulation
2(zc) of the Listing Regulations or as per applicable
accounting standards, as may be amended from time
to time.

h) “Material Transaction” means transaction(s) defined
as Material Related Party Transaction(s) under
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulation, 2015.

i)  “Material Modification” means any modifications to
the related party transactions which were approved
by the Audit Committee or Shareholders (in case of
a material related party transaction) (i) where the
variation exceeds 20% of the originally approved
transaction, in case of any monetary modification;
or (ii) which, in the opinion of the Audit Committee,
significantly alters the nature or commercial terms of
the transaction.

j)  “Arm’s length transaction” means a transaction
between two related parties that is conducted as if
they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of
interest.

k) “Ordinary Course of Business” - The transactions shall
be in the ordinary course of business if - (a) If the
transaction is covered in the main objects or objects in
furtherance of the main objects or (b) If the transaction
is usual as per industry practice or (c) If the transaction is
happening frequently over a period of time and is for the
business purpose of the Company.

) “Annual Consolidated Turnover” is defined as Total
Income (including other income) of the last audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

All capitalized terms used in this Policy but not defined
herein shall have the meaning assigned to such term in
the Act and the Rules thereunder and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (Listing Regulations), as amended from time to time.
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POLICY

All RPTs must be in compliance of this Policy and subject to
all applicable regulatory requirements.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF

RELATED  PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

Approval of Related Party Transactions:

A. Audit Committee:

All the transactions which are identified as
Related Party Transactions and subsequent
Material Modifications should be pre-approved
by the Audit Committee of the Company before
entering into such transaction. The Audit
Committee shall consider all relevant factors
while deliberating the Related Party Transactions
for its approval.

Only those members of the Audit Committee,
who are independent directors, shall approve
Related Party Transactions and subsequent
Material Modifications. Any member of the
Audit Committee who has a potential interest
in any such Related Party Transaction will recuse
himself and shall not participate in discussion
and voting on the approval of such Related Party
Transactions.

All the Related Party Transactions to which the
subsidiary of the Company is a party, but the
Company is not a party should be pre-approved
by the Audit Committee before entering into
such transaction, if the value of such transaction
whether entered into individually or taken
together with previous transactions during a
financial year exceeds threshold of:

a. 10 per cent of the annual consolidated
turnover in accordance with the last audited
financial statements of the Company.

b. 10 per cent of the annual standalone
turnover in accordance with the last audited
financial statements of the subsidiary
(effective from 1 April 2023).

B. Board of Directors:

In case any Related Party Transactions and
subsequent Material Modifications are referred
by the Audit Committee to the Board for its
approval due to the transaction being (i) not in
the ordinary course of business, and (ii) not at an
arm’s length price, the Board will consider such
factors as, nature of the transaction, material
terms, the manner of determining the pricing and
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the business rationale for entering into such
transaction. On such consideration, the Board
may approve the transaction or may require
such modifications to transaction terms as it
deems appropriate under the circumstances.

ii. Any member of the Board who has any
interest in any Related Party Transaction and
subsequent Material Modifications will recuse
himself and shall not participate in discussion
and voting on the approval of such Related
Party Transaction.

Shareholders:

i.  All the Related Party Transactions which are
Material Transactions as per Regulation 23
of the Listing Regulations and subsequent
Material Modifications of such material
transactions shall require shareholders’ prior
approval.

ii.  All the Related Party Transactions which are not
in the ordinary course of business, or notatarm’s
length price and exceeds certain thresholds
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, it
shall require shareholders’ prior approval.

iii. None of the related parties of the Company,
whether or not such related party(ies) is a party
to the Related Party Transactions, shall vote to
approve material Related Party Transactions,
unless permitted under Applicable Law.

OMNIBUS APPROVAL BY AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Audit Committee may grant an omnibus approval
for related party transactions which shall be valid for a
period of 1 year. The conditions for according omnibus
approvals will be as follows:

1.

The Related Party Transactions are repetitive in
nature or foreseeable and are in the interest of the
Company;

The Related Party Transactions under the omnibus
approval route shall be reported to the Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis for its noting;

Where the need for Related Party Transactions
cannot be foreseen and the details thereof are
not available, the Audit Committee may grant
omnibus approval for such transactions subject
to their value not exceeding rupees one crore per
transaction per related party. Such transactions
shall also be reported to the Audit Committee on a
quarterly basis for its noting.



VI.

Notwithstanding the generality of foregoing, Audit
Committee shall not grant omnibus approval for following
transactions:

1. Transactions which are not in ordinary course of
business or not on arm’s length and covered under
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act;

2. Transactions in respect of selling or disposal of an
undertaking of the Company;

3. Transactions which are not in the interest of the
Company;

4. Such other transactions specified under Applicable
Law from time to time.

THRESHOLD LIMITS FOR MATERIALITY OF RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The threshold limits for materiality of related party
transactions shall be —

(a) X 1000 (Rupees One Thousand Crores), or

(b) ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover,
as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

VII.

VIIl.
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DISCLOSURE OF THE POLICY

As mandated under the Applicable Law, the Company
shall disclose this Policy on its website i.e. http://www.
indiabullshomeloans.com/ and in the Annual Report.
Disclosures regarding related party transactions will be
made in accordance with and in the manner and format
prescribed therein.

POLICY REVIEW

This Policy is framed based on the provisions of Regulation
23 of the Listing Regulations. This Policy may be amended,
modified or supplemented to ensure compliance with
any modification, amendment or supplementation to the
Applicable Law once in three years or as may be otherwise
prescribed by the Audit Committee/ Board from time to
time.

GENERAL

This Policy shall be subject to the Listing Regulations,
wherever any one or more clauses of this Policy is
repugnant to or in variance with the Listing Regulations,
such clause/clauses shall be deemed to be replaced with
the relevant Listing Regulations, in case of conflict between
the provisions of Regulations/Applicable Law and this
Policy, the provisions of Regulations/Applicable Law shall
prevail, so as to be in consonance and harmony therewith.

Exceptions stipulated under Applicable Law for Related
Party Transactions shall be exempted from the scope of
this Policy unless the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors
of the Company decide otherwise.
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Annexure-6

DISCLOSURE ON MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Details of remuneration as required under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, are as under:-

Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employees’ remuneration, for FY 2021-22

Name & Designation Ratio of remuneration to median Employees’ remuneration
Mr. Gagan Banga, Vice Chairman, Managing Director & CEO 140:1
Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar, Deputy Managing Director 69:1
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, Executive Director* 16:1
Mr. Sachin Chaudhary, Executive Director & COO 69:1

*Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal has relinquished the office of Executive Director of the Company and has been re-designated as Non-
Executive Non Independent Director w.e.f. April 26, 2022.

Percentage increase in remuneration of each director and Key Managerial Personnel, in FY 2021-22

Name & Designation Increase in Remuneration [%]

0 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Mr. Gagan Banga, Vice Chairman, Managing Director & CEO 118.8% -56.6% -44.9%
Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar, Deputy Managing Director 38.7% -43.5% -45.0%
Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, Executive Director** NA -100% -100%
Mr. Sachin Chaudhary, Executive Director 31.4% -30.6% -10.8%
Mr. Mukesh Garg, Chief Financial Officer 37.1% -17.2% -10.8%
Mr. Amit Jain, Company Secretary 18.8% -15.3% 0.0%

**Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal did not draw any salary since October 2019 in FY 2019-20 and complete FY 2020-21

The salaries of KMPs were revised after they took large voluntary salary cuts in FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21. These cuts in
remuneration are also tabulated above. The relatively larger increase in the managerial remuneration in FY 2021-22, as compared
to that of other employees, is on account of the revision in the remuneration of KMPs undertaken in line with the improved
macro-economic conditions for the sector and better visibility of profitability for the Company.

The details of Fee for attending Board meetings and other incentives, if any, paid to Independent Directors and Non-Executive
Directors have been disclosed in the Annual Return as on March 31, 2022, which is available on the Company’s website on
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/ihfl-annual-return-mgt-7-fy-22-0333213001661262586.pdf.

The above table has been drawn up on the remuneration of the key managerial personnel in FY2021-22.
Average percentile increase in the median remuneration of employees other than Managerial Personnel, in FY 2021-22

The average increase in the remuneration of all the employees, other than Managerial Personnel, was 17.1% [FY21: 6.2%; FY20:
2.2%). This was determined based on the overall performance of the Company and internal evaluation of Key Result Areas.

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company
The Company on consolidated basis had 4,603 employees on its permanent rolls, as of March 31, 2022.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial
year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration

The average percentage increase made in the salaries of all employees other than the key managerial personnel, for FY 2021-22
is around 15%, while the average increase in the remuneration of key managerial personnel is around 65%. For FY 2020-21, this
was -64% for KMPs v/s 0% for all employees other than KMPs; and for FY 2019-20, it was -65% for KMPs v/s 2.2% for all employees
other than KMPs. The rationale for exceptional increase in managerial remuneration is as mentioned in the paragraph earlier
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below the table of ‘Percentage increase in remuneration of each director and Key Managerial Personnel, in FY 2021-22’.

The Company follows prudent remuneration practices under the guidance of the Board and Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The Company’s approach to remuneration is intended to drive meritocracy and is linked to various parameters
including its performance, growth, individual performance, peer comparison of other housing finance companies, within the
framework of prudent Risk Management.

For Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Gagan Banga Ashwini Omprakash Kumar

Place: Mumbai Vice-Chairman,Managing Director & CEO Deputy Managing Director
Date: August 12, 2022 (DIN: 00010894) (DIN: 03341114)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Over the past 2 years, the COVID-19 pandemic has impacted
every country on the planet, with seismic consequences for
economic output. However, robust and innovative policy
support, generous government stimulus and support packages
along with quick availability of vaccines has helped economies
bounce back swiftly. The global economy recovered strongly
in CY 2021 even as new variants of the COVID-19 virus fuelled
additional waves of the pandemic.

Continued focus of global central banks to support growth
through accommodative policies, for an elongated period of
time, resulted into rising inflationary pressures by the end of CY
2021. This was further exacerbated by the Russia-Ukraine war
in February 2022, which led to increase in prices of fuel and gas,
as sanctions were imposed on Russia. In March 2022, China
began imposing strict lockdowns in various cities in-line with
its zero-COVID policy, leading to further bottlenecks in supply
chains, fuelling rise in commodity prices. To control inflation,
the US Fed has already increased policy rates four times, by a
total of 225 bps, and has indicated further rate hikes to control
inflation, which is at a 40-year high. The Bank of England too
raised interest rates 6 times since December 2021, taking the
Bank Rate to 1.75% - its highest level since late 2008, the most
in 27 years. The European Central Bank too moved away from
its policy guidance and raised policy rates by 50 bps in July
2022, for the first time in 11 years.

Successive shocks to the global economy are taking their toll in
terms of globalised inflationary surges, tightening of financial
conditions, sharp appreciation of the US dollar and lower
growth across geographies. Multilateral institutions, including
the International Monetary Fund (IMF), have revised global
growth projections downwards and highlighted rising risks of
recession. Preliminary gross domestic product in the US fell
by 0.9% on an annualised basis in the quarter of June 2022,
second straight quarterly decline after the reading dropped by
1.6% in first quarter of CY 2022, marking a 'technical recession'
for the US economy. While raising the rates in August 2022,
Bank of England said that it expected the UK to enter recession
in the fourth quarter of CY2022, with the recession lasting for
five quarters, longest since the global financial crisis.

For emerging market economies (EMEs), the risks are magnified,
as they have to contend with both domestic growth-inflation
trade-offs and spillovers from the most synchronised tightening
of monetary policy worldwide. EMEs are facing a rapid
tightening of external financial conditions, capital outflows,
currency depreciations and reserve losses simultaneously.
Some of them are also facing mounting burdens of debt
and default. Elevated food and energy prices and shortages
are rendering their populations vulnerable to insecurity of
livelihood. Disquietingly, globalisation of inflation is coinciding
with deglobalisation of trade. The pandemic and the war have
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ignited tendencies towards greater fragmentation, reshoring
of supply chains and retrenchment of capital flows, which will
pose long-term challenges for both globalisation and the global
economy.

DOMESTIC ECONOMY

The Indian economy witnessed wavering fortunes in FY 2021-
22. While the first quarter was marred on account of the deadly
second wave of COVID-19 pandemic, the second and third
quarter saw growth picking up post lifting up of the restrictions
and opening up of the economy. Towards the end of the year, as
the global macroeconomic outlook remained overcast with the
geopolitical disquiet, the emerging markets, including that of
India, too faced its perils despite being the onlookers. In spite
of the headwinds, India’s GDP recorded growth in every quarter
of the year due to low base of FY 2020-21. According to the
provisional estimates released by the National Statistical Office
(NSO), India’s Real GDP is estimated to have grown 8.7% in FY
2021-22, after contracting 6.6% in the previous fiscal. Nominal
GDP saw a growth of 19.5% in FY 2021-22 after contracting 1.4%
in FY 2020-21. However, due to prolonged geopolitical tension,
extreme volatility across markets and supply chain disruption,
the GDP growth for FY 2022-23 has been estimated to moderate
to 7.2%. The continuous approach to reinforce price stability,
sustained growth and financial stability by the government is
expected to support the GDP growth. With strong and resilient
fundamentals, India is expected to be amongst the fastest
growing economies during FY 2022-23, according to the IMF.

The economic price of war and retaliatory sanctions have
manifested itself in the form of record high inflation worldwide.
The Indian economy too has been impacted by the global
economic situation, grappling with the problem of high
inflation. In April 2022, inflation in India shot up to an 8-year
high of 7.79%. While the inflation edged down to 7.04% in
May 2022 and 7.01% in June 2022, it remained above the
RBI’s target range of 2% - 6% for the 6™ straight month. The
RBI sprung into action to control the burgeoning inflation by
announcing a surprise mid-cycle repo rate hike of 40 bps in May
2022, following it up with further 50 bps hikes in June 2022 and
August 2022, bringing up the repo rate 5.40%, 25 bps above
the pre-COVID level of 5.15%. The RBI is expected to focus on
withdrawal of accommodation to ensure that inflation remains
within its target range, while also supporting growth. For FY
2022-23, the RBI projects inflation to be at 6.7%.

As inflation in the USA reached a 40 year high, the US Fed
has been on a rate increase spree, the steepest since the
price-fighting era of 1980s. This resulted in the Indian rupee
depreciating to its all-time low, breaching the X 80 mark, as
FIl money made a flight to safe haven US dollar. The RBI has
utilized its war chest of forex reserves to control the rupee’s
depreciation, having spent close to USD 70 Billion since the
reserves reached a high of USD 641 Billion in October 2021.



The rupee has since erased some of its losses that stand in the
vicinity of 7% since the start of the year. Surplus liquidity in the
Indian financial system narrowed to X 76,034 Crores on July 28,
2022, compared with X 8.12 lakh Crores at the beginning of the
financial year on April 4, 2021.

India’s current account deficit (CAD) for FY 2021-22 came in at
1.2% of GDP, against a surplus of 0.9% in FY 2020-21, as the trade
deficit widened to USD 189.5 Billion from USD 102.2 Billion a
year ago. This was however better than the market forecast of
a CAD of 1.5% of GDP that keyed in the crude and commodity
price surges that happened during the year due to the ongoing
Russia-Ukraine war and the strict lockdown in China to fight the
new COVID-19 wave, creating supply bottlenecks worldwide.

India’s fiscal deficit for FY 2021-22 came in at 6.7% of GDP,
against a deficit of 5.2% in FY 2020-21. This was however
an improvement over the revised budget estimate of 6.9%
released by the Finance ministry in February 2022. The fiscal
deficit was contained marginally below the revised estimate,
benefitting from the higher tax and non-tax revenue receipts
and lower capital spending, which absorbed the deficit in
non-debt capital receipts and higher revenue expenditure. As
compared to previous year, there was a growth of around 35%
in revenue collection, led by growth of around 50% in direct
taxes and supported by around 20% growth in indirect taxes.
For FY 2022-23, India’s fiscal deficit is estimated to be at 6.4%
of GDP.

HOUSING SECTOR

The real estate industry was one of the industries that bore
the maximum brunt of the pandemic in 2020. However, the
industry displayed sheer resilience as it regained its mojo
back in 2021. The sentiment of the Indian real estate industry
clocked an all-time high in 2021, as the country witnessed
fortunes turning back in favour, especially in the second half
of the year. The sector not just regained the confidence from
the buyers but also from the investors. Union Budget'’s focus on
infrastructure, housing schemes and affordable housing was an
additional positive development. Affordable housing received
a boost through the announcement of allocation of X 48,000
Crores under PMAY urban and rural schemes in the Union
Budget 2022. Through this allocation, around 80 lakh houses
are expected to be completed by 2023 across the country.

The resurgence in housing demand is being witnessed across
geographies and price points, suggesting that the real estate
cycle has indeed turned. Housing sales recorded decadal highs
in several cities with the stock of inventory falling from its all-
time high levels. New project launches too gained momentum
as real estate developers regained confidence. The growth
momentum is expected to continue in fiscal 2023, as pent-
up demand for housing, increased affordability on account of
stable property rates, improved annual income of individual
borrowers over the past 4-5 years, coupled with historically low
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interest rates should encourage people to purchase a home or
a larger unit.

Impact of COVID-19 on Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
and Non-bank Finance Companies (NBFCs)

The first quarter of fiscal 2022 witnessed the second wave of
pandemic, affecting the credit growth of HFCs and NBFCs. As
per CRISIL Research, disbursements of HFCs/ NBFCs witnessed
a 40-60% decline in the first quarter of fiscal 2022 vis-a-vis
fourth quarter of fiscal 2021. However, on account of improved
affordability, pent-up demand and historically low interest
rates, the growth picked up significantly in second half of the
fiscal, leading to an estimated credit growth of ~13% in fiscal
2022. Based on CRISIL Research's forecast for fiscal 2023, HFCs/
NBFCs are expected to generate credit growth of 13-15% in
fiscal 2023.

The pandemic also had a negative affect on the asset quality
of HFCs/ NBFCs, with GNPAs on the home loans portfolio
estimated to have increased by a sharp 50 bps to 1.7% in fiscal
2021 and further to 1.8% in fiscal 2022 on account of stress
witnessed by the MIG and LIG borrowers post the second wave
during the first quarter of fiscal 2022. CRISIL Research expects
the GNPAs on home loans for fiscal 2023 to improve by 10 - 20
bps to 1.6-1.7% due to improvement in asset quality stress for
the segment.

Regulatory Forbearances & Schemes due to COVID-19

The spread of COVID-19 pandemic and the consequent
lockdowns across the country led to large scale economic
disruption across sectors and industries. In order to alleviate
financial burden on borrowers and to help businesses get back
on their foot, the government and the RBl announced a slew of
regulatory forbearances and schemes during the year - some of
the key being:

e Resolution Framework: In August 2020, the RBl announced
a Resolution Framework, whereby it allowed a one-time
restructuring of loans (OTR 1.0) experiencing COVID-19
related stress, without classifying them as NPA. Borrowers
classified as standard but not in default for more than 30
days as at March 1, 2020 were eligible to avail the benefits
under the resolution framework. In May and June 2021,
owing to the second wave of COVID-19, the RBI permitted
further relief under OTR 2.0 for individuals and small
businesses, with aggregate exposures from all lending
institutions of up to X 50 Crores, provided the borrowers
were classified as standard as at March 31, 2021. Under
OTR 2.0, the resolution was to be implemented by
December 31, 2021.

e ECLGS Scheme: The Finance Ministry of India launched the
Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) in May
2020 with an aim to provide X 3 Lakh Crores of unsecured
loans to MSMEs and business enterprises to mitigate
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the distress caused by the COVID induced lockdowns. In
November 2020, the scheme was extended to 26 other
sectors as identified by the Kamath Committee and the
health sector. The scheme provides 100% guarantee on
loans up to 20% of the eligible borrower’s total outstanding
credit as of February 29, 2020 subject to the loans being
less than or equal to 30 days past due as on February 29,
2020. In the Union Budget 2022, the validity of the scheme
was extended till March 31, 2023 or till an amount of X
5 lakh Crores is approved under ECLGS by all institutions,
whichever is earlier.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The fiscal year 2021-22 was a year of transformation for the
Company, whereby, the Company smoothly transitioned to its
retail-focused tech-enabled asset-light business model. IBH
now has fully operational and maturing co-lending partnerships
with 6 banks and financial institutions. For home loans, IBH has
partnered with Central Bank of India, Yes Bank, Indian Bank
and Punjab & Sind Bank, while for secured MSME loans, the
Company has partnered with RBL Bank, Central Bank of India,
Canara Bank and Punjab & Sind Bank. Tech integration with 2 of
the co-lending partners is already complete, and the remaining
tech integrations will be completed within fiscal year 2022-23
as well.

The Company began disbursals through the co-lending model
from the second quarter of the year, and through the asset-light
model, which is a combination of co-lending and loan sell down!

Along with the transition to transforming IBH into a retail
loan origination machine, the Company was also focused on
penetrating the Tier-3 and Tier-4 towns, to cater to the credit
underserved market, under its Smart City Home Loans and
Smart City LAP loan programmes. The Company added close to
1,200 employees and opened 36 branches, mostly in Tier-3 and
Tier-4 towns, during FY 2021-22. IBH has leveraged its eHome
Technology to create lean branches at such locations, occupied
by only 2-3 loan sourcing agents, thereby making the branch
operations ergonomic.

The Company also continued with its efforts of maintaining
a fortress balance sheet through the pillars of strong capital
position, healthy liquidity, adequate provisioning buffer and a
well-matched ALM.

The Company’s capital adequacy ratio and Tier 1 ratio
[standalone IBH] stood at 22.49% and 16.59% respectively,
against regulatory requirement of 15% and 10% respectively.

The Company raised liquidity of X 24,497 Crores during the
year, from various domestic and foreign banks and financial
institutions as well as retail investors through NCD issues.
Against a regulatory requirement of 50%, IBH’s Liquidity
Coverage Ratio (LCR) stood comfortably at 219% as at March
31, 2022. The Company’s net gearing further improved to 2.6x.
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With the Company having shifted to an asset-light business
model, the net gearing is expected to stabilize at 2.5x levels.

IBH has a strong provisioning pool of X 1,645 Crores on balance
sheet, which is over two times of the regulatory requirement
and equivalent to a healthy 2.8% of its loan book.

The Company continued with its stated aim of de-risking its
balance sheet by running down its developer loan book. The
Company witnessed strong recoveries during FY 2021-22,
and, on the back of the pick-up in the real estate sector, the
Company expects this trend to continue through FY 2022-23.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Company put on resilient performance in spite of the
challenging environment on account of multiple waves of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

The Company’s balance sheet stood at X 81,973 Crores as at
end of FY 2021-22. Total loan assets stood at X 72,211 Crores,
and loan book stood at X 59,333 Crores.

The Company’s revenues for the year ended March 31, 2022
were X 8,994 Crores and profits for the year were X 1,178
Crores.

At a consolidated level, gross non-performing loans as of March
31, 2022 amounted to X 2,318 Crores, equivalent to 3.21% of
loan assets. At a consolidated level, net non-performing loans
as at March 31, 2022 amounted to X 1,364 Crores, equivalent
to 1.89% of loan assets.

During FY 2021-22, the Company’s cost-to-income ratio went
up to 21.0% from 12.8% in FY 2020-21, owing largely to addition
of close to 1,200 staff and roll back of salary cuts taken by the
management during COVID-19.

The Company’s net gearing at 2.6x is one of the lowest amongst
its peers, in-line with its asset light business model. The
Company is also one of the best capitalized amongst peers with
capital adequacy ratio of 22.49%, on a standalone basis.

LOAN PORTFOLIO AND ASSET QUALITY

As at March 31, 2022, on a standalone basis, the product-wise
break-up of loans was — housing loans: 62% and non-housing
loans: 38%.

The Company’s asset quality remained stable during the year in
spite of the tough macro economic headwinds. The Company
has also created adequate provisioning buffer on its balance
sheet in order to tackle any and all future exigencies. Gross
NPAs, at a consolidated level, were at 3.21% and Net NPAs at
1.89% of total loan assets managed. Credit costs for the year
were at only 0.61% of average total loan assets, as compared to
1.1% in the previous year.

Collection efficiency for the Company too normalized to pre-
COVID levels.



GRANULARIZATION OF FUNDING

During fiscal 2021-22, the Company raised X 1,345 Crores
through two public issues of NCDs. Retail NCD issues will now
be a regular perpetual source of fund raising for the Company,
and will lead to greater ‘granularisation’ and ‘retailisation’ of
its liability franchise. The Company aims to raise X 2,000 Cr
through issuances of retail NCDs in FY 2022-23.

Well-matched ALM

Over the past 2 years, the Company has utilized its liquidity
buffer to smoothen its ALM, whenever there were instances
of a large repayment falling due at a given point in time. In
November 2020, the Company had deposited X315 Crores of full
dues against Masala Bonds ahead of its scheduled repayment
in February 2021. Using the same ALM management tool, the
Company ensured successful bond repayments of X 6,576 Cr
falling due in September 2021, by repurchasing X 4,340 Cr of
bonds, equivalent to 66% of the total maturing bonds, by May
2021 itself.

On similar lines, IBH voluntarily created a reserve fund for
timely repayment of its USD 350 Mn of Dollar bonds falling
due in May 2022. Herein, IBH periodically transferred the total
maturity proceeds of these bonds, in four tranches of 25%
each, to a debt repayment trust, managed by IDBI Trustee,
which was ultimately utilized towards scheduled redemption of
these bonds.

The Company will continue to undertake such proactive
management of ALM by utilizing its strong capital position
and comfortable levels of liquidity to provide comfort and
confidence to its bond holders and further strengthen the
Company’s credentials.

CREDIT RATING

Following the revision in credit rating outlook to ‘Stable’
received from CRISIL in FY 2020-21, in FY 2021-22, domestic
rating agencies ICRA and Brickwork and International rating
agency Moody’s too revised the Company’s rating outlook
to ‘Stable’. While revising the Company’s rating outlook,
Moody’s cited i) strong capital levels, ii) high liquidity levels,
and iii) stabilization in access to funding as rationale behind the
outlook revision.

OUTLOOK

The year FY 2021-22 was a year of ‘Transition and Growth’ for
the Company. The management believes that the Company has
now formed a good base and, in FY 2022-23, will look to scale
up growth in terms of AUM compounding, acquiring new retail
customers and opening new branches. To achieve these goals,
the Management would be looking to scale up disbursals under
its retail asset-light business model and operationalize its AIF
platform to restart disbursing wholesale loans.

Statutory Reports

Retail Asset-Light Model:

The year FY 2021-22 was to serve as a litmus test for the
Company’s new Asset-Light Business Model. The Company
focused on operationalizing its co-lending partnerships and
commence disbursals through the model. Through exquisite
planning and focused execution, the Company made
tremendous progress on this front, beyond what it had itself
anticipated. Buoyed by this success, the Company will now
look to mature its co- lending relationships and further scale
up disbursals under the model. For FY 2022-23, the Company
has committed demand for disbursing X 15,000 Crores of retail
loans through co-lending. In addition to this, IBH has ongoing
relationships for sell down of loans with 24 banks and financial
institutions. Combined, the Company will aim to disburse X
15,000 Crores retail loans in FY 2022-23 and scale it up further
to X 20,000 Crores in FY 2023-24. IBH will continue to invest in
people, branches and technology in order to capacitize itself
for this growth. One of IBH’s key areas of focus going ahead
would be to increase its presence in Tier-3 and Tier-4 towns,
leveraging its eHome Loans technology to open lean branches
in these towns. In FY 2022-23, the Company plans to open 35
—40 such new tech-enabled branches, mostly in Tier-3 and Tier-
4 towns, to cater to the under-tapped housing demand of the
‘Bharat’ population. The Company is aiming to serve 2,50,000
new retail customers through this expansion plan over the next
3 years.

Operating under the asset-light model will help IBH compound
its AUM, taking minimal risk on its balance sheet, as 80-90% of
loans will go off its balance sheet. Thus, while balance sheet
will remain flat or grow marginally, the AUM is expected to
grow by 10% in FY 2022-23 and by 15% in FY 2023-24.

AIF Platform for Wholesale Loans:

The Company went slow in doing incremental wholesale loans
about 4 years back, having sensed the stress being built up
in this sector. Over this period, the Company only disbursed
loans to its existing borrowers, to the extent needed to
complete their under-construction projects. With the turn
in the real estate cycle over the past 1 year, the Company
believes the time is ripe to resume doing new wholesale loans.
However, our previous experience has taught us that the ideal
structure of doing wholesale loans is off-balance sheet, in an
AIF structure, in partnership with external partners. Hence,
in FY 2022-23, the Company would focus on operationalizing
wholesale co-lending model through an AIF platform. The
platform will focus on lending to commercial real estate to tap
the Lease Rental Discounting opportunity, construction finance
for residential and commercial projects, investing in stressed
asset opportunities and providing mezzanine finance wherever
the opportunity presents itself.

IBH plans to tie-up with 3 global real estate focused funds for its
AIF platform. We have already received SEBI approval for one
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such fund and are in the process of getting approval for the
remaining two. In FY 2022-23, IBH plans to disburse X 10,000
Cr through these funds and further scale the disbursals up to
X 15,000 Cr in FY 2023-24. Of the loans disbursed through the
AIF, IBH’s participation would be limited to only 5% - 10%, which
will remain on its balance sheet, while it will earn processing
fees and annual management fees on the entire amount
disbursed. This platform will generate an RoA of 5.0%+ for the
Company, thus helping boost profitability.

Institutionalization of the Company:

In addition to the above business area of focus, the Company
will continue to work on institutionalizing the Company to
transform itself into a Board-driven Professionally-managed
organization with best-in-class corporate governance. We
expect the process of depromoterization of Mr. Gehlaut and
other group companies to be completed in CY 2022 subject
to receipt of regulatory approvals. The management is also
engaging with a few marquee global investors to bring them
in as strategic investors into the Company. Subsequently, such
significant institutional investors will also be offered board
seats, thus bringing direct institutional oversight into the
operations of the Company. This will not only help bolster the
Company’s capital, but will also aid in its endeavour to get a
rating upgrade.

FOCUS ON ESG TO DRIVE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH

In FY 2020-21, the Company had listed out objective targets
for FY 2026-27 and FY 2031-32 to improve upon its operations
such that they adhere to ESG best practices. During the year,
the Company undertook various operational steps, within
the organization as well as in partnership with external
parties, towards achieving these goals. IBH has engaged CERE
[Centre of Environmental Research and Education] to assess
its current environmental footprint. The Company has also
partnered with ESG Rating Firm Sustainalytics to develop a
Sustainable Financing Framework, which will support IBH’s
sustainability efforts. The Framework will be used by IBH for
issuing sustainable bonds of X 3,000 Crores in domestic and
international markets in FY 2022-23.

The Company has also constituted an ESG committee, chaired
by Justice Gyan Sudha Misra, to review the ESG initiatives
being taken by the Company in partnership with S&P and
Sustainalytics. ESG criteria will be a key in all operations and
processes of the Company.

The Company has embedded environmental, social and
governance [ESG] parameters into its institutional framework
— details about this have been laid out in a separate, dedicated
section in the annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has a well-defined risk governance structure
which includes periodic reviews and close monitoring to enable
building a sustainable business that takes care of the interests
of all stakeholders. Comprehensive annual risk review exercises
go towards continually updating the risk management policy.
The Company’s Chief Risk Officer [CRO] oversees the Company’s
risk management structure. The CRO reports into the Board of
Directors of the Company.

The Company’s Credit Committee works to identify and mitigate
credit risks to the Company by formulating policies on limits
on large credit exposures, asset concentrations, standards for
loan collateral, loan review mechanism, pricing of loans etc.
The credit committee is also responsible to frame approach
and policies for customer retention, especially those customers
that seek to transfer their loans out during interest rate cycles
when the Company’s interest rates may be misaligned higher
than the best rates available from other lenders.

The Company also has a system for evaluating Grievance
Redressal Mechanism and undertaking complete Root Cause
Analysis (RCA) to ensure recurring grievances are avoided in
future leading to improved customer service standards. On
June 11, 2021, the RBI extended the provisions of the risk-
based internal audit (RBIA) framework to HFCs, which were
required to be implemented by June 30, 2022. The Company
has implemented this framework within the organization.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an elaborate system of internal controls
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations; it also covers areas like financial reporting, fraud
control, compliance with applicable laws and regulations etc.
Regular internal audits are conducted to check and ensure that
responsibilities are discharged effectively. The Internal Audit
Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy
of internal control systems in the Company, its compliance
with regulatory directives, efficacy of its operating systems,
adherence to the accounting procedures and policies at all
branch offices of the Company and its subsidiaries. Wherever
required, the internal audit efforts are supplemented by audits
conducted by specialized consultants/ audit firms. Based on
the report of the Internal Auditors, process owners undertake
corrective actions, in their respective areas and thereby
strengthen the controls.

Material Developments in Human Resources

At IBH, we believe that our employees are our most
valuable assets and we endeavour to help them realize their
full potential. The Human Resource function looks after



employee recruitment, training, performance management,
emotional and mental well-being, financial wellness and stress
management. We believe in employee empowerment and
our efforts are focused on creating a happy and healthy work
environment. Our people have been and will continue to be our
core strength.

As on March 31, 2022, the Company on consolidated basis has
4,603 employees on its permanent rolls.
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The Company has been focusing on making its workforce more
diverse across gender, age, social and economic segments.
The Company had taken objective targets for FY 2026-27
and FY 2031-32 to balance out the gender ratio amongst its
employees and is actively working towards achieving the
same. The Company believes in recruiting young graduates and
training them towards higher positions of responsibility within
the organization. Campus recruitment drives and greater
engagement with colleges across the country would be another
area of focus going ahead.
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

I. Details

1.

2
3.
a

© ®© N o

11.
12,

13.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity:

Name of the Listed Entity

Year of incorporation

Registered office address

Corporate address

E-mail
Telephon
Website

Financial year for which reporting is being done

are listed

e

. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares

Paid-up Capital

L65922DL2005PLC136029
Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited
2005

5t Floor, Building No. 27, KG
Marg, Connaught Place,
New Delhi - 110001, India

Plot No. 422B, Udyog Vihar
Phase - IV, Gurugram- 122016, Haryana;

One International Centre, Tower -1,
18" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai —
400 013, Maharashtra

ibsecretarial@indiabulls.com
0124-6681212
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com

2021-22

BSE and NSE
X 93.71 crore

Name and contact details (telephone, email address) of the person who may be contacted in case of any queries on

the BRSR

Mr. Amit
Telephon
E-mail: ib

report :
Jain
e number: +91-011-6681341
secretarial@indiabulls.com

Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for the entity) or on
a consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and all the entities which form a part of its consolidated financial statements,
taken together). :
Disclosures made in this report are on a standalone basis and pertain only to Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited.

Il. Products/ services

14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):

15.

84

S. No. | Description of Main Activity Description of Business Activity % of Turnover (Total
Income) of the entity
1 Financial and Insurance Services Financial and Credit Leasing Activities 97.54%

Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

S. No. | Product/Service NIC Code | % of total Turnover
contributed
1 IBHFLs core business is financing mortgage backed loans, its business can 64192 100%

be classified as housing loans and non-housing loans. All other activities
of the Company revolve around the main business.

As at 31 March 2022, the asset composition on loan book on standalone
basis stands at 62% of Housing Loans and 38% of Non-Housing Loans.
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Ill. Operations
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16. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants Number of offices Total
National Not Applicable* 143 143
International 2 2

*The Company is a Housing Finance Company and hence does not undertake any manufacturing activities.

17. Markets served by the entity:

a. Number of locations
Locations Number
National (No. of States) 17
International (No. of Countries) 2
b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
Not applicable
c. A brief on types of customers

Indiabulls Housing Finance has a balance sheet size of more than X 800 billion (on a consolidated basis) as of 31
March, 2022 and has serviced more than 1 million happy customers.

Customer compositions based on loan assets as on 31 March, 2022;

Categories of customers based on income group % by Count % by Amount
Loans to Economically Weaker Sections (EWS) - (Up to X 3 lac) 19% 12%
Low Income Group - (Above X 3 lac up to X 6 lac) 39% 22%
Middle Income Group - (Above X 6 lac up to X 18 lac) 33% 32%
High Income Group - (Above X 18 lac) 9% 34%
Total 100% 100%
Categories of customers based on employment group % by Count % by Amount
Salaried 55% 40%
Self-employed 45% 60%

*Note: the above data is only for individual borrowers
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IV. Employees

18. Details as at the end of Financial Year:

a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

S. Particulars Total (A) Male Female
No. No.(B) | % (B/A) | No.(C) | %(c/A)
EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 4330 3891 90% 439 10%
2. Other than Permanent (E) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
3. Total employees (D + E) 4330 3891 90% 439 10%
WORKERS
4, Permanent (F) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
5. Other than Permanent (G) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
6. Total workers (F + G) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
b. Differently abled Employees and workers:
S. Particulars Total (A) Male Female
No No.(B) |%(B/A)| No.(C) | %(c/A)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 7 2 29% 5 71%
2. Other than Permanent (E) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
3. Total differently abled employees (D + E) 7 2 29% 5 71%
DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
4. Permanent (F) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
5. Other than permanent (G) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
6. Total differently abled workers (F + G) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
19. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women
Total (A) No. and percentage of Females
No. (B) % (B/A)
Board of Directors 9 1 11.11%
Key Management Personnel 2 Nil N.A.
20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers
(Disclose trends for the past 3 years)
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020 (Turnover rate

(Turnover rate in current FY)

(Turnover rate in previous FY)

in the year prior to the
previous FY)

Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total
Permanent Employees 9% 8% 17% 14% 17% 32% 14% 7% 21%
Permanent Workers N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
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V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

21. (a) Names of Holding / Subsidiary / Associate companies / Joint ventures as at March 31, 2022**

S. Name of the Holding/Subsidiary / Associate companies/ Joint Indicate whether % of shares
No. | ventures(A) Holding/ Subsidiary/ | held by listed
Associate/ JointVenture entity
1. Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited Subsidiary 100%
2. Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited Subsidiary 100%
3. Indiabulls Collection Agency Limited Subsidiary 100%
4, Ibulls Sales Limited Subsidiary 100%
5. Indiabulls Capital Services Limited Subsidiary 100%
6. Indiabulls Advisory Services Limited Subsidiary 100%
7. Indiabulls Insurance Advisors Limited Subsidiary 100%
8. Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited Subsidiary 100%
9. Indiabulls Holdings Limited Subsidiary 100%
10. | Indiabulls Asset Holding Company Limited Subsidiary 100%
11. | Nilgiri Investmart Services Limited (Formerly known as Nilgiri Subsidiary 100%
Financial Consultants Limited)
12. | Indiabulls Investment Management Limited (Formerly known as Subsidiary 100%
Indiabulls Venture Capital Management Company Limited)
13. | Indiabulls Asset Management Mauritius (Foreign Company)* Subsidiary 100%

*Struck off w.e.f. July 18, 2022.

**Does not include ICCL Lender Repayment Trust and Pragati Employees Welfare Trust being these are in the nature of trust and
the holding company along with its subsidiaries does not have any equity interest therein.

Does the entities indicated in the above table participate in the Business Responsibility initiatives of the entity? (Yes/ No)

There might be similarities in the Business Responsibility initiatives of the entities mentioned in the table to that of the Company.

VL.
22. (i)

(i)

(iii)

CSR Details

Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 : Yes

Turnover : X 7,765 Crore

Net worth : X 15,652 Crore

VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct:

Stakeholder Grievance FY 2022 FY 2021
group from Redressal Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
whom complaint | Mechanism in
is received Place (Yes/No)

(If Yes, then Number of Number of Remarks | Number of Number of Remarks

provide complaints complaints complaints complaints
web-link for | filed during pending filed during pending
grievance the year resolution at the year resolution at
redress policy) close of the year close of the year

Communities Yes -- -- - - -- -
Investors Yes -- -- -- -- -- --
(other than
shareholders/
NCD holders)
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24.

Stakeholder Grievance FY 2022 FY 2021
group from Redressal Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
whom complaint | Mechanism in
is received Place (Yes/No)
(If Yes, then Number of Number of | Remarks | Number of | Number of | Remarks
provide complaints complaints complaints | complaints
web-link for | filed during pending filed during pending
grievance the year resolution at the year resolution
redress close of the at close of
policy) year the year
Shareholders Yes 835 0 -- 187 0 --
Employees and Yes -- -- -- -- -- --
workers
Customers Yes 856 -- -- 1329 27 --
Value Chain Yes 0 0 0 0 0 0
Partners
Other (NCD Yes 145 0 - 43 - -
Holders)

Some of the policies guiding the Company's conduct with all its stakeholders, including grievance mechanism are place on
the Company's website. The hyperlink is: https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/grievance-redressal-policy. In addition,
there are internal policies placed on the intranet of the Company.

Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and social
matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to adapt or
mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format

S. Material Indicate Rationale for identifying the | Approach to adapt or | Financial implications
No. | issue whether risk/ opportunity mitigate of the risk or
identified risk or opportunity (Indicate
opportunity positive or negative
(R/0) implications)
1 Corporate Opportunity | Having clearly delineated | In order to strengthen | Positive: Strong Board
Governance policies and processes and | corporate governance at | and transparency
a board of directors and | Indiabulls  Housing, the | of operations will
executive managers who | company has stayed true to | increase confidence
maintain the compliance | its core values of Customer | in investors and other
culture directly supports | First, Transparency, Integrity | stakeholders.
improved results. and Professionalism
Organisations with  good | Board has been strengthened

corporate governance can

borrow funds at lower
rates than those with weak
corporate governance

because they are seen as
stable, reliable and capable of
mitigating potential risks.

through introductions of very
experienced independent
directors. More than 50%
of the Board comprises of
Independent Directors. All key
board committees chaired by
Independent Directors.

IBH has inducted MD of LIC
onto its Board, to bring direct
institutional oversight on
its business operations. LIC
is IBH’s largest institutional
shareholder and bondholder.
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S. Material Indicate Rationale for identifying the | Approach to adapt or | Financial implications

No. | issue whether risk/ opportunity mitigate of the risk or
identified risk or opportunity (Indicate

opportunity positive or negative
(R/0) implications)

IBH utilizes best-in-class

information security

practices and adopts leading

data privacy standards.

2 Priority Opportunity | Priority sector lending within | IBH is catering to credit | Positive:  Addressing
Sector home loans is towards | underserved population of | housing shortage is a
Lending affordable housing, and helps | Tier 3 and Tier 4 towns by | great way to lift the

families purchase their first | establishing lean branches | economy, since it
home, thus helping address | leveraging its eHome Loans | provides a way to help
the country’s vast housing | technology. This will help | the credit underserved
gap. people from these towns | population of the
. . to achieve their dream of | country and contribute

Lending to small businesses . \
and micro, small & medium owning a home. to the’ Gov'ernmentls
enterprises [MSMEs] also | IBH offers a means to small goal of ‘Housing for all
constitutes priority sector | businesses and MSMEs to | Serving the credit
lending, small businesses and | unlock the value of their | demand of the crucial
MSMEs are a vital category | property and avail funding | MSME sector will help
accounting for 30% of India’s | for their businesses at | propel the country’s
GDP reasonable ‘mortgage- | economy

backed finance’ rates. The

Company thus provides

vital funding support to the

economically and socially

crucial small business

and MSME sectors of the

country’s economy.

3 Customer Risk and Opportunities: All  customer complaints | Positive: The deeper
Satisfaction Opportunity received across branches/ | the satisfaction of a

A ‘customer first’ approach
is at the core of IBH’s
operations. Along with focus
on customer experience,
IBH also strive to ensure
transparency in its operations
and communication.

Risk:

Since IBH is a provider of
housing and  mortgage
backed loan products and
services to a large number
of customers, an unpleasant
customer experience
could result in them losing
customers or even damaging
the reputation.

front channels are managed
through a centralised
complaints management
system for tracking and
timely resolution. We
continue to take steps to
ensure customer satisfaction,
and aim to increase it from
current 90% to 95% by FY25.

customer, the lower
the churn rate, and
the higher the brand
loyalty. IBH’s goal is to
provide hassle- free
smooth home buying
experience to its
customers.

89

ANNUAL REPORT



Indiabulls

HOME LOANS

SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place towards adopting the

NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

Disclosure Questions

Policy and management processes

1. a. Whether your entity’s policy/policies cover each
principle and its core elements of the NGRBCs. (Yes/

No)

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

b. Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes/No)

Yes. The policy has been approved by the Board.

c. Web Link of the Policies, if available

https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/investor-relations/codes-policies

2. Whether the entity has translated the policy into
procedures? (Yes / No)

Yes. The Company has translated the policies as applicable and
imbibed the same into procedures and practices in all spheres
of activities that it undertakes.

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain
partners? (Yes/No)

Yes. The Company’s Code of Conduct largely imbibes the
above-mentioned principles and the Company expects its
stakeholders to adhere to the same in all their dealings.

4., Name of the national and international codes/
certifications/labels/ standards (e.g. Forest Stewardship
Council, Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Trustea) standards
(e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS) adopted by your entity
and mapped to each principle.

Not Applicable

5. Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the entity
with defined timelines, if any.

IBHFL is committed towards following values;
1. Towards Environment;

Towards achieving carbon neutrality by FY32, IBH will
adopt a greener business model by focusing on the
following;

a. Leverage on technology;

e Share of e-home loan applications - 55% by FY27
and 75% by FY32;

e  Fulfilling service requests of customers through
digital mediums- 50% by FY27 and 80% by FY32;

e Digital initiatives for customer/ stakeholder
interaction  through efficient modes of
communication.

b. Reduce environmental footprint;

e Reduction in scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions - 25%
by FY27, 30% by FY32;

e  Reduction in scope 3" GHG emissions - 25% by
FY27, 35% by FY32;

e Recycle over 90% of all waste in tier-1 cities by
end of FY27.
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LED lighting in 100% of offices by FY23;

Renewable powered offices to be 10% of all
offices by FY27;

Plant 1 lakh trees by FY27 and 2.5 lakh trees by
FY32;

“No Single use Plastic” policy has been adopted
since FY18.

c. Responsible lending

Lending rate discount for customers who have a
positive environment and social impact;

Exclude lending to customers who do not meet
ESR framework criteria of the company.

Towards Society;

The vision of IBH is to be a sustainable company for the
community, its employees and its customers;

a. Employee welfare and experience;

Work towards best-in-class employee experience
and be recognized as the preferred employer#;

Gender diversity — Of the Company’s managerial
staff, 30% to be women by FY27 and 40% to be
women by FY32;

Employee First - 40% managerial job openings to
be offered first to existing employees ;

Continued focus on training and increase hours
of training from 22 hours per person in FY19 to
40 hours per person by FY25 and 60 hours per
person by FY32 Financial inclusion and customer
first approach;

Financial inclusion — Focus on affordable housing
and business loans to micro, small and medium
enterprises. 75% retail lending to be towards
affordable housing and priority sector loans;

“Phygital” Strategy — Add 100 branches in Tier 3
and 4 cities by FY25;

Drive customer satisfaction to 95% by FY25.

6. Performance of the entity against the specific
commitments, goals and targets along-with reasons in
case the same are not met.

Not Applicable

Governance, leadership and oversight
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7. Statement by director responsible for the business
responsibility report, highlighting ESG related challenges,
targets and achievements (listed entity has flexibility
regarding the placement of this disclosure)

Please refer to the ESG section of the Annual Report.

8. Details of the highest authority responsible for
implementation and oversight of the Business
Responsibility policy (ies).

Mr. Sachin Chaudhary

Designation: Executive Director & COO

9. Does the entity have a specified Committee of the
Board/ Director responsible for decision making on
sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, provide
details.

Yes.

The board of directors and senior management of the Company
monitor various aspects of social, environmental, governance
and economic responsibilities of the Company on a continuous
basis.

The Company’s business responsibility and sustainability
performance is reviewed by the Board of Directors on an
annual basis.

The executive directors are responsible for the strategy and
implementation of the Company’s ESG framework.

The performance of the Company from a perspective of
business responsibility is assessed by the following committees
of the board:

(i) the ESG Committee;
(ii) the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; and
(iii) the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

In addition, the Risk Management Committee and the IT
Strategy Committee also assesses risks pertaining to certain
principles of business responsibility and sustainability.

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Subject for Review

other Committee

Indicate whether review was undertaken by
Director / Committee of the Board/ Any

Frequency

(Annually/ Half yearly/ Quarterly/ Any other
- please specify)

plPp[P[P[P][P

1/2 |3 /4|56

plep[Pp|P[P[P|[P[P[P|[P[P][P

7/ 8]9 |1 |23 /4|5 |6|7|8]|09

Performance against above
policies and follow up action

As a practice, BR policies of the Company are reviewed periodically or on a need basis by
department heads, business heads, executive directors and the board.

During this assessment, the efficacy of the policies are reviewed and necessary changes to
policies and procedures are implemented.

Compliance with statutory
requirements of relevance

to the principles and
rectification of any non-
compliances

The Company is in compliance with the extant regulations, as applicable.

11. Has the entity carried out independent assessment/ evaluation of the
working of its policies by an external agency? (Yes/No). If yes, provide

name of the agency.

PL[P2[ P3| P4a[P5[P6|P7[P8]PO
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The processes and compliances may be subject
to scrutiny by internal auditors and regulatory
compliances, as applicable.

From a best practices perspective as well as
from a risk perspective, policies are periodically
evaluated and updated by various department
heads, business heads and approved by
the management and/or board. The report
has been reviewed by the department in
charge of Policy Implementation and Process

Management.

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core Elements with key
processes and decisions. The information sought is categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership”. While the essential indicators are
expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may be voluntarily disclosed
by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be socially, environmentally and ethically responsible.

PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is Ethical, Transparent and

Accountable.

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the financial year:

Segment

Total number of
training and awareness
programmes held

Topics/ principles covered
under the training and its
impact

% of persons in respective
category covered by the
awareness programmes

Board of Directors or KMPs

Handling Irate Customers
Regulatory Module — PMAY, KYC
& AML, FPC, POSH, IS
Living The Essential Habits
Orientation Program

CRM

The Paradigm Shift

RBL Co-Origination Process
Caution Advice No. 53-
Fraudulent Transactions
The Success Mindset.

Board of Directors/ During the year, the Board of Directors and KMPs of the 100
. Company spent more than 8 % hours on various familiarisation
Key Managerial Personnel . .
programmes, comprising matters relating to an array of
(KMP) issues pertaining to business, regulations, economy and
environmental, social and governance parameters.
Employees other than 9 Customer Centricity and 90

2. Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in proceedings (by the
entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the
following format (Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI
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(Listing Obligations and Disclosure regulations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the entity’s website):

Monetary

NGRBC
Principle

Name of the regulatory/
enforcement agencies/
judicial institutions

Amount
(InX)

Brief of the Case

Has an
appeal
been
preferred?
(Yes/No)

Penalty/ Fine

The  National  Stock
Exchange of India Limited
(“NSE”) vide letter dated
December 10, 2021

227,140
including
GST.

Non-disclosure in the financial statements
for the quarter and half year ended
September 30, 2021, under regulation
54(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the
extent and nature of security.

No

BSE Limited vide email
dated December 10, 2021

227,140
including
GST

Non-disclosure in the financial statements for
the quarter and half year ended September
30, 2021, under regulation 54(2) of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 of the extent and nature of
security created and maintained with respect
to secured listed NCDs.

No

Settlement

Compounding
Fee

Company

X1,902,000

Penalty levied vide the order issued by
the Office of Regional Director, Northern
Region in connection with Compounding
Applications/ petitions under section 441
of the Companies Act, 2013 filed with the
ROC for Compounding of offences, under
various provisions of the Companies Act
and Rules made thereunder.

No

Directors & KMPs

45,664,000

Penalty levied vide the order issued by
the Office of Regional Director, Northern
Region in connection with Compounding
Applications/ petitions under section 441
of the Companies Act, 2013 filed with the
ROC for Compounding of offences, under
various provisions of the Companies Act
and Rules made thereunder.

No

Non-Monetary

NGRBC
Principle

Name of the regulatory/
enforcement agencies/
judicial institutions

Brief of the
Case

Has an appeal been preferred? (Yes/No)

Imprisonment

NIL

Punishment
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Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases where monetary or non-
monetary action has been appealed.

Case Details Name of the regulatory/ enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions
N.A.

Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if available, provide a web-
link to the policy.

Yes. The Company has an anti-bribery and anti-corruption policy. The policy emphasizes IHFL's zero tolerance towards bribery
and corruption practices. The policy provides necessary information and guidance on how to recognize and deal with bribery
and corruption issues.

Here is the web-link to the policy:

https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/anti-corruption-and-anti-bribery-
policies-0432314001627464835.pdf#page=2

Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law enforcement
agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

0 FY 2021
(Previous Financial Year)
Directors
KMPs Nil
Employees
Workers

Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

FY 2022 FY 2021
(Current Financial Year) (Previous Financial Year)

Number Remarks Number Remarks

Number of complaints received in relation to issues of Conflict -- - - --
of Interest of the Directors
Number of complaints received in relation to issues of Conflict -- -- -- -
of Interest of the KMPs

Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action taken by regulators/
law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of interest.

No corrective actions pertaining to above mentioned parameters was necessitated by IBH during the year under review.
Leadership Indicators.
1. Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during the financial year:

The Company conducted training programmes for its direct selling agents so as to enable them to effectively use the
Company’s digital eHome Loan platform.

2. Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests involving members of the Board? (Yes/
No) If Yes, provide details of the same.

Yes. the Company has zero-tolerance policy toward unethical business practices. Any conflict of interest that may arise in
the Company's business activities with any of its stakeholders is addressed through a guidance mechanism.

IBHFL and its subsidiaries have a policy on related party transaction which requires all the transactions done in ordinary
course of business to be at arm’s length:

https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/ihfl_policy-on-related-party-transactio
ns_24042019_-0636749001589623709.pdf
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PRINCIPLE 2 Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

Essential Indicators

1.

Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the environmental and
social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by the entity, respectively.

Given the nature of business, IBHFL's capex is largely restricted to Information Technology (IT). In FY22, The Company has spent
more than X 7 Crore on IT and Digital platform in FY2021-22. Year- over- year the company strives to reduce its environmental
footprint by promoting a fully digital platform for its new and existing customers. Also, by embracing digital platforms, the
company increases operational efficiency and reduces paper usage, ultimately reducing its carbon footprint.

a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)
b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

IBHFL provides housing and mortgage loans, and thus, Company neither has a sizeable consumption of any raw material
nor produces any tangible goods. Its activities are limited to providing financial solutions to its customers; hence we do not
maintain records for sustainable sourcing. However, the company employs extensive use of technology to source its loans so
as to reduce consumption of paper, petrol and large branches and thus conserve energy. Over 35% of the loans sourced by
the Company in FY 2021-22 was through its digital technology platform.

Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the end of life, for (a)
Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste.

IBHFL provides home and mortgage loans to its customers and does not manufacture any products, hence we do not currently
maintain records for hazardous and other waste generation. However, IBHFL's offices in metro cities have tied-up with recycling
companies to recycle all recyclable waste. Also, for e-waste generated by the Company, tie-ups with handful of green certified
recycling vendors have been done to centrally manage and recycle the PAN- India e-waste. At all its branches, IBHFL promotes
usage of glass bottles for drinking water, so as to reduce use of plastic bottles.

Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes / No). If yes, whether the waste
collection planis in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not,
provide steps taken to address the same.

Given the nature of our business, the above is not applicable

Leadership Indicators

1. Hasthe entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for manufacturing industry)
or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following format?

The core business activity of IBHFL is providing mortgage loans. The loan onboarding is a sequential process starting from
loan sourcing, processing, disbursement, servicing and repayment of the loan. Details are summarized below:

a) Sourcing of Loan

At IBHFL, loans are sourced through digital channels, branches, and Direct Sale Agent (DSA). The application is further
processed through our digital end-to-end channel. This platform offers a coherent digital home loan experience, right
from the application stage to loan disbursal, with the channelization of what we call the 4E’s: e-APPLY, e-SANCTION,
e-DISBURSE, and e-ENGAGE.

b) Loan Processing
- Document Submission:

With the help of IBHFL's Relationship manager, the application form is uploaded on the digital portal and various
documents are uploaded which are then processed through an analytics-driven underwriting engine to provide
a first-level, real-time sanction.
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- Credit Underwriting:

As part of the appraisal process, the submitted documents undergo various checks to ensure authenticity and
compliance with regulations.

- Legal Appraisal:
The title documents of the property are verified to ensure title is clear and marketable.
- Technical Appraisal:

Dual appraisal through an in-house technical team as well as external technical team is undertaken of the
project related documents and verification of the stage of construction of the project to ascertain the amount
that can be disbursed

Disbursement

On approval, the disbursement is also done digitally which offers an unmatched convenience both to the Company
and its customers, as it substantially reduces the paperwork and time to process the application and disbursement
of loan.

Servicing

The loan servicing process involves the administrative aspects of the loan from the time the proceeds are disbursed
to the borrower until the loan is repaid. In addition to this, a customer may request change in personal information,
add/change nominees, or file a grievance.

Repayment & Closure

The customer is then given a mortgage release letter and NOC (No Objection Certificate) stating that all dues towards
the loan has been fully repaid after the loan is completely repaid / prepaid. Original or copies of title documents for
the property and any other documents obtained during the legal process are then released.

If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from production or disposal of your
products / services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) or through any other means, briefly
describe the same along-with action taken to mitigate the same.

Given the nature of our business, the above is not applicable.

Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production (for manufacturing
industry) or providing services (for service industry).

Given the nature of our business, the above is not applicable.

Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) reused, recycled, and
safely disposed, as per the following format.

Given the nature of our business, the above is not applicable.

Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each product category

Given the nature of our business, the above is not applicable
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PRINCIPLE 3 Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in their value chains

Essential Indicators

1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:
Category % of employees covered by
Total | Health insurance Accident Maternity Paternity Day carefacilities
(A) insurance benefits benefits
No.(B) % No.(C) % No.(D) % No.(E) | % (E/A) | No.(F) | % (F/A)
(B/A) (C/A) (D/A)
PERMANENT EMPLOYEES
Male 3891 3891 | 100% 3891 100% - - 24 1% - -
Female 439 439 | 100% 439 | 100% 19 4% - - - -
Total 4330 4330 | 100% 4330 | 100% 19 4% 24 1% - -
OTHER THAN PERMANENT EMPLOYEES
Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers: Not applicable
2. Details of retirement benefits for the current and previous financial year
Benefits FY22 FY21
0. of employee Deducted and No. of employees Deducted and
overed as a % oftota depo d covered as a % oftotal deposited with the
plo 0 A employees authority (Y/N/N.A.)
PF 9% employees covered Y 13% employees covered Y
in 2021-22 in 2020-21
Gratuity 14% employees covered N 7% employees covered N
in 2021-22 in 2020-21
Employee State | 28% employees covered Y 27% employees covered Y
Insurance (ESI) in 2021-22 in 2020-21
Others - - - -

3. Accessibility of workplaces

Are the premises/offices accessible to differently abled employees as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons with

Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being taken by the entity in this regard. Yes

4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If so, provide a
web-link to the policy. Yes,

Policy link https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/equal-employment-opportunity-policy_ibhfl-0410853001661947777.pdf

5. Return to work and retention rates of permanent employees that took parental leave.

Permanent employees
Gender Return to work rate Retention rate
Male 100% 92%
Female 100% 74%
Total 100% 83%
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6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees? If yes, give

details of the mechanism in brief.

Yes/No (If Yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)

Permanent Employees

Yes. Employee can share their concerns with designated SPOC and
follow Escalation Matrix available on INET.

Other than permanent employees NA
Permanent Workers NA
Other than Permanent Workers NA

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed entity: Not Applicable
Catego FY 2022 FY 2021
gory Current Financial Year (Previous Financial Year)
0. of employee ; Total No. of employees / %

ole p B/ A employees | workers in respective | (B/A)

0 g0 0 / workersin | category, who are

. part of asso 0 respective | part of association(s)

g0 0 on (B category or Union (B)
; (A)
TOTAL PERMANENT EMPLOYEES NA NA NA NA NA NA
Male NA NA NA NA NA NA
Female NA NA NA NA NA NA
TOTAL PERMANENT WORKERS NA NA NA NA NA NA
Male NA NA NA NA NA NA
Female NA NA NA NA NA NA
8. Details of training given to employees
Category Fy21
Total (A) | On health and On skill Total (A) | On health and On skill
safety/wellness upgradation safety / wellness upgradation
measures
measures
| [ No.(B) | %(B/A) | No.(C) [ %(C/A) No.(B) | % (B/A) | No.(C) | % (C/A)
EMPLOYEES
Male 3891 2602 67% 2898 74% 2772 2260 82% 2953 107%
Female 439 230 52% 357 81% 397 353 89% 508 128%
Total 4330 2832 65% 3255 75% 3169 2613 82% 3451 109%
WORKERS

Male NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Female NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Total NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
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9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees

(category [ FY21
— otal(A) - No.(B) | %(B/A) IR I R G AT
EMPLOYEES \
Male 3891 2919 75% 2772 2233 81%
Female 439 332 76% 397 318 80%
Total 4330 3251 75% 3169 2551 80%
WORKERS
Male NA NA NA NA NA NA
Female NA NA NA NA NA NA
Total NA NA NA NA NA NA

10. Health and safety management system:

a.

Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by the entity? (Yes/ No). If
yes, the coverage such system?

IBHFL trains its employees on safety protocols. Company conducts periodic trainings on fire safety and evacuation drills
for employees at all its locations. Webinars are conducted with health care specialists to create awareness around family
health and nutrition, practicing resilience and how to have empathetic conversations with their teams.

IBHFL has set-up a Quick Response Team (QRT) to provide any support required at the Company’s branches or to
its employee during the working hours. QRTs ensures that all business units have business continuity and incident
management plans in place.

IBHFL conducts awareness sessions on health and safety related aspects, sends periodic internal communication and
alerts Company’s employee portal ‘inet’, which is accessible to all employees.

Here is the web-link to Health and Safety Policies of IBHFL:

https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/health-and-safety-policy_
updated-0313057001627464906.pdf#page=2

What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-routine basis by
the entity?

Given the nature of business, this is not directly applicable. However, due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Quick
Response Team (QRT) is available 24x7 to assist and enable employees on COVID related issues and concerns. Company
has also formulated Zonal Quick Response Teams (ZQRT) to respond to health related concerns.

Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove themselves from such risks. (Y/N)

Given the nature of business, this is not directly applicable. However, due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Quick
Response Team (QRT) is available 24x7 to assist and enable employees on COVID related issues and concerns. Company
has also formulated Zonal Quick Response Teams (ZQRT) to respond to health related concerns.

Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare services? (Yes/ No)

Yes. All employees of IBHFL are covered under Health Insurance

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

Safety Incident/Number

Category Fy21

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) (per one million-person hours
worked)

Total recordable work-related injuries

Employees NIL NIL

No. of fatalities (safety incident)

High consequence work-related injury or ill-health (excluding fatalities)
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12.

13.

14.

15.
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Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.
Refer to 10 (a), (b), (c) & (d)

Number of complaints on the following made by employees

FY22 FY21
ed d 8 Pending Filed during Pending
e yea resolution the year resolution at Remarks
at the end of the end of
year year
Working conditions NIL | NIL | NIL NIL NIL
Health and safety NIL | NIL | NIL NIL NIL NIL

Assessments for the year

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Health and safety practices | 100%

Working Conditions NIL

Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) and on significant
risks / concerns arising from assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions.

Given the pandemic situation, the Company has been strictly following the Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) as mandated
by respective cities/ states to ensure safety and hygiene protocols and necessary social distancing is being followed by
employees, customers and other visitors.

Leadership Indicators

1. Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of (A) Employees (Y/N)
(B) Workers (Y/N).

Yes, the Company may offer employment to the spouse/ dependent of the deceased employee. Benefits like provident
fund, gratuity, superannuation, as applicable, are settled on a priority basis.

During COVID-19, for employees that lose their life, the Company made suitable arrangements such that the financial
future of the employee’s immediate family is secure.

2. Provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and deposited by
the value chain partners.

The Company ensures that taxes as applicable to the transactions within the remit of the Company are deducted and
deposited in accordance with extant regulations. This activity is also reviewed as part of the internal and statutory audit.

3. Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence work-related injury / ill-health
/ fatalities (as reported in Q11 of Essential Indicators above), who have been rehabilitated and placed in suitable
employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable employment:

Total no. of affected employees No. of employees that are rehabilitated and placed
in suitable employment or whose family members
have been placed in suitable employment

FY21 FY21

Employees Not applicable, since there was no work-related injuries
Workers

4. Does the entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate continued employability and the management of

career endings resulting from retirement or termination of employment?

The Company has retirement policy in place which aims to define terms of retirement for employees and the subsequent

engagement opportunities with Company. IBHFL invests significant time and resources in the training and development of

its employees. With such trainings, most employees are skilled and tend to be employable upon retirement/ termination.
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5. Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed

Health and safety

Working Conditions

IBHFL expects all its value chain partners to follow extant regulations, including health and
safety practices and working conditions.

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from
assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chain partners.

No corrective action plan was necessary due to the absence of any significant risks / concerns.

PRINCIPLE 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

Any individual or group of individuals who have an interest in business operations of the Company and is positively or
negatively impacted by initiatives or policies of the Company are identified as stakeholders of the Company. As this context, it
includes employees, customers, investors, shareholders, suppliers, channel partners, regulators and the society.

2. List of stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each stakeholder group.

Key Whether Channels of communication Frequency of Purpose and scope of
Stakeholders identified as (Email, SMS, Newspaper, engagement engagement including key
Vulnerable & Pamphlets, Advertisement, (Annually/Half topics and concerns raised
Marginalised Community Meetings, yearly/ Quarterly/ during such engagement
Group (Yes/No) Notice Board, Website), others — please
Others specify)

Customers No Through physical and Digital | Frequent & need- | Addressing customer queries,
Channels such as Emails, App, | based grievances, complaints, and
advertisement, etc. educating on safety and

security policies etc

Employees No Through physical and Digital | Regularly To exchange ideas and
Channels suggestion, provide

opportunity for professional
growth and educate
employees on HR policies

Shareholders / No Stock Exchanges intimations, | Frequent & need- | To update on developments,

Investors Newspapers, Emails, Annual | based business activity, new
General Meeting, Quarterly initiatives, schemes, Quarterly
Earnings Call, in-office and and Annual audited results
virtual meetings / conferences

Government / No Through physical and Digital | Need based To receive recommendation,

Regulators Channels such as PRISM amendments, approvals
portal etc. and update on policies and

compliances.

Leadership Indicators

1. Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic, environmental, and social topics
or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such consultations provided to the Board.

The Company encourages responsible and responsive communication towards all its stakeholders be it customers, media,
investors, analysts, regulatory authorities, vendors, etc. The Company has created an email ID to receive regular feedback
from employees. This initiative encourages stakeholders to share their thoughts and experiences on a daily basis.
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2. Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management of environmental, and social
topics (Yes / No). If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders on these topics were
incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.

With input from the Board of Directors, social workers, employees, and customers, the Company's CSR team identifies needy and
underserviced areas for initiating a health or educational aids. This encourages the participation of stakeholders. As the number of
evolving aspects of CSR are still in the 'learning phase' for the Company and it therefore requires stakeholder interaction.

3. Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the concerns of vulnerable/ marginalized
stakeholder groups.

As part of Company’s CSR initiatives, beneficiaries include economically vulnerable, under-privileged and socially marginalized
populations. For instances, the CSR initiatives of the Company has helped children from economically challenged backgrounds
to pursue higher education, and have successfully diagnosed and treated patients in under-privileged areas.

PRINCIPLE 5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights
Essential Indicators

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the entity, in the
following format:

FY21
No. of No. of % (D/C)
Category employees Total (C) employees
covered (B covered (D)

EMPLOYEES
Permanent - - - - - -
Other than permanent - - - - - -
Total Employees - - - - - -

WORKERS
Permanent - - - - - -
Other than permanent - - - - - -
Total Employees - - - - - -
2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:
FY21
Equal to Minimum More than Equal to Minimum More than
Category Wage Total (D) Wage Minimum Wage
. No. (B) | % (B/A) | No.(C) | %(C/A) | No. (E) | % (E/D) | No.(F) | % (F/D)

EMPLOYEES
Permanent
Male 4072 683 17% 3389 83% 3023 608 20% 2415 80%
Female 519 107 21% 412 79% 453 103 23% 350 77%
Other than N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Permanent
Male N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Female N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

WORKERS
Permanent NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Male NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Female NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Other than NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Permanent
Male NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
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3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format:

Male Female
Number Median remuneration/ Number | Median remuneration/
salary/ wages of respective salary/ wages of
category (3) respective category (3)

Board of Directors (BoD) (Whole-time 4 4.89 (Cr. PA) - -
directors)
Key Managerial Personnel (other than BoD) 2 2.87 (Cr. PA) - -
Employees other than BoD and KMP 3885 0.04(Cr. PA) 439 0.04(Cr. PA)

4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issues caused or
contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)

Yes. The Chief Human Resources Officer is responsible for addressing human rights issues caused or contributed by the business.
5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.

The Company upholds the principles of being an organization that respects human rights, is non-discriminatory amongst employees
and provides for a redressal mechanism to the key constituents that it deals with. The Company’s Code of Conduct respects and
promotes human rights. The Company complies and adheres to all the human rights laws and guidelines of the Constitution of India,
national laws and policies and treats all its stakeholders and customers with dignity, respect and due understanding.

6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

Fy21
ed d g Pending Filed during Pending
e yea resolution the year resolution Remarks

at the end at the end

of the year of the year
Sexual Harassment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Discrimination at workplace NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Child Labour NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Forced Labour/ Involuntary Labour NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Wages NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Other humanrights relatedissues NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

7. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases.

We have committee inplace wherein any such stance can be reported and independent panel will address to the issue or
concern raised as per defined SOP of committee.

8. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts?

Yes, in certain business agreements and contracts where relevant. The Company includes a clause in certain loan agreements,
requiring the borrower to comply with labour laws, environment , health, safety and social laws, as applicable.

9. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or
statutory authorities or third parties)

Child labour
Forced/involuntary labour
Sexual harassment
Discrimination at workplace
Wages

Others — please specify

IBHFL is in compliance with laws, as applicable.

10. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from the
assessments at Question 9 above.

Not applicable
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Leadership Indicators

1.

5.

Details of a business process being modified / introduced as a result of addressing human rights grievances/complaints.
There have been no significant modification / introductions as a result of addressing human rights grievances / complaints
Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted.

Please refer to the above response.

Is the premise/office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons
with Disabilities Act, 2016?

Some of the offices have ramps for easy movement of differently abled visitors. Most of the offices are located on the ground
floor or have elevators and infrastructure for differently abled visitors.

Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such
partners) that were assessed

Child labour

Forced/involuntary labour

Sexual harassment Our value chain partners are expected to adhere to the same
Discrimination at workplace values, principles, and business ethics as IBHFL.

Wages

Others — please specify

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from the
assessments at Question 4 above.

No corrective actions pertaining to Question 4 was necessitated by the Company during the year under review.

PRINCIPLE 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

Essential Indicators

1.

Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:

Parameter* FY21
MWH T

Total electricity consumption (A) 4549.11 16.38 NA NA
Total fuel consumption (B) 218.52 0.79 NA NA
Energy consumption through other sources (C) Renewables 14.00 0.05 NA NA
Total energy consumption(A+B+C) 4781.63 17.22 NA NA
Energy intensity per rupee ofturnover (Total energy consumption/ turnoverin NA NA NA NA
Rupees)

Energy intensity (optional) — the relevant metric may be selected by the entity NA NA NA NA

*The Company has started tracking the above parameters from FY22 onwards

Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes,
name of the external agency.

Yes. The Company has partnered with a leading environment and research institution, Centre for Environmental Research &
Education (CERE).

Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance, Achieve and
Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been
achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any.

Not applicable
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3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Given the nature of IBHFL's business, usage of water is restricted to human consumptions only. Efforts have been made to
ensure that water is consumed judiciously in the office premises.

4. Hastheentityimplemented amechanismforZero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage and implementation

No. Given the nature of IBHFL's business, the above is not applicable.

5. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format:

Not applicable to IBHFL's business.

6. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the following format:

GHG Emissions FY22

Parameter* Unit 0 FY 2021
: (Previous
Financial Year)
Total Scope 1 emissions (GHG: CO2, CH4, N20, HFCs) MTCO2e 862.57 NA
Total Scope 2 emissions (GHG: CO2, CH4, N20, HFCs) MTCO2e 3607.57 NA
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 & 2) MTCO2e 4470.14 NA
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions per rupee of turnover MTCO2e / INR (Cr.) 0.57 NA

*The data pertains to all offices of the Company

*The Company has started tracking the above parameters from FY22 onwards

Source
O 4 0 Refrigera o D2e
Generator Sets (Diesel) 3.32 0.0004 0.00003 - 3.34
Company Cars (Petrol & Diesel) - - - - 33.29
Air Conditioner - Refrigerant Leaks - - - R22 —387.55 kg 825.94
R32-22.4 kg
R410a - 23.5 kg
Scope 1 Total 862.57
Purchased Electricity - - - - 3606.67
Electricity for Data Centers - - - - 0.90
Scope 2 Total 3607.57
Scope 1 & 2 Total 4470.14

Overall GHG Emissions Summary - FY2021 - 22

Source
€02 (MT) CH4 (MT) N20 (MT) CO2e (MT) %

Scope 1
Company Cars- Diesel/ Petrol 33.29 - - 33.29 0.63%
Diesel Generator Set 3.32 0.0004 0.00003 3.34 0.06%
HVAC Systems — Leaks 825.94 - - 825.94 15.61%
Scope 1 Total 862.57 16.30%

Scope 2
Purchased Electricity 3606.67 - - 3606.67 68.15%
Electricity for Data Centres 0.90 - - 0.90 0.02%
Scope 2 Total 3607.57 68.17%
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Source
CO2 (MT) CH4 (MT) N20 (MT) CO2e (MT) %
Scope 3
Paper Consumption 328.70 - - 328.70 6.21%
Diesel Generator Set- Rented 21.81 0.002 0.0001 21.94 0.41%
Office Organised Transport 2.46 - - 2.46 0.05%
Air Travel - Business 81.46 - - 81.46 1.54%
Car/Rail/ Bus Travel - Business 165.43 - - 165.43 3.13%
Hotel Stays - Business 111.57 - - 111.57 2.11%
Employee Commute - - - - -
Work from home - - - - -
Freight (downstream) Transport 104.51 - - 104.51 1.97%
Freight (upstream) Transport 0.15 - - 0.15 0.003%
Bottled Water Consumption 0.63 - - 0.63 0.01%
Waste 5.09 - - 5.09 0.10%
Scope 3 Total 821.94 15.53%
Total Emissions 5292.08

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If

yes, name of the external agency.

Yes, the assessment is done by CERE

Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide details.

As a part of its initiative to reduce the carbon footprint of its operations, IBHFL has installed a solar power plant at Chandigarh’s
branch of 10 KW capacity. This solar plant produces approximately 40 units of electricity daily. Further, the Company is

assessing locations to install solar panels in the next fiscal year.

Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

FY 2021-22
(Current Financial Year)

FY 2020-21
(Previous Financial Year)

Plastic waste (A) NA NA
E-waste (B) 00 NA
Bio-medical waste (C) NA NA
Construction and demolition waste (D) NA NA
Battery waste (E) NA NA
Radioactive waste (F) NA NA
Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if any. (G) NA NA
Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). Please specify, if any. NA NA
(Break-up by composition i.e. by materials relevant to the sector)

Total (A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H) NA NA

metric tonnes)

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or other recovery operations (in

Category of waste

(i) Recycled NA NA
(ii) Re-used NA NA
(iii) Other recovery operations NA NA
Total NA NA
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10.

11.

12,

Indicate if any independent assessment/evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes,
name of the external agency.

Yes, the assessment is carried out by CERE

Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy adopted by your
company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and processes and the practices adopted to
manage such wastes.

Given the nature of the business, there is no usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals by IBHFL. For e-waste generated by the Company, tie-
ups with a handful of green certified recycling vendors have been done to centrally manage and recycle the pan-India e-waste.

If the entity has operations/offices infaround ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife sanctuaries,
biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where environmental approvals
/ clearances are required, please specify details in the following format:

No. All the offices have requisite building permits, including environment approvals.

Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the current
financial year:

Not applicable

Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as the Water
(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection Act and
rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format:

Based on the nature of business, IBHFL is in compliance with applicable environmental norms.

Leadership Indicators

1.

Provide break-up of the total energy consumed (in Joules or multiples) from renewable and non-renewable sources, in the
following format:

Parameter FY22 Fy21*
(Current Financial Year) (Previous Financial
Year)
Total Renewables Consumption

MWH TJ NA
Total Solar Energy Consumed (A) 14.00 0.05 NA
Total energy consumed from renewable sources (B) 14.00 0.05 NA

From Non-renewable sources

Total electricity consumption (C) 4549.11 16.38 NA
Total fuel consumption (D) 218.52 0.79 NA
Energy consumption through other sources (E) NIL NIL NA
Total energy consumed from Non-renewable sources (C+D+E)=F 4767.63 17.17
Total energy consumed from renewable and non-renewable 4781.63 17.22 NA
sources (B+F)

*Not traced

Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes,
name of the external agency.

Yes, assessment has been carried out by CERE

Parameter* Unit

Total Scope 3 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into CO,, CH4, N,O, HFCs, PFCs, SF, NF,, MTCO2e 821.94
if available)

Total Scope 3 emissions per rupee of turnover MTCO2e / X (Cr.) NA
Total Scope 3 emission intensity (optional) — the relevant metric may be selected by NA
the entity
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Provide the following details related to water discharged:
Not applicable to IBHFL
Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilolitres):
For each facility / plant located in areas of water stress, provide the following information:
(i) Name of the area
(ii) Nature of operations
(iii) Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in the following format:
Not applicable to IBHFL

Please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:

Parameter Unit 0 FY2020-21
g ancia (Previous Financial
X Year)
Total Scope 3 emissions Metric tonnes of 821.94 NA

(Break-up of the GHG into CO2, CH4, N20O, HFCs, | CO?equivalent
PFCs, SF6, NF3, if available)

Total Scope 3 emissions per rupee of turnover NA NA NA

Total Scope 3 emission intensity (optional) — the NA NA NA
relevant metric may be selected by the entity

Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name
of the external agency.

Yes. The assessment was carried out by CERE.

With respect to the ecologically sensitive areas reported at Question 10 of Essential Indicators above, provide details of significant
direct & indirect impact of the entity on biodiversity in such areas along-with prevention and remediation activities.

Not applicable

If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or solutions to improve resource
efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions / effluent discharge / waste generated, please provide details of the same as
well as outcome of such initiatives, as per the following format:

As a part of its initiative to reduce the carbon footprint of its operations, IBHFL has installed a solar power plant at Chandigarh’s
branch of 10 KW capacity. This solar plant produces approximately 40 units of electricity daily. Further, the Company is
assessing location to install solar panels in the next fiscal year.

Does the entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 words/ web link.

IBHFL has a business continuity plan (BCP) and framework which is compliant with applicable regulatory requirements. BCP
envisages like disruptive evens, their probability and impact on business operations which is assessed through business impact
analysis. These aim to eliminate or minimise any potential disruption to critical business operations. The BCP includes Disaster
Recovery procedures to quickly recover from an emergency.

The Company’s BCP plan came to the rescue of the Company during the first wave of the COVID-19 pademic and helped
the Company personnel smoothly operate out of their homes during the lockdowns while maintaining data security helping
provide service continuity to our customers.

Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the entity. What mitigation or
adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard.

Given the nature of IBHFL's business, there has been no adverse impact to the environment
Percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed for environmental impacts

Not applicable
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PRINCIPLE 7 Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a manner that is responsible
and transparent

Essential Indicators

1.

a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.

The Company is currently a member of various industry chambers associations, councils and other forums and proactively
contributes to the discussions and resolutions within the scope of these forums.

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of such body) the
entity is a member of/ affiliated to.

None

Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti-competitive conduct by the entity,
based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

Not applicable

Leadership Indicators

1.

Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:

Whenever there are amendments, policies, or revisions to RBI regulation, IBHFL's top management has consistently expressed
their views to regulators and governments.

IBHFLs board members are highly experienced and have rich knowledge of housing finance sector, audit, legal and corporate
governance. Members of IBHFL's board participate in panel discussions on RBI policies and advocate their opinion either via
writing e-mails to regulators or through public conferences. In addition to maintaining regular relationships with government
agencies and regulators, IBHFL is committed to providing timely and accurate information, reviews, suggestions, feedback,
etc. when required. Also, a number of recommendations made by IBHFL to various regulatory bodies are in the greater
interest of the industry.

PRINCIPLE 8 Businesses should promote inclusive growth and equitable development

Essential Indicators

1.

Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the current
financial year.

Not applicable*

Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement (R&R) is being undertaken by your
entity, in the following format:

Not applicable*

Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.

Not applicable*

Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:
Not applicable*

*Note: As per the BRSR, this section pertains to Social Impact Assessment in compliance with Right to Fair Compensation &
Transparency in Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Resettlement Act, 2013. Given the nature of the business of the IBHFL,
this is not applicable.

Leadership Indicators

1.

Provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the Social Impact Assessments
(Reference: Question 1 of Essential Indicators above):

Not applicable
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Provide the following information on CSR projects undertaken by your entity in designated aspirational districts as identified
by government bodies:

S. No. State Aspirational District | Amount spent (In X)

1. Maharashtra Thane & Raigad 63,500,000
2. Maharashtra Mumbai 1,247,000
3. PAN India PAN India 27,600,000
4, Delhi New Delhi 29,200,000

(a) Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers comprising
marginalized /vulnerable groups? (Yes/No)

(b) From which marginalized /vulnerable groups do you procure?
(c) What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it constitute?
Not Applicable

Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your entity (in the current
financial year), based on traditional knowledge:

Not Applicable

Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property related disputes
wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved.

Not applicable

Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects:

S. No. | CSR Project No. of persons benefitted | % of beneficiaries from vulnerable
from CSR Projects and marginalized groups

1. Jan Swasthya Kalyan Vahika (JSK)- Mobile 375,000 in FY22 Beneficiaries include economically

Medical Vans vulnerable and socially marginalized

e Healthcare project serving the poor in the populations, including women and

urban underprivileged areas. children, who are absorbed into

highly informal, invisible and lowest
ends of the labour markets. They are
oftenunabletoachieve development

e Door-step model where the van goes to the
beneficiary’s village.

e Eachvan runs 6 days a week on a rotational that is either socio-economic in
basis and caters to approximately 15/16 nature or intergenerational despite
locations per week and diagnoses several years of migration for work
approximately 100/150 patients per day. and income.

2. Indiabulls Foundation Charitable Clinics 4,539 in FY22

e Clinics provide diagnosis by a professional
MBBS registered doctor with counselling &
discounted medicines given.

e Qualified medical personnel and six days
open a week operation ensures timely and
effective health care to weaker sections of
society.

3. IBF Scholarships 378 in FY22

e Initiative aims to encourage and promote
quality higher educationamong meritorious
students from economically challenged
families to nurture their careers.

4, Gramin Yuva Kendra for Girls 10
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PRINCIPLE 9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible manner

Essential Indicators

1.

Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback

Various channels have been provided for customers to raise any concerns through a medium that is convenient for them.
Customers that are not comfortable using digital channels can call the customer care numbers provided on the Company’s
website or visit the nearest branch where a grievance register is provided mandatorily and designated senior personnel at
individual branches are responsible for ensuring efficient and effective resolution of complaints. Complaints and grievances
are addressed in a time-bound manner. Regular analysis and audits, internal and external are in place to monitor any corrective
actions that needs to be taken in case of lapse in processes and also to improve the processes.

The Company has been certified for ISO 9001:2015 which focuses on the overall quality management of the process along
with grievance redressal mechanism and ISO 10002:2014 which helps us to maintain a management system for customer
complaint handling.

Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry information about:
97.54%

Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

21-22 FY 2020-21 Remarks
Current Financial Year (Previous Financial Year)
Pending Received Pending
resolution at during the | resolution at end
end of year year of year

Data privacy

Advertising

Cyber-security
De|ivery of Essential NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Services
Restrictive Trade Practices

Unfair Trade Practices
Others 856 NIL NIL 1329 27 NIL

Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

Not applicable

Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If available, provide
a web-link of the policy.

e IBHFL has adopted an information security framework to establish, implement, monitor and constantly improve its
information security posture. We focus on privacy of customer information and data security. The Company also complies
with the applicable regulatory framework and guidelines.

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and delivery of essential
services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls; penalty / action taken
by regulatory authorities on safety of products / services.

No penalties have been levied or regulatory actions taken on the above-mentioned parameters.

112

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22



Statutory Reports

Leadership Indicators

1.

Channels / platforms where information on products and services of the entity can be accessed (provide web link, if
available).

Information relating to products and other services is available on IBHFL's website, https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/
and Company’s Home Loan App.

Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products and/or services.

The Company has spread awareness on MITC (Most Important Terms and Conditions) by educating its customers through
seminars and one-on-one counselling at its offices across the country. The Company's initiative on digitization also provides
customers with the option to learn and educate themselves on safety and security-related measures through its website and
mobile application.

Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of essential services.
Customers are made aware of any such risks through call centres and electronic communications.

Does the entity display product information on the product over and above what is mandated as per local laws? (Yes/No/
Not Applicable) If yes, provide details in brief. Did your entity carry out any survey with regard to consumer satisfaction
relating to the major products / services of the entity, significant locations of operation of the entity or the entity as a
whole? (Yes/No)

A ‘customer first’” approach is at the core of IBH’s operations. 95% of customer complaints were resolved within the TAT,
and 90% of respondents rated customer satisfaction as "above expectation” in the customer satisfaction survey. IBHFL will
continue to take steps to ensure customer satisfaction, and aim to increase it from current 90% to 95% by FY25.

Provide the following information relating to data breaches:

a. Number of instances of data breaches along-with impact — None. IBHFL has not recorded any instances of data
breaches during the year under review.

b. Percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers

None. IBHFL has not recorded any instances of data breaches during the year the review.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (“the Company”) endeavors to uphold the best in class corporate practices and principles of
corporate governance to ensure transparency, integrity and accountability in every facet of its operations and in all spheres of its
activities. The fundamental objective of “Good Corporate Governance and Ethics” is to ensure the commitment of an organization
in managing the company in an ethical, legal and transparent manner in order to maximize the long-term value of the Company for
its stakeholders including shareholders, customers, employees and other partners.

The Company is committed to good corporate governance in all its activities. Our corporate governance is a reflection of our value
system, policies and also embedded in our day-to-day business practices, our culture leads to value-driven growth. The trust of
stakeholders is the key factor in our corporate governance practices. The Company has a strong legacy of transparency and ethical
governance practices. Being a responsible organisation, the Company honestly and effectively discharges its government obligations
and strives to empower its employees. The thrust of the Company to adopt and follow the best in class governance practices may
be understood by the fact that it has voluntarily applied with National Stock Exchange of India Limited for its enrolment under
NSE Prime Registration Norms, 2021, which requires it to follow stricter corporate governance standards than mandated under
applicable regulations.

As a responsible corporate citizen, environmental and social considerations have always been key factors in the operations of
Indiabulls Housing Finance. The Company’s belief, which has been borne out by experience, is that improvement on ESG parameters
results in cost savings and improved operating efficiencies; helps the Company enhance the quality of services being offered to
customers; and builds stakeholders’ confidence leading to appreciation in the Company’s value. Thus, the Company views progress
and achievements on the ESG front as key to driving business efficiencies, customer delight, and stakeholder value creation, rather
than solely as a badge of recognition.

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’), majorly comprising of Independent and Non — Executive Directors, is responsible for and
is committed to ensure that sound principles of Corporate Governance are implemented in the Company. The Promoter of the
Company has resigned from its Board and in sync with applicable regulatory requirements, the process of his de-promoterization
along with his entities, has been initiated, with a view to make it a fully professionally managed and run Company, without having any
Promoter. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the short and long-term interests of shareholders
and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in its governance practices, under which it strives to maintain an effective, informed
and independent Board. The Company keeps its governance practices under continuous review and benchmarks itself to best
practices. The members of the Board of Directors of the Company are very responsive and their depth of experience helps the
management team evolve measured responses to issues that come up. The Board guided the management in implementing cost
rationalization measures at every level and across every function of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Executive Directors. The Company has also adopted a
Code of Conduct for its non-executive directors which includes Code of Conduct for Independent Directors that suitably incorporates
the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

The Company is in compliance with the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve
bank) Directions, 2021 and the applicable SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR).

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOARD)
(A) Composition and size of the Board

The Company’s Board is constituted of highly experienced professionals from diverse backgrounds. The Board’s
constitution is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI LODR and is in accordance with the highest standards
of Corporate Governance, which ensures an appropriate mix of Executive/Non-Executive, Woman Directors and
Independent Directors with demonstrated skill sets and relevant experience. The Board members have professional
knowledge and experience, in diverse fields viz. finance, audit, banking, public policy and legal / judicial, thereby bringing
about an enabling environment for value creation through sustainable business growth.

W.e.f. April 26, 2022, Mr. B.C. Patnaik is appointed as LIC Nominee Director (LIC is one of the biggest Equity Shareholder
of the Company) and the designation of Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal was changed to Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director
of the Company.

Presently, as on the date of this report, the Board consists of ten directors, three of whom including the Vice-Chairman,
Managing Director and CEO are Executive Directors. Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal, is the Non-Executive, Non- Independent
Director. Out of the remaining six directors, Mr. Subhash Sheoratan Mundra, Mr. Achuthan Siddharth, Mr. Satish Chand
Mathur, Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra, and Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.), are Non-Executive Independent
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Directors. Mr. B C Patnaik is a Non-Executive Director of the Company as LIC Nominee. The Chairman, Mr. Subhash
Sheoratan Mundra, being a Non-Executive Independent Director, the number of Independent Non-Executive Directors
on the Board is more than half of the total Board strength.

No Director is related to any other Director on the Board. The Board comprises directors that bring a wide range of skills,
expertise and experience which enhance overall board effectiveness.

The Board has identified skills and domain expertize required by the Directors of the Company which includes Banking &
Finance, Business Strategy, Corporate Governance, Corporate Social Responsibility, Foreign Exchange, Human Resources,
Information Technology, Legal, Marketing, Operations and Process Optimization, Policy Making, Recovery, Regulatory
Compliances, Risk Management, Stakeholder Management, Taxation, Audit, Treasury and Value Creation. The Directors
of the Company have mapped their skills based on the board skill matrix.

Details of Directors, directorship in listed companies, number of directorships held by them in other companies and
also the number of their memberships and chairmanships on various Board Committees, including skill sets/ expertise/
competencies/practical knowledge, as on March 31, 2022, are as under:

Sr. no. | Name of the Director Nature of Office | Special Knowledge/ Practical Experience/ | Names of the other listed entities| Category of directorship in No. of Directorship No. of Memberships/
Skills/ Expertise/ Competencies where the personisadirector | other listed entities where Chairmanships in Board
the person is a director Committees of various companies
in other Listed inother (including this Company)**
Companies | Companies® | \jerbershins | Chairmanships
(excluding Debt
listed Companies)
1 Mr. Subhash Non- Executive/ | Leadership, Strategic Planning, Industry | BSE Limited Non-Executive Independent 4 2 5 2
Sheoratan Mundra Independent Knowledge & Experience, Financial, Director
(DIN: 00979731) Director and Regulatory / legal & Risk Management, | Havells India Limited Non-Executive Independent
Chairman Corporate Governance, Operations and Director
Process Optimization PTC India Limited Non-Executive Independent
Director Non-Executive
IKAB Securities And Investment | Independent Director
Limited
2. Mr. Gagan Banga (DIN: |  Vice- Chairman, Leadership, Banking and Finance, NIL N.A. Nil Nil Nil Nil
00010894) Managing Director | Business Strategy, Regulatory / legal &
& CEO Risk Management, Treasury, Foreign
Exchange, Recovery, Marketing,
Corporate Governance, Corporate Social
Responsibility, Stakeholder Management,
Operations and Process Optimization
3. Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal | Executive Director Taxation, Regulatory Compliances, |Yaarii Digital Integrated Services Non-Executive Director 1 5 2 2
(DIN: 02698115) (Refer Note 1) Business Strategy, Regulatory / legal | Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls
& Risk Management, Marketing, Integrated Services Limited) (Resigned
Corporate Governance, Corporate Social |-/ April8, 2022)
Responsif)ility, Stakeholder Ma_na_gement, Indiabulls Commercial Credit Non-Executive Director
Operations and Process Optimization Limited***
Dhani Loans and Services Limited Non-Executive Director
(Formerly known as Indiabulls
Consumer Finance Limited) (Resigned
weef April 26, 2022)***
4. Mr. Ashwini Executive Director | Banking and Finance, Business Strategy, |Nil N.A. Nil Nil 1 Nil
Omprakash Kumar (Deputy Managing | Regulatory / legal & Risk Management,
(DIN: 03341114) Director) Treasury, Foreign Exchange Recovery,
Marketing, Corporate Governance,
Corporate Social Responsibility,
Stakeholder Management, Operations
and Process Optimization
5. Mr. Sachin Chaudhary | Executive Director Human Resources, Information Nil N.A. Nil 2 Nil Nil
(DIN: 02016992) & Chief Operating | Technology, Business Strategy, Regulatory
Officer /legal & Risk Management, Marketing,
Corporate Governance, Corporate Social
Responsibility, Stakeholder Management,
Operations and Process Optimization
6. Mr. Achuthan Non- Executive/ Industry Knowledge & Experience, Reliance Industrial Infrastructure | Non-Executive Director 2 2 7 3
Siddharth (DIN: Independent Financial, Regulatory / legal &Risk  |{limited Chairman,
00016278) Director Management, Corporate Governance,
Operations and Process Optimization Alok Industries Limited Non-Executive-
Independent Director
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Sr. no. | Name of the Director Nature of Office | Special Knowledge/ Practical Experience/ | Names of the other listed entities | Category of directorship in No. of Directorship No. of Memberships/
Skills/ Expertise/ Competencies where the personisadirector | other listed entities where Chairmanships in Board
the person is a director Committees of various companies
in other Listed inother (including this Company)**
Com;')anles Companies* Memberships | Chairmanships
(excluding Debt
listed Companies)
7. Mr. Satish Chand Non- Executive/ Industry Knowledge & Experience, | Tilaknagar Industries Limited Non-Executive- 2 3 Nil Nil
Mathur (DIN: Independent Financial, Regulatory / legal & Risk Independent Director
03641285) Director Management, Corporate Governance, ~|JBF Industries Limited Non-Executive-
Operations and Process Optimization Independent Director
8. Mr. Dinabandhu Non- Executive/ | Industry Knowledge & Experience, Financial, | Nil N.A. Nil Nil 2 Nil
Mohapatra (DIN: Independent Regulatory / legal & Risk Management,
07488705) Director Corporate Governance, Operations and
Process Optimization, Banking and Finance
9. Justice Gyan Sudha Non- Executive/ Industry Knowledge & Experience, | Olectra Greentech Limited Non Executive- Independent 4 1 6 2

Misra (Retd. Justice
Supreme Court of
India) (DIN: 07577265)

Independent
Director

Financial, Regulatory / legal & Risk
Management, Corporate Governance,
Operations and Process Optimization,

Legal

Indiabulls Real Estate Limited
(Resigned w.e.f. April 26, 2022)

Yaarii Digital Integrated Services
Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls
Integrated Services Limited) (Resigned
wef June23,2022)

Patanjali Foods Limited

(Formerly known as Ruchi Soya
Industries Limited)

Director
Non Executive-Independent
Director

Non Executive-
Independent Director

Non Executive-
Independent Director

Note 1. Mr Ajit Kumar Mittal relinquished the Office of Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. April 26, 2022, on attaining
superannuation, however he continues to be Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director of the Company.

*Excludes directorship(s) held in foreign companies & private limited companies and Companies under section 8 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Partnership Firms, LLP, HUF, Sole Proprietorships and Association of Individuals (Trust, Society etc.).

**Only memberships of the Audit Committee / Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in various public limited companies and
chairmanship of the Audit Committee / Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in various equity listed limited companies, including
this listed company are considered, as per Regulation 26 of the SEBI LODR.

***0Only debt securities of these companies are listed on NSE & BSE.
During the FY 2021-22, Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat (DIN: 00017480) and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha (DIN: 01352748) ceased to

be Independent Directors of the Company as their Second term of five years ended on September 28, 2021. Mr. Sameer Gehlaut
resigned as the Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company with effect from March 14, 2022.

The Board do hereby confirms that all the present Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI LODR
and are independent of the management of the Company and none of them have resigned before the expiry of their respective tenure(s).

The Board had accepted all recommendations of committees of the Board which are mandatorily required, during the financial
year 2021-22.

As on March 31, 2022, none of the Non-Executive Directors held any equity share and/or convertible security of the Company.

The Company has familiarization programme for Independent Directors with regard to their roles, responsibilities in the Company,
nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the business model of the Company etc. The familiarization programme
along with details of the same imparted to the Independent Directors during the year are available on the website of the Company
(https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/investor-relations/familiarisation-programmes).

The Company has a Directors’ & Officers’ liability insurance policy, which provides indemnity to its Directors and all Employees in
respect of liabilities incurred as a result of their office.
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(B) Number and Dates of Board Meetings held, attendance of Directors thereat and at the last AGM held

The Board Meetings of the Company are held in a highly professional manner, after giving proper notice, Board papers,
agenda and other explanatory notes / relevant information to each of the Directors of the Company, well in advance. At
least one meeting is held in every quarter, to review the quarterly performance and the financial results of the Company.

Senior management including the CFO, CRO and Group Head — Corporate Secretarial are invited to attend the Board
Meetings so as to provide additional inputs on the items being discussed by the Board. At the Board Meetings, the Executive
Directors and Senior Management make presentations on various matters including the financial results, operations
related issues, risk management, the economic and regulatory environment, compliance, investors’ perceptions etc.

During the FY2021-22, the Board met 7 (Seven) times. Meetings were held on May 19, 2021, June 29, 2021, August 05, 2021,
September 30, 2021, November 11, 2021, February 09, 2022 and March 15, 2022. During the year, separate meeting of the
Independent Directors was held on March 10, 2022, without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors and the members
of the management. At the meeting, the Independent Directors reviewed/assessed the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and the Board, the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company’s management
and the Board and the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account views of Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors. In view of the Covid — 19 pandemic all these Board/Committee/Independent Directors meetings,
were held in video conferencing mode in accordance with the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

The last Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on July 29, 2021.

Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the FY 2021-22 and at the last Annual General Meeting are as under:

Sr. | Name of the Director No. of Board Attendance at
no. meetings attended the last AGM
1. Mr. Subhash Sheoratan Mundra (DIN 00979731) 7 Yes
2. Mr. Sameer Gehlaut (DIN: 00060783) 4* No
3. Mr. Gagan Banga (DIN: 00010894) 7 Yes
4, Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal (DIN: 02698115) 6 Yes
5. Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar (DIN: 03341114) 7 Yes
6. Mr. Sachin Chaudhary (DIN: 02016992) 7 Yes
7. Mr. Achuthan Siddharth (DIN 00016278) 7 Yes
8. Mr. Satish Chand Mathur (DIN 03641285) 7 Yes
9. Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra (DIN 07488705) 7 Yes
10. | Justice Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd. Justice Supreme Court of India) 7 Yes
(DIN: 07577265)
11. | Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat (DIN: 00017480) 3*¥* Yes
12. | Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha (DIN: 01352748) 3** Yes

* Resigned as the Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company with effect from March 14, 2022.

**Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat (DIN: 00017480) and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha (DIN: 01352748) ceased to be Independent
Directors of the Company as their Second term of five years ended on September 28, 2021.

The minutes of the Board Meetings of the unlisted subsidiary companies of the Company are placed in the Board Meetings
of the Company on a quarterly basis.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted various Committees to take informed decisions in the best interest of the Company. These
Committees monitor the activities falling within their terms of reference. Further, terms of reference were revised to align
with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, SEBI LODR and NHB Act, 1987.

The number of Directorships held by all Directors as well as their Membership / Chairmanship in Committees is within the
prescribed limits under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

The role and the composition of these Committees including number of meetings held during the financial year and
participation of the members at the meetings of the Committees, during the year are as under:

1 Leave of absence was granted to Justice Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.)
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(A) Audit Committee
Composition
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The Audit Committee comprises of three members, namely, Mr. Achuthan Siddharth as the Chairman and Member,
Justice Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.) and Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra , as members. All the three members comprising the
Committee are Independent Directors. Mr. Amit Jain is the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter-alia, include:

To oversee the financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information;

To review with Management, Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Financial Statements and ensure their accuracy and
correctness before submission to the Board;

To review with Management and Internal Auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems, approving the internal
audit plans/ reports and reviewing the efficacy of their function, discussion and review of periodic audit reports
including findings of internal investigations;

To recommend the appointment of the Internal and Statutory Auditors and their remuneration;

To review and approve required provisions to be maintained as per IRAC norms and write off decisions;

To hold discussions with the Statutory and Internal Auditors;

Review and monitoring of the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

Examination of the Auditors’ report on financial statements of the Company (in addition to the financial statements)
before submission to the Board;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Review of Credit Concurrent Audit Report/ Concurrent Audit Report of Treasury;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters as and when such funds are raised
and also reviewing with the management the utilization of the funds so raised, for purposes other than those stated
in the relevant offer document, if any and making appropriate recommendations to the Board in this regard;

Evaluation of the risk management systems (in addition to the internal control systems);

Review and monitoring of the performance of the Statutory Auditors and effectiveness of the audit process;
To hold post audit discussions with the Auditors to ascertain any area of concern;

To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

Approval to the appointment of the CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience and background etc. of the
candidate;

Approval of Bad Debt Write Off in terms of the Policy;

Review of information system audit of the internal systems and processes to assess the operational risks faced by
the Company and also ensures that the information system audit of internal systems and processes is conducted
periodically; and

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances and/or investment by the Company to its Subsidiary Companies,
exceeding rupees 100 Crores or 10% of the assets side of the respective Subsidiary Companies, whichever is lower,
including existing loans / advances / investment existing as on April 1, 2019.

Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022 the Committee met five times. The dates of the meetings being May 19,
2021, August 05, 2021, November 11, 2021, February 09, 2022 and March 15, 2022. In view of the Covid — 19 pandemic
all these meetings, were held in video conferencing mode in accordance with the relaxations granted by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.
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The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under:

Name of the Member No. of meetings
attended
Mr. Achuthan Siddharth 5
Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat 2*
Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha 2*
Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.) 4
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra 3#

*Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha did not attend meeting held after August 05, 2021 as they
ceased to be Independent Directors of the Company and members of the Committee, upon completion of their 2" term as
Independent Director w.e.f. September 28, 2021 .

“Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra did not attend meeting held prior to November 11, 2021 since he was appointed as a
member of the Committee w.e.f. September 30, 2021.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Composition

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (N&R) of the Board comprises of three Independent Directors as its
members, namely, Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra as Chairman, Mr. Satish Chand Mathur and Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha Misra
(Retd.) as the other two members.

Terms of reference
The terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter-alia, include:

e  Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director
and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other Employees;

e Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;
e Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

e |dentifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and removal;

e Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

¢ To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/ existing Directors;
e Torecommend tothe Board all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Directors, KMPs and Senior Management;

e Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no violation, by an Employee of any applicable laws in
India or overseas, including:

X The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; or

X The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices relating to the
Securities Market) Regulations, 1995; and

e  Perform such functions as are required to be performed by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Committee met Seven times i.e. on, April 09, 2021, June 29, 2021,
July 27, 2021, September 25, 2021, November 10, 2021, December 31, 2021 and February 08, 2022.
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The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under:

Name of the Member No. of meetings
attended
Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha 4*
Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat 4*
Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.) 7
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra 3xk
Mr. Satish Chand Mathur 3A

* Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha did not attend meeting held after September 25, 2021
as they ceased to be Independent Directors of the Company and members of the Committee, upon completion of their
2" term as Independent Director w.e.f. September 28, 2021.

**Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra was appointed as Chairman of N&R committee w.e.f. September 30, 2021.
A Mr. Satish Chand Kumar was appointed member of N&R committee w.e.f. September 30, 2021.
Policy for selection and appointment of Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (N&R Committee) has adopted a charter which, inter alia, deals with the
manner of selection of the Board of Directors, Senior Management and their compensation. This Policy is accordingly
derived from the said Charter.

a) The incumbent for the positions of Executive Directors and/or at Senior Management, shall be the persons of high
integrity, possesses relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities, required for the position.

b) The Non-Executive Directors shall be of high integrity, with relevant expertise and experience so as to have the
diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of finance, banking, regulatory, taxation, law, governance
and general management.

¢) In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the independent nature of the proposed appointee vis-a-vis the
Company, shall be ensured.

d) The N&R Committee shall consider qualification, experience, expertise of the incumbent, and shall also ensure that
such other criteria with regard to age and other qualification etc., as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or
other applicable laws are fulfilled, before recommending to the Board, for their appointment as Directors.

e) In case of re-appointment, the Board shall take into consideration, the performance evaluation of the Director and
his / her engagement level.

Remuneration Policy

Company’s Remuneration Policy is market led, based on the fundamental principles of payment for performance, for
potential and for growth. It also takes into account the competitive circumstances of the business, so as to attract and
retain quality talent and leverage performance significantly. The N&R Committee recommends the remuneration payable
to the Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, for approval by Board of Directors of the Company, subject to
the approval of its Shareholders, wherever necessary. The Remuneration Policy is also available at the website of the
Company, at web-link https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/investor-relations/codes-policies/.

Evaluation of the Board and Directors

The Independent Directors play a key role in the decision-making process of the Board as they approve the overall
strategy of the Company and oversee performance of the management. The Independent Directors are committed to act
in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders. The Independent Directors bring a wide range of experience,
knowledge and judgment. Their wide knowledge of both, their field of expertise and boardroom practices brings in varied,
unbiased, independent and experienced outlook. All Independent Directors have committed and allocated sufficient
time to perform their duties effectively. All the Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have
registered themselves in the databank created for Independent Directors, well within the stipulated time frame.
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board reassessed the framework, methodology and criteria
for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, including Board Committee(s), as well as performance of each
Director(s)/Chairman and confirms that the existing evaluation parameters are in compliance with the requirements as
per SEBI guidance note dated January 5, 2017 on Board evaluation. The existing parameters includes effectiveness of
the Board and its committees, decision making process, Directors/Members participation, governance, independence,
quality and content of agenda papers, team work, frequency of meetings, discussions at meetings, corporate culture,
contribution, role of the Chairman and management of conflict of interest. Basis these parameters and guidance note
on board evaluation issued by SEBI, the NRC had reviewed at length the performance of each Director individually and
expressed satisfaction on the process of evaluation and the performance of each Director. The performance evaluation
of the Board as a whole and its Committees namely Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee as well as the performance of each Director individually, including the Chairman
was carried out by the entire Board of Directors. The performance evaluation of the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Director was carried out by the Independent Directors in their meeting held on March 10,
2022. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Also the Chairman of the Company, on a periodic basis, has had one-to-one discussion with the Directors for their views
on the functioning of the Board and the Company, including discussions on level of engagement and contribution,
independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority Shareholders and implementation
of the suggestions offered by Directors either individually or collectively during different Board/Committee Meetings.

Policy on Board Diversity

The N&R Committee devises the policy to provide for having a broad experience and diversity on the Board.
Director’s Remuneration:

(i) Remuneration of Executive Directors

The Vice-Chairman, Managing Director & CEO, Deputy Managing Director and other Executive Directors are being paid
remuneration as recommended by Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors/
Shareholders. The elements of the remuneration package of Executive Directors comprise salary, commissions, perquisites,
ESOPs, SARs, other benefits & allowances and post retirement benefits. The same is decided by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee within the overall limits as approved by the Board / Shareholders. The annual increments of
Executive Directors are linked to their performance & are elected by Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The
notice period presently applicable to them is as per the Company policies. No severance fee is payable by the Company on
termination of Executive Directors. The Whole Time Directors of the Company have been appointed by the Shareholders
for a fixed tenure. They are, however, liable to retire by rotation.

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the year under review are provided
in the Annual Return as on March 31, 2022, which is available on the Company’s website on
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/ihfl-annual-return-mgt-7-fy-22-0333213001661262586.pdf.

(i) Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

Though day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to its Executive Directors, the Non-Executive Directors
also contribute significantly for laying down the policies and providing guidelines for conduct of Company’s business.
Considering the need for the enlarged role and active participation / contribution of Non-Executive Directors to
achieve the growth in operations and profitability of the Company, it is appropriate that the services being rendered
by them to the Company are recognized by it by way of payment of compensation, commensurate with their
contributions, as permissible within the applicable regulations. The Company’s Non-Executive Directors between
them have extensive entrepreneurial experience, and deep experience in the fields of financial sector regulation and
supervision, banking, judiciary, accounting, administration, and law enforcement etc. The Non-Executive Directors
both exercise effective oversight, and also guide the senior management team. Their experience and inputs have
been invaluable, especially so over the course of the last two years, as the Company faced headwinds affecting the
NBFC/HFC sector, and the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. They also devote their valuable time in deliberating on
the strategic and critical issues in the course of the Board and Committee meetings of the Company and give their
valuable advice, suggestion and guidance to the management of the Company. The Company is making payment of
fee/ remuneration payable to its NEDs in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR.
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The Company has placed on its website https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/criteria-for-
making-payment-to-non-executive-directors_ihfl-0699938001562586522.pdf , criteria for making payment to Non-
Executive Directors. During the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, the Non-Executive Directors have been paid,
sitting fees for attending the Board meetings of the Company, and profit linked incentives in term of the existing
Shareholders authorization, the details of which are provided in the Annual Return as on March 31, 2022, which
is available on the Company’s website on https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/ihfl-annual-
return-mgt-7-fy-22-0333213001661262586.pdf.

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company do not have any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company
or its Directors, Senior Management, Subsidiary or Associate Companies, other than in the normal course of business.

(C) Stakeholders Relationship Committee
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Composition

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) currently comprises of three members, namely, Justice Gyan Sudha
Misra (Retd.) as Chairperson, Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra and Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar, as Members. Two out
of the three Members of the Committee, namely, Justice Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.), Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra, are
Independent Directors and Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar is Deputy Managing Director.

Terms of Reference

e To approve requests for share transfers and transmissions;

e To approve the requests pertaining to remat of shares/sub-division/consolidation/issue of renewed and duplicate
share certificates etc.;

e To oversee all matters encompassing the Shareholders’ / Investors’ related issues;

e Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company, including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate
certificates, general meetings etc.;

e Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by Shareholders;

e Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered
by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent; and

e  Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends
and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the Shareholders of the Company.

Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Committee met six times. The dates of the meetings being April 09,
2021, July 22, 2021, September 22, 2021, November 05, 2021, February 08, 2022 and March 21, 2022.

The attendance of Committee members in these meetings is as under:

Name of the Member No. of meetings
attended
Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat 3*
Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar 6
Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha 3*
Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra 3
Justice Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.) 3k

* Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha did not attend meeting held after September 22, 2021
as they ceased to be Independent Directors of the Company and members of the Committee, upon completion of their
2" term as Independent Director w.e.f. September 28, 2021.

**Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra was appointed as member of SR committee w.e.f. September 30, 2021.
** Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.) was appointed Chairperson of SR committee w.e.f. September 30, 2021.
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Name and designation of Compliance Officer
Mr. Amit Jain, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer pursuant to Regulation 6(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Details of queries / complaints received and resolved pertaining to Equity Shares of the Company during the year
2021-22:

SI. | PARTICULARS OPENING | RECEIVED | DISPOSED | PENDING
No.
1 Legal Cases / Cases before Consumer Forums 0 0 0 0
2 Letters from SEBI / Stock Exchange. 0 13 13 0
3 Status of applications lodged for public issue(s) 0 0 0 0
4 Non-receipt of dividend 0 822 822 0
5 Non-receipt of annual report 0 0 0 0
6 Non-receipt of Refund order 0 0 0 0
7 Non-credit/receipt of shares in demat account 0 0 0 0
8 Non-receipt of securities after transfer 0 0 0 0
Total 0 835 835 0

Details of queries / complaints received and resolved pertaining to Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company
during the year 2021-22:

Sl. | Particulars Opening | Received | Disposed | Pending
No.
1 Legal Cases / Cases before Consumer Forums 0 0 0 0
2 Letters from SEBI / Stock Exchange. 0 2 2 0
3 Status of applications lodged for public issue(s) 0 0 0 0
4 Non-receipt of Interest 0 108 108 0
5 Non-receipt of annual report 0 0 0 0
6 Non-receipt of Refund order 0 29 29 0
7 Non-credit/receipt of NCDs in demat account 0 4 4 0
8 Non-receipt of securities after transfer 0 2 2 0
Total 0 145 145 0

(D) Risk Management Committee
Composition

The Risk Management Committee of the Board comprises of Four membersi.e.. Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra as Chairman,
Mr. Gagan Banga, Mr. Achuthan Siddharth and Mr. Satish Chand Mathur, the other three Members of Committee.

Terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee, inter-alia, include:

e Approve the Credit/Operation Policy and its review/modification from time to time;

e Review of applicable regulatory requirements;

e Approve all the functional policies of the Company;

e  Place appropriate mechanism in the system to cater Fraud while dealing with customers/approval of loans etc.;
e Review of profile of the high loan customers and periodical review of the same;

e  Review of Branch Audit Report;

e Review Compliances of lapses;

e Review of implementation of FPCs, KYC and PMLA guidelines;

123

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22



Indiabulls

HOME LOANS

(E)

124

e Define loan sanctioning authorities, including process of vetting by Credit Committee, for various types/values of
loans as specified in Credit Policy approved by the BoDs;

e  Review the SARFAESI cases;
e Recommend Bad Debt Write Off in terms of the Policy, for approval to Audit Committee;

e  Ensure appropriate mechanisms to detect customer fraud and cyber security during the loan approval process etc.;
and

e Any other matter involving Risk to the asset/business of the Company.
Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Committee met Six times. The dates of the meetings being, May 14,
2021, July 29, 2021, August 10, 2021, November 05, 2021, January 28, 2022 and February 08, 2022.

The attendance record of Committee members in respect of the meetings so held is depicted in the table given below:

Sl. | Name of the Member No. of meetings
No. attended
1 Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal 6"

2 Mr. Gagan Banga 6

3 Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar 5A

4 Mr. Sachin Chaudhary 6"

5 Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat 3*

6 Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha 3*

7 Mr. Mukesh Garg 3**

8 Mr. Subhankar Ghosh 3x*

9 Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra JFEH
10 | Mr. Achuthan Siddharth NIL*

11 | Mr. Satish Chand Mathur NIL#

* Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha did not attend meetings held after August 10, 2021 as they
ceased to be Independent Directors of the Company and members of the Committee w.e.f. September 28, 2021 as their
2" term as Independent Director ended on that date.

**Mr. Mukesh Garg and Mr. Subhankar Ghosh did not attend meetings held after August 10, 2021 as they ceased to be
the members of the Committee w.e.f. September 30, 2021.

***Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra did not attend meetings held prior to November 05, 2021 as he was appointed as member
in committee w.e.f. September 30, 2021.

#Mr. Achuthan Siddharth and Mr. Satish Chand Mathur appointed members w.e.f. February 9, 2022. No meeting of the
Committee was held during the year subsequent to their appointments.

AMr Ajit Kumar Mittal, Mr Ashwini Omprakash Kumar and Mr Sachin Chaudhary ceased to the members w.e.f. February
9, 2022.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
Composition

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of three members, namely, Justice Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.),
as the Chairman and Member and Mr. Gagan Banga and Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar as the other two members.

Terms of Reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Terms of reference of the CSR Committee, inter-alia, include:

e Torecommend to the Board, the CSR activity to be undertaken by the Company;
e To approve the expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activity;

e To oversee and review the effective implementation of the CSR activity; and

e To ensure compliance of all related applicable regulatory requirements.
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Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022 the Committee met three times. The date of the meetings being
November 05, 2021, January 31, 2022 and March 31, 2022.

Sl. | Name of the Member No. of meetings
No. attended
1 | Justice Mrs. Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.) 3
2 | Mr. Gagan Banga 2
3 | Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar 3
4 | Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat NIL*

* Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat ceased to be Independent Director of the Company and member of the Committee w.e.f.
September 28, 2021 as his 2™ term as Independent Director ended on that date. No meeting of the Committee was held
during his tenure as a member of the Committee.

4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

(A)

(B)

(€

Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and number of special resolutions passed thereat:

Year Meeting Location Date Time Number of special
resolutions passed
2018-19 14th AGM Mapple Rajokri, NH-8, August 28, 2019 11:00 AM 2
Emerald, New Delhi-110038
2019-20 15th AGM Through VC/ OAVM September 7, 2020 | 11.00 A.M. 2
2020-21 16th AGM Through VC/OAVM July 29, 2021 11.00 A.M. 7

Extraordinary General Meeting during the FY 2021-22

The Company during the financial year conducted an Extraordinary General Meeting on November 15, 2021 through
Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) and passed two Ordinary Resolutions for appointment of
Joint Statutory Auditors and one Special Resolution for reappointment of Independent Director.

Postal Ballot during the FY 2021-22

During the year 2021-22, no resolution was passed by the Company through Postal Ballot. No Special Resolution requiring
Postal Ballot is being proposed on or before the ensuing AGM of the Company.

5. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company has provided adequate and timely information to its Member’s, inter-alia, through the following means:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Publication of financial Results: The quarterly / annual results of the Company are published in the leading newspapers
viz. Business Standard (English and Hindi), Financial Express and (English), Jansatta (Hindi).

News, Release etc.: The Company has its own website https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com and all vital information
relating to the Company and its performance including financial results, earnings update, press releases pertaining to
important developments, performance updates and corporate presentations etc. are regularly posted on the website.

Presentation to institutional investors or analysts: The presentations made to the institutional investors or analysts, are
uploaded on the website of the Company, and also sent to the Stock Exchange for dissemination.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report has been included in the Annual Report, which forms a part of the Annual
Report.
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Company Registration Details

The Company is registered in the State of Delhi, India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L65922DL2005PLC136029.

Date, Time and Venue of AGM

The 17" AGM of the Company would be held on the day, date and time as mentioned in the Notice convening the said
AGM. The Company is conducting AGM through Video Conferencing /Other Audio Visual Mode in accordance with the
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Financial year

The financial year of the Company is a period of twelve months beginning on April 01, every calendar year and ending on
March 31 the following calendar year.

Dividend Payment Date

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on May 19, 2021, has declared Interim Dividend of X 9/- per
equity share (on the face value of X 2/- per share) for the financial year 2020-21. The Record Date for the purpose of
determining the names of members eligible for receipt of interim dividend was May 31, 2021. The dividend payout date
was on or before June 17, 2021.

Date of Book Closure
The dates of Book Closure are as mentioned in the Notice convening the 17" AGM of the Company.
Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Company’s shares, GDRs, Bonds are listed at the following stock exchanges:

Equity Shares and NCDs Global Depository Foreign Currency Convertible
Receipts(GDRs) Bonds
BSE Limited (BSE) Luxembourg Stock Exchange Singapore  Exchange Securities

Trading Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, | 35A Boulevard Joseph Il rading Limite

Mumbai — 400 001 2 Shenton Way, #02-02 SGX Centre

L-1840 Luxembourg .
1,S -068804
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE) ingapore

“Exchange Plaza” C-1, Block G, Bandra-Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051

The listing fees for the financial year 2021-22 and 2022-23, have been paid to BSE and NSE.

Stock Code (for equity segment)
BSE Limited — 535789
National Stock Exchange of India Limited - IBULHSGFIN/EQ ISIN for Dematerialization — INE148101020
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(H) Stock Market Price at National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE)

Financial Statements

The monthly high and low market prices of equity shares at the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE
Limited (BSE) for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as under:

Month NSE BSE
High () Low (X) High () Low (X)
Apr-21 205.5 154.2 205.5 154.3
May-21 232.7 174.65 232.65 174.8
Jun-21 313.7 219.6 3135 219.7
Jul-21 297.8 258.45 297.7 258.5
Aug-21 291.5 216.55 291.5 216.7
Sep-21 249.9 207.05 249.55 207.15
Oct-21 264.65 209.05 264.5 209
Nov-21 259.8 201.45 258.5 201.6
Dec-21 279 211.55 282.6 211.6
Jan-22 228.65 203.8 228.4 203.8
Feb-22 222.75 135.4 222.7 135.5
Mar-22 169.55 130.2 172 130.2
(1) Performance of the Company’s share in comparison to broad — based indices
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(J) Registrar and Transfer Agents

(i) For Equity Shares and Secured Non-convertible Debentures and Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures issued
under Public Issue and Private Placement basis

KFin Technologies Limited

(Formerly known as KFin Technologies Private Limited)

Unit: Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad — 500 032, Telangana

Toll free number - 1- 800-309-4001

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com

Website: www.kfintech.com and https://ris.kfintech.com/

(ii) Secured Non-convertible Debentures, Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures, and Unsecured Non- Convertible
Subordinate Debt in the nature of Debentures issued on Private Placement basis

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
D-153 A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase — I, New Delhi— 110 020

Tel: 011-40450193, Fax: 011-26812682
E-mail: info@skylinerta.com

Website: www.skylinerta.com

(K) Share Transfer System

The Board has delegated the authority for share transfers, transmissions, remat/ demat of shares/sub-division/
consolidation/ issue of renewed and duplicate share certificates etc. to the Board constituted Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee. For any such action request is to be made to the RTA, which after scrutinizing all such requests, forwards it
for approval by Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.
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(i) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2022
Sl. No. | Category Amount | No. of Holders % to total Total Shares | Amount (inX.) | % of Amount
holders

1 1- 5000 535,900 98.2 95,053,131 190,106,262 20.29
2 5001 - 10000 5,696 1.04 20,346,662 40,693,324 4.34
3 10001 - 20000 2,331 0.43 16,654,492 33,308,984 3.55
4 20001 - 30000 592 0.11 7,387,253 14,774,506 1.58
5 30001 - 40000 328 0.06 5,800,338 11,600,676 1.24
6 40001 - 50000 171 0.03 3,916,200 7,832,400 0.84
7 50001 - 100000 337 0.06 11,873,070 23,746,140 2.53
8 100001 & Above 383 0.07 307,540,358 615,080,716 65.63

Total 545,738 100.00 468,571,504 937,143,008 100.00

(ii) Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2022

S. No. | Description No. of Shares % holding
1 Promoters and Promoters Group 45,194,807 9.65
2 Mutual Funds/Indian Financial Institutions 19,809,496 4.23
3 Banks 2 0
4 Qualified Institutional Buyer 41,451,766 8.85
5 FPIs 123,369,865 26.33
6 Bodies Corporate 23,397,513 4.99
7 Indian Public (Employees/HUF/Public/Trusts/Directors) 180,201,713 38.46
8 NRIs 5,240,274 1.12
9 GDRs (Shares underlying) 567,505 0.12
10 NBFC 62,225 0.01
11 Foreign Corporate Bodies 2,103,976 0.45
12 Others(Clearing Members) 4,066,673 0.87
13 Others(AIF/IEPF/EWT) 23,105,689 4.93

Total 468,571,504 100.00

(M) Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

(N)

Equity Shares of the Company are traded under compulsory dematerialized mode and are available for trading under
both the depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

As on March 31, 2022, approx. 100% Equity shares of the Company representing 468,569,762 out of a total of 468,571,504
Equity shares were held in dematerialized form and the balance 1,742 shares of the total equity capital of the Company
were held in physical form.

The Company obtains from a Company Secretary in practice, yearly certificate of compliance with the share transfer
formalities as required under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and files a copy of the certificate with the Stock Exchanges.

Outstanding GDRs/Convertible Instruments

As on March 31, 2022, the number of outstanding GDRs was 567,505. Each GDR represents one equity share of
X 2/- each in the Company. Also as on March 31, 2022, an aggregate of 22,008,616 Employees Stock options are in force.
These options, upon exercise, are convertible into equal number of Equity Shares of the Company. As and when these
options are exercised, the paid-up share capital of the Company shall stand increased accordingly.
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During the year, the Company has issued 4.50% Secured Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds due 2026 (‘FCCBs’) of USD 165
Million at par, convertible into fully paid-up equity shares of face value of X 2/- each of the Company at an initial conversion
price of X 243.05/- per equity share, on or after November 08, 2021 and up to the close of business hours on September 27,
2026, at the option of the FCCB holders. FCCBs, which are not converted to equity shares during such specified period, will be
redeemable on September 28, 2026.

The Company does not have any outstanding ADRs/ Warrants or any other convertible instruments as on date.
Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities

The Company does not have any exposure to commodity price risks. During FY 2021-22 the Company has managed the foreign
exchange risk by hedging the entire principal and/or interest on its foreign currency borrowings. The foreign currency and
interest rate risk on borrowings have been actively hedged through a combination of forward contracts, options, principal only
swaps, interest rate swaps and / or cross currency swaps.

Plant Locations

As the Company is engaged in the business of housing finance/financial services, there is no plant location.
Address for Correspondence

(i) Registered Office*:

5t Floor. Building No. 27, K.G. Marg Connaught Place, New Delhi - 110 001
Email: homeloans@indiabulls.com,

Tel: 011-43532950, Fax: 011-43532947,

Website: https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/

*W.e.f. April 30, 2022
(ii) Corporate Office*:

(a) Plot No. 442B, Udyog Vihar, Phase IV,
Gurugram — 122 016, Haryana

(b) One International Centre, Tower 1, 18" Floor, Elphinstone Mills,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra

*W.e.f. June 1, 2022
Debenture Trustees

(i) Secured Non-convertible Debentures and Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures issued under Public Issue and
Secured Non-convertible Debentures issued on Private Placement basis.
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
Contact Person: Mrs. Anjalee Athalye

Address: Asian Building, Ground Floor, 17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai — 400 001
Tel: +91-22-40807018; Fax: +91-22-40807080
Website: www.idbitrustee.com

(ii) Unsecured Non-Convertible Subordinate Debt in the nature of Debentures issued on Private Placement basis.

Axis Trustee Services Limited

Contact Person: Mrs. Mangalagowri Bhat

Address: The Ruby, 2" Floor, SW,

29 Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West, Mumbai — 400 028 (Maharashtra)
Tel: +91-22-62300451; Fax: +91-022-62300700

Website: www.axistrustee.in

Profiles of the directors seeking appointment / re-appointment have been captured in the Notice convening the
17*" AGM of the Company.
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(T) Credit Ratings and Change/ Revisions in Credit Ratings for Debt Instruments:-

Deposits Instrument Name of rating Date of Rating Borrowing limit
agency rating / assigned/ or conditions
revalidation | Reaffirmed | imposed by rating
agency, if any
(Amt. in X. Billion)
Cash Credit Crisil Rating Mar-22 CRISIL AA 69.55
Proposed Long-Term Bank Facility Crisil Rating Mar-22 CRISIL AA 175.95
Non-Convertible Debentures Crisil Rating Mar-22 CRISIL AA 276.80
Subordinate Debt Crisil Rating Mar-22 CRISIL AA 25.00
Retail Bonds Crisil Rating Mar-22 CRISIL AA 150.00
Short Term Non-Convertible Debenture Crisil Rating Mar-22 CRISIL A1+ 10.00
Short Term Commercial Paper Program Crisil Rating Mar-22 CRISIL A1+ 250.00
Retail NCD Brickwork Ratings Mar-22 BWR AA+ 28.00
NCD lIssue Brickwork Ratings Mar-22 BWR AA+ 270.00
Subordinate Debt Issue program Brickwork Ratings Mar-22 BWR AA+ 30.00
Perpetual Debt Issue Brickwork Ratings Nov-21 BWR AA 1.50
Secured NCD Brickwork Ratings Mar-22 BWR AA+ 68.01
Unsecured Subordinated NCD Brickwork Ratings Mar-22 BWR AA+ 1.99
Short Term Commercial Paper Program Brickwork Ratings Aug-21 BWR Al+ 30.00
Long Term Debt CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE AA 135.97
Subordinate Debt CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE AA 31.22
Prepetual Debt CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE AA- 2.00
Cash Credit CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE AA 80.00
Long-Term Bank Facility CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE AA 311.71
Short Term Bank Facility CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE Al+ -
Proposed Long-Term/Short-Term Facility CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE AA 106.29
Public Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE AA 14.33
Public Issue of Subordinate Debt CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE AA 1.99
Short Term Commercial Paper Program CARE Ratings Dec-21 CARE A1+ 30.00
NCD Issue ICRA Limited Mar-22 ICRA AA 86.25
Subordinate Debt ICRA Limited Mar-22 ICRA AA 15.00
Retail NCD ICRA Limited Mar-22 ICRA AA 30.00
Long Term Corporate Family Rating Moody's Jun-21 B3 -
Foreign and Local Currency Senior Secured MTN | Moody's Jun-21 (P) B3 $350 Mn
program Rating
Please note for outstanding rated debt, rating is valid throughout the life of the Instrument

On September 30, 2021, and on November 18, 2021, rating agency ICRA and Brickwork had revised the Company’s rating
to Stable from Negative respectively. The long-term credit rating of the Company was reaffirmed at “ICRA AA” and “BWR
AA+” respectively and Perpetual Debt rating has been reaffirmed at “BWR AA”. The short term credit rating was also
reaffirmed at the highest rating of “BWR A1+".

ICRA and Brickwork noted the following in revising the rating outlook to stable:
- Healthy financial profile with adequate capitalization

- Strengthened governance structure

- Strong liquidity position

- Minimal slippages and healthy collections
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- Adequate asset quality of the retail segment

- Sufficient provision to cushion any asset quality deterioration

- Established market position

- Diversified resource profile

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Company did not allot any shares through preferential allotment or qualified
institutional placement.

Fees paid to Statutory Auditors*

Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its Subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the Statutory Auditor
and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a part is given below:-

Rin Crores
Particulars FY2021-22
Auditor’s Fee 3.13
Certification Fee* 0.55
Others* 1.91
Total 5.59

* Included in Legal and Professional Charges
#Including GST

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY
A certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary certifying the Company’s compliance with the provisions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule-V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, is annexed to and forms a part of this Report.
DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
Number of complaints filed during the Number of complaints disposed of Number of complaints pending as on
financial year 2021-22 during the financial year 2021-22 end of the financial year 2021-22
0 0 0
OTHER DISCLOSURES:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

132

Subsidiary Companies

Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited is a material debt listed subsidiary of the Company during the financial year 2021-
22. The Company has formulated a Policy for determining material subsidiaries, pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which is available on the website of the Company
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/ihfl_policy-for-determining-material-subsidiary-0856481001562586391.pdf

Details of Non-Compliance/MCA Inspection

Details of Non-Compliance/MCA Inspection has been provided in Annexure(s) to Directors’ Report, forming part of the
Annual Report 2021-22 of the Company.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has a board approved policy on Related Party Transactions. The policy intends to ensure that proper
reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all related party transactions. During the year, pursuant to
notification of amendments to Listing Regulations, amongst other changes, the scope of related party transactions has
been widened significantly and the said policy was amended to align it with all the applicable amendments. The updated
policy is placed on the Company’s website and is provided elsewhere in the annual report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22



https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/uploads/downloads/ihfl_policy-for-determining-material-subsidiary-0856481001562586391.pdf

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory Reports

All the related party transactions entered into by the Company has been in its ordinary course of business and at arm’s
length basis. Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested, is disclosed
along with other related party transactions, in the notes forming part of financial statements. )

VC, MD & CEO / CFO Certification

(a) The Vice-Chairman, Managing Director & CEO and CFO have issued certificate pursuant to the Regulation 33(2)(a)
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, certifying that the financial statements do not contain any false or misleading
statement or figures and do not omit any material fact which may make the statements or figures contained therein
misleading.

(b) The Vice-Chairman, Managing Director & CEO and the CFO have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of
Regulation 17(8) read with Part-B of Schedule-Il of the SEBI LODR, certifying that the financial statements do not
contain any materially untrue statement and these statements represent a true and fair view of the Company’s
affairs.

Codes of the Company
(a) Code of Conduct and Ethics

The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) for the Board Members and
Senior Management personnel of the Company. The Code is available on the website of the Company
https://www.indiabullshomeloans.com/investor-relations/codes-policies.

All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code. A declaration
signed by the Chief Executive Officer to this effect is enclosed at the end of this Report.

The Code seeks to ensure that the Board Members and Senior Management personnel observe a total commitment
to their duties and responsibilities while ensuring a complete adherence with the applicable statutes along with
business values and ethics.

(b) Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, in accordance with the requirements
of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and Companies
Act, 2013, with a view to regulate trading in Securities of the Company by its directors, designated persons and
employees.

Whistle Blower Policy

The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of its business
operations. To maintain these standards, the Company has implemented the Whistle Blower Policy (“the Policy”’), to
provide an avenue for employees to report matters without the risk of subsequent victimization, discrimination or
disadvantage. The Policy applies to all employees working for the Company and its subsidiaries and no personnel have
been denied access to the audit committee. Pursuant to the Policy, the whistle blowers can raise concerns relating
to matters such as breach of Company’s Code of Conduct, fraud, bribery, corruption, employee misconduct, illegality,
misappropriation of Company’s funds/assets etc. A whistle-blowing or reporting mechanism, as set out in the Policy,
invites all employees to act responsibly to uphold the reputation of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Policy aims to
ensure that serious concerns are properly raised and addressed and are recognized as an enabling factor in administering
good governance practices. The details of the Whistle Blower Policy are available on the website of the Company (https://
www.indiabullshomeloans.com/whistle-blower-policy).

(vii) Strictures and penalties during the last three years

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the details of penalties being imposed on the Company or strictures being passed
against it, by SEBI or the Stock Exchanges are provided in the Secretarial Compliance Report, forming part of this Annual
Report. Further, during the current financial year, BSE has imposed a penalty of X 35,400/- (including GST) for non-
compliance under regulation 13(1) of SEBI LODR for quarter/year ended January 2021 and the Company had paid the said
penalty to Exchange on June 16, 2022.
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(viii) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements pursuant to

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 in letter as
well as in spirit. The details of these compliances have been given in the relevant sections of this Report. The status on
compliance with the Non mandatory requirements are given in the next section of the Report.

10. DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS

(A)

(B)

(@

(D)

(E)

(F)

Non-Executive Chairman

Since August 12, 2020, Mr. Subhash Sheoratan Mundra, a Non-Executive, Independent Director is holding the office of the
Chairman of the Company. Hence, the requirements applicable as to a Non-Executive Chairman in terms of Regulation 17
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are in complied with by the Company.

Shareholders Rights

The Company would be getting its quarterly/half yearly and annual financial results published in leading newspapers
with wide circulation across the country and regularly update the same on its public domain website. In view of the same
individual communication of quarterly/annual financial results to the Shareholders will not be made. Further, information
pertaining to important developments in the Company shall be brought to the knowledge of the public at large and to the
Shareholders of the Company in particular, through communications sent to the stock exchanges where the shares of the
Company are listed, through press releases in leading newspapers and through regular uploads made on the Company
website.

Unqualified financial statements

The Auditors’ Report on the audited annual accounts of the Company does not contain any qualification from the
Statutory Auditors and it shall be the endeavor of the Company to continue the trend by building up accounting systems
and controls which ensure complete adherence to the applicable accounting standards and practices obviating the
possibility of the Auditors qualifying their report as to the audited accounts.

Separate posts of chairperson and chief executive officer

Mr. Subhash Sheoratan Mundra, an Independent Director is the Non-Executive Chairman of the Company. Mr. Gagan
Banga is the Vice-Chairman, Managing Director and CEO of the Company.

Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Internal Auditor of the Company reports to CFO and has direct access to the Audit Committee.

Except as set out above, the Company has not adopted the non-mandatory requirements as to any of the other matters
recommended under Part E of Schedule Il of Regulation 27(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Unclaimed Shares lying in Demat Suspense Account

The Company was not required to transfer any shares in Demat Suspense Account. Accordingly, the disclosure required to
be made in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, in respect of shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account, is not applicable
to the Company.

This Corporate Governance Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 are in compliance with the
requirements of Corporate Governance as prescribed under Regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) and (t) of sub- regulation (2)
of Regulation 46 of the SEBI LODR, to the extent applicable to the Company.
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ANNUAL DECLARATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO REGULATION 34(3) READ WITH SCHEDULE-V OF THE SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

| confirm that for the year under review, directors and senior management have affirmed their adherence to the provisions of the
Code of Conduct.

Sd/-
Date: May 20, 2022 Gagan Banga
Place: Mumbai Vice-Chairman, Managing Director & CEO

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) READ WITH PART-B OF SCHEDULE-II OF THE SEBI (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To
The Board of Directors
Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

As required by Regulation 17(8) read with Part-B of Schedule-1l of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, we hereby confirm to the Board that:

A.  We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our knowledge and
belief:

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that:
(1) There were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) There were no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

(3) There were no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Gagan Banga Mukesh Garg
Vice-Chairman, Managing Director & CEO CFO
Date: May 20, 2022 Date: May 20, 2022
Place: Mumbai Place: Delhi
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CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited
5t Floor, Building No. 27, K.G. Marg,
Connaught Place, New Delhi - 110 001

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (“the Company”),
for the year ended March 31, 2022, as prescribed in Regulations 17 to 27, 46(2)(b) to (i) and (t) and para C, D and E of Schedule V
of Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR).

We state that the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management and,
our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI LODR.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This certificate is issued solely for the purposes of complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not be suitable for any other
purpose.

For S. K. Hota & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Place: New Delhi S. K. Hota
Date: July 08, 2022 Proprietor
Membership No.: ACS 16165

CP No.: 6425

UDIN: A016165D000590442
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited
5t Floor, Building No. 27, K.G. Marg,
Connaught Place, New Delhi - 110 001

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Indiabulls Housing
Finance Limited having CIN L65922DL2005PLC136029 and having registered office at 5" Floor, Building No. 27, K.G. Marg, Connaught
Place, New Delhi - 110 001 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers,
we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on
315 March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any such other Statutory Authority:

Sr. No. | Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in the Company*
1. Mr. Subhash Sheoratan Mundra 00979731 18/08/2018
2. Mr. Achuthan Siddharth 00016278 03/07/2020
3. Justice Gyan Sudha Misra (Retd.) 07577265 29/09/2016
4, Mr. Satish Chand Mathur 03641285 08/03/2019
5. Mr. Dinabandhu Mohapatra 07488705 23/11/2020
6. Mr. Gagan Banga 00010894 10/05/2005
7. Mr. Ashwini Omprakash Kumar 03341114 23/08/2011
8. Mr. Sachin Chaudhary 02016992 21/10/2016
9. Mr. Ajit Kumar Mittal 02698115 23/08/2011
10. Mr. Sameer Gehlaut# 00060783 19/03/2013
11. Mr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat” 00017480 19/03/2013
12. Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha” 01352748 19/03/2013

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal.
# Mr. Sameer Gehlaut had resigned w.e.f. March 14, 2022.

AMr. Shamsher Singh Ahlawat and Mr. Prem Prakash Mirdha ceased to be Independent Directors of the Company as their Second
term of five years ended on September 28, 2021.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For S. K. Hota & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Place: New Delhi S. K. Hota
Date: July 08, 2022 Proprietor
Membership No.: ACS 16165

CP No.: 6425

UDIN: A016165D000590530
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (“the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together are referred to as “the Group”),
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other
Matters section below, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, of consolidated profit, consolidated other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in sub-para (a) and (b) of the Other Matters
paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to Note 44(1) of the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements which describes
the uncertainties relating to the impact of COVID-19
pandemic on the Holding Company’s operations and
financial metrics, including the expected credit losses.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

2. We draw attention to Note 48 of the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements which states
that the Holding Company has debited additional
special reserve created under section 29 C as per the
Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company —
Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India [read
with erstwhile NHB circular no. NHB (ND)/DRS/Pol-
No0.03/2004-05 dated August 26, 2004] for an amount
of Rs. 825 crores in respect of impairment loss on
financial instruments net of related tax impact instead
of debiting the same to the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

3. In respect of Component Indiabulls Commercial Credit
Limited, as reported by component auditors, we
draw attention to Note 44 (2) of the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements which describes the
effectsofuncertaintiesrelatingtothe COVID-19 pandemic
outbreak on the subsidiary Company’s operations, that
are dependent upon future developments, and the
impact thereof on the subsidiary Company’s estimates
of impairment of loans to customers outstanding as
at March 31, 2022. Our conclusion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.



A. Key audit matter of the Holding Company

Financial Statements

Consolidated

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of financial instruments (including provision for expected credit losses) (as described in note 9 of the Consolidated

Financial Statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Holding Company to provide for
impairment of its financial assets using the expected credit loss
(‘ECL’) approach involving an estimation of probability of loss on
the financial assets over their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Holding company loans and advances.
In the process, a significant degree of judgement has been
applied by the management in respect of following matters:

. The Holding company has various loan products divided
into Corporate loan portfolio and Retail loan portfolio.
Retail loans are grouped into different categories on
the basis of homogeneity and thereby expected to
demonstrate similar credit characteristics. Corporate
loan portfolio is assessed on a case-to-case basis.

. Estimation of losses in respect of loans or groups of loans
which had no/ minimal defaults in the past.

. Staging of loans and estimation of behavioural life.

o Management overlay for macro-economic factors and

estimation of their impact on the credit quality.

. The Holding company has developed models that derive
key assumptions used within the provision calculation
such as probability of default (PD).

. The Holding company has used LGD rates based on past
experience and industry practice.

. The output of these models is then applied to the
provision calculation with other information including
the exposure at default (EAD).

Additional considerations on account of CoVID-19

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has announced restructuring 2.0 in
order to grant relief to the borrowers. The Holding company
has recorded a management overlay as part of its ECL, to reflect
among other things the impact of Novel Coronavirus (CoVID-19)
pandemic and macro-economic factors. In accordance with the
guidancein Ind AS 109, the management overlay estimate takes
into account reasonably and supportable information without
incurring significant cost. The actual credit losses for the next 12
months could be significantly different than the ECL estimates
prepared by the Holding Company depending upon the impact
and duration of the pandemic and various regulatory and policy
measures announced by the Government.

Given the high degree of management’s judgement involved in
estimation of ECL, it is an area of material uncertainty and a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included considering the Holding
Company’s accounting policies for impairment of loan
receivables and assessing compliance with the policies
in terms of Ind AS 109.

Tested the assumptions used by the Holding Company
for grouping and staging of loan portfolio into various
categories and default buckets for determining the PD.

Tested the operating effectiveness of the controls for
staging of loans based on their past-due status. Tested a
sample of performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether
any loss indicators were present requiring them to be
classified under stage 2 or 3.

Performed inquiries with the Holding Company’s
management and its risk management function to
assess the impact of CoVID-19.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Holding Company in
spreadsheets.

Compared the disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements in respect of expected credit losses
with the requirements of Ind AS 107 and 109. Reviewed
specific disclosures made in the standalone financial
statements with regards to the impact of CoVID-19 on
ECL estimation.

Assessed specific disclosures made in the Standalone
Financial Statements with regards to the impact of
Covid-19 on ECL estimations.
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B. Key Audit Matters of Subsidiary Company — Indiabulls Commercial Credit Limited (‘ICCL”) as reported by the auditors of
ICCL

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

a)

140

Impairment of Loans (expected credit loss - ECL) (Refer
note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109,
the Subsidiary Company is required to provide for
impairment of its financial assets using the expected
credit loss (‘ECL’) approach which involves an estimation
of the probability of loss on the financial assets over their
life, considering reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions which could impact the credit
quality of the subsidiary Company’s loans and advances.
In the process, a significant degree of judgement has
been applied by the management in respect of following
matters:

(i) Classification and staging of loan portfolio, and
estimation of behavioural life.

(ii) Estimation of losses in respect of those classes of
loans which had no or minimal historical defaults.
(iii)  Management overlay for macro-economic factors
and the impact of CoVID -19 pandemic and
estimation of their impact on the credit quality
of the loans. In accordance with the guidance in
Ind AS 109, the management overlay estimate
takes into account reasonably and supportable
information without incurring significant cost. The
actual credit losses for the next 12 months could
be significantly different than the ECL estimates
prepared by the subsidiary Company depending
upon the impact and duration of the pandemic
and various regulatory and policy measures
announced by the Government.
(iv)  Further, the subsidiary Company has restructured
loans on account of COVID-19 related regulatory
measures. This has resulted in increased
management estimation over determination of
provision for such restructured loans.

(v)  The disclosures (including disclosures prescribed
by RBI) regarding the subsidiary Company’s
application of Ind AS 109 are key to explaining the
key judgements and material inputs to the Ind AS
109 ECL results.

The subsidiary Company has developed a financial model
that derives key assumptions used within the provision
calculation such as probability of default (PD) and loss
given default (LGD). The output of such model is then
applied to the calculation for the provision for expected
credit loss calculation with other information including
the exposure at default (EAD).

Given the high degree of management’s judgement
involved in estimation of ECL, it is an area of material
uncertainty and a key audit matter.
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Principal Audit Procedures

Read and assessed the Company’s accounting policies
for the process of estimation of impairment of financial
assets and whether such policy was in accordance with
the requirements of Ind AS 109 and the governance
framework approved by the Board of Directors pursuant
to the applicable Reserve Bank of India guidelines/
directions.

Evaluated the appropriateness of the Company’s
assumptions used by the Company for grouping
and staging of loan portfolio into various categories
and default buckets and their appropriateness for
determining the probability of default (PD) and loss-
given default (LGD) rates.

Tested the operating effectiveness of the controls
for application of the staging criteria. Assessed the
additional considerations applied by the Management
for staging of loans.

Performed tests (on sample basis) to verify the
completeness and accuracy of the input data used to
determine the PD and LGD rates and agreed such data
with the underlying books of accounts and records.

Performed inquiries with the Company’s management
to assess the impact of COVID-19 on the current
economic environment and business activities of the
Company.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of calculation of the
provision for ECL performed by the Company.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic factors
(including CoVID-19 pandemic)

Tested key controls and details over restructuring process
in respect of eligibility, approval and modification of
terms.

Assessed the appropriateness and sufficiency of
disclosures in the Financial Statements in respect of
provision for EC.



Financial Statements

Consolidated

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

b) De-recognition of financial assets (Refer Notes 9 and 40 | Principal audit procedures
to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

o Assessed (on sample basis) assignment agreements to
The subsidiary Company has, during the year ended evaluate whether the de-recognition criteria have been
March 31, 2022, assigned loans amounting to Rs. met.
1,742.65 crores for managing its funding requirements
’ ging g req . Assessed the significant estimates and judgments,

and recorded net income of Rs. 19.07 crores in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. In accordance with Ind AS
109, de-recognition of financial assets (loans) transferred
by the subsidiary Company through assignment is based
on the ‘risk and reward’ model and a ‘control’ model. In

including the discount rate and expected remaining
life of the portfolio transferred used by the Company
for computation of excess interest spread receivable,
servicing asset and servicing liability.

case de-recognition criteria are met, the financial assets | o Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of the
assigned are de-recognized and difference between excess interest spread receivable, servicing asset and
carrying value and consideration including the present servicing liability.

value of interest payments that it would not give up
(excess interest spread (EIS) receivable) is recognized as
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year.

J Assessed the disclosures included in the Financial
Statements with respect to de-recognitionin accordance
with the requirements of Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 107.
The subsidiary Company also records a servicing asset
and servicing liability at their fair value for the right
retained for servicing the financial asset for the service
contract and the related costs to be incurred.

The assessment of derecognition criteria being met
involves significant judgements and furthermore the
measurement of the related EIS receivable income,
servicing asset and liability requires significant estimates
to be made with respect to the discount rate, expected
portfolio life, prepayment and foreclosures. Given the
complexity and the volume of such transactions the
same has been considered a key audit matter.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board’s report and Management Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) report, but does not include the
Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s reports thereon. The Board’s report and
Management Discussion & Analysis (MD&A) report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available, compare with the financial statements of subsidiaries to the extent it relates to these entities and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to report that fact.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated Financial
Statements in term of the requirements of the Act, that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
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maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate
internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attentionin ourauditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

. The respective joint auditors obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within
the Group of which the respective joint auditors are the
independent auditors and whose financial information
the respective joint auditors have audited, to express
an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The respective joint auditors are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which the
respective joint auditors are the independent auditors.
For the other entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

The respective joint auditors communicate with those charged
with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
which either of the joint auditors or one of the joint auditors,
jointly with other auditors, are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that are identified
during the audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key



audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a.

We did not audit the financial statements and other
financial information, in respect of fourteen subsidiaries,
whose financial statements include total assets of
Rs.13,486.96 crores as at 31 March 2022, total revenues
of Rs.1,865.87 crores and net cash outflows amounting
to Rs. 1,498.59 crores for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
These financial statements and other financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and
our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We did not audit the financial statements of one
subsidiary, whose un-audited financial statements and
other un-audited financial information reflects total
assets of Rs. Nil as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of
Rs.0.01 crores and net cash outflows amounting to Rs.
Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. These unaudited
financial statements have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary,
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section

Financial Statements

Consolidated

143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial
statements and unaudited other financial information.
In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, these
financial statements and other financial information are
not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
above, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the
above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the
financial statements and other financial information
certified by the Management.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2021 were audited by the predecessor
auditor whose audit report dated May 19, 2021
expressed an unmodified opinion on those Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of
the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports
of the Holding Company and subsidiaries incorporated
in India, we report hereunder the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable:

(xxi) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective
auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated
in India and included in the Group, in the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) reports of such
subsidiary companies included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, are given below*:

S.no | Name CIN Holding Company/ Clause number of
Subsidiary/ Associate/ | the CARO report
Joint Venture which is qualified

or adverse

1. Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited L65922DL2005PLC136029 Holding Company i(c)

iii(c)
iii(d)
xvi(a)

2. Indiabulls Commercial Credit U65923DL2006PLC150632 Subsidiary iii(c)

Limited iii(d)
vii(a)

3. Indiabulls Investment Management | U65100HR2010PLC095390 Subsidiary iii(c)
Limited (formerly known as Xvii
Indiabulls Venture Capital
Management Company Limited)
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S.no | Name CIN Holding Company/ Clause number of
Subsidiary/ Associate/ | the CARO report
Joint Venture which is qualified
or adverse
4, Indiabulls Insurance Advisors U72200DL2002PLC114257 Subsidiary iii(c)
Limited
5. Nilgiri Investmart Services U72200DL2005PLC143654 Subsidiary XVii
Limited (formerly Nilgiri Financial
Consultants Limited)
6. Indiabulls Trustee company Limited | U65991DL2008PLC176626 Subsidiary Xvii
7. Indiabulls Capital Services Limited U65993DL2005PLC134948 Subsidiary iii(c)
8. Indiabulls Holdings Limited U74140DL2010PLC201275 Subsidiary iii(c)
xvii
9. Indiabulls Advisory Services Limited | U51101DL2006PLC155168 Subsidiary iii(c)
10. Ibulls Sales Limited U67100DL2006PLC154666 Subsidiary xvii
11. | Indiabulls Asset Holding Company U74900DL2007PLC164760 Subsidiary Xvii
Limited

b)

c)

d)

e)

* In respect of two trusts and one foreign subsidiary,
which have been considered as subsidiariesinaccordance
with the applicable Indian Accounting Standard as
prescribed, reporting under the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable. Further, in respect
of one subsidiary company, no qualifications or adverse
comments has been reported by its respective auditors
in CARO.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit
and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors
on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31
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f)

g)

h)

March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors
of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiaries in India, none of the directors
of the Group companies incorporated in India is
disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of
companies incorporated in India and included in the
Group, and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 1970of the Act. In respect of the
component, Indiabulls Asset Management Company
Limited, as reported by the component’s auditors,
in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the subsidiary Company has
taken requisite approvals in the extra ordinary general
meeting of its members on May 06, 2022, in respect of
remuneration paid to a Whole Time Director during the
year ended March 31, 2022 which was in excess of the
limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014,
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us and based on the consideration of the report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries incorporated in India and whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, as noted in
the ‘Other matters’ paragraph:



(ii)

(iiif)

(iv)

The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose
the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group,
— Refer Note 34 (a & b) to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Provision has been made in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts — Refer
Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in respect of such items as it relates to the Group.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group
except in the case of holding company, where an
amount of Rs.2,280 which has been deposited
subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2022
on April 27, 2022.

(@) On the basis of the representations
received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on 31 March 2022
and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiaries incorporated in India,
whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Holding Company or
any such subsidiaries to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities  (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Holding Company or any of such

For S.N. Dhawan & CO.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 000050N/ N500045

Rahul Singhal

Partner

Membership No.: 096570
UDIN: 22096570AJJZ)JW8648

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 20, 2022
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subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) On the basis of the representations
received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on 31 March 2022
and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiaries incorporated in India,
whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company
or any of such subsidiaries from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that
have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances
performed by us and that performed by
the auditors of the subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our
or other auditors’ notice that has caused
us or other auditors to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material
misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid for
previous year by the Holding Company is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act.

For Arora & Choudhary Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s registration No. 003870N

Vijay K Choudhary

Partner

Membership No. 081843
UDIN: 22081843AJIPOK6215

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 20, 2022
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Annexure A

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which are
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included
in the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial control with reference
to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Group’s business, including
adherence to the respective group’s policies, the safeguarding
of the Group’s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ the ICAI”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to the consolidated financial statementsincluded
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to the consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
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on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matter(s) paragraph below
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group, as
aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to
Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with

reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to the consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to the consolidated financial statements were operating



effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial
control with reference to the consolidated financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.N. Dhawan & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 000050N/ N500045

Rahul Singhal

Partner

Membership No.: 096570
UDIN: 22096570AJJZJW8648

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 20, 2022
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in so
far as it relates to twelve subsidiaries, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of
the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For Arora & Choudhary Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s registration No. 003870N

Vijay K Choudhary

Partner

Membership No. 081843
UDIN: 22081843AJIPOK6215

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 20, 2022
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited as at 31 March 2022

(All amount inX in Crore, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note As 3 As at
No. - 0 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 7,986.04 13,124.16
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,666.81 3,879.72
Derivative financial instruments 7 149.12 154.13
Receivables
i)  Trade Receivables 8 9.26 23.79
ii)  Other Receivables - -
Loans 9 59,950.19 65,407.25
Investments 10 5,545.62 6,146.01
Other financial assets 11 1,034.27 1,181.02
Total Financial assets 76,341.31 89,916.08
Non- Financial Assets
Current tax assets (net) 1,161.83 583.82
Deferred tax assets (net) 32 555.55 670.78
Property, plant and equipment 12 67.02 82.80
Goodwill on Consolidation 57.83 57.83
Other Intangible assets 12 28.26 36.14
Right-of-use Assets 43 173.99 118.64
Other Non- Financial Assets 13 605.98 387.60
Assets Held for Sale 33(x) 2,981.55 1,385.34
Total Non-Financial assets 5,632.01 3,322.95
Total Assets 81,973.32 93,239.03
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 7 122.71 289.22
Payables
(I) Trade Payables 14
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 0.66 1.22
small enterprises
Debt Securities 15 23,665.34 30,219.07
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 16 33,067.99 33,908.25
Subordinated liabilities 17 4,626.03 4,678.11
Other financial liabilities 18 2,880.22 7,287.16
Total Financial Liabilities 64,362.95 76,383.03
Non-Financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 151.76 144.55
Provisions 19 135.09 124.80
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 32 0.32 1.16
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 20 649.14 451.63
Total Non-Financial Liabilities 936.31 722.14
Equity
Equity share capital 21 89.11 89.07
Other equity 22 16,584.95 16,044.79
Total Equity 16,674.06 16,133.86
Total Liabilities and Equity 81,973.32 93,239.03
The accompanying Notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report of even date attached
For S. N. Dhawan & CO LLP For Arora & Choudhary Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 000050N/N500045 Firm Registration No. 003870N
Rahul Singhal Vijay K Choudhary Gagan Banga Ashwini Omprakash Kumar
Partner Partner Vice Chairman / Managing Director & CEO Whole Time Director
Membership Number: 096570 Membership No. 081843 DIN : 00010894 DIN : 03341114
Gurugram New Delhi Mumbai Mumbai
Mukesh Garg Amit Jain
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
New Delhi Gurugram
May 20, 2022 May 20, 2022 May 20, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amount in X in Crore, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note ear ended Year ended
No. a 0 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 23 8,582.53 9,721.96
Dividend Income 24 - 0.17
Fees and commission Income 25 80.91 94.02
Net gain on fair value changes 26 173.25 -
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost 146.62 111.27
category
Total revenue from operations 8,983.31 9,927.42
Other Income 27 10.59 102.70
Total Income 8,993.90 10,030.12
Expenses
Finance Costs 28 6,241.62 6,939.38
Net loss on fair value changes 26 - 36.95
Impairment on financial instruments 29 463.72 919.89
Employee Benefits Expenses 30 468.42 252.54
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 12 & 43(c) 77.37 96.70
Other expenses 31 187.00 223.00
Total Expenses 7,438.13 8,468.46
Profit before tax 1,555.77 1,561.66
Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 32 62.48 62.84
(2) Deferred Tax Charge 32 315.55 297.23
Profit for the year attributable to the Shareholders of the Company 1,177.74 1,201.59

Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of profit or loss

(@) Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan 1.46 13.19
(b) S}g)i;:g)/ (Loss) on equity instrument designated at FVOC|Refer Note 70.13 (685.19)
(ii)  Income tax impact on above (11.82) 153.45
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to the statement of profit or loss
(a) Derivative instruments in Cash flow hedge relationship 80.99 (244.82)
(ii)  Income tax impact on above (20.38) 61.62
Total Other comprehensive Income / (loss) (A+B) 120.38 (701.75)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,298.12 499.84
Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 38 26.42 27.72
Diluted (Rs.) 38 26.34 27.72
Nominal value per share (Rs.) 2.00 2.00

The accompanying Notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements
In terms of our report of even date attached

For S. N. Dhawan & CO LLP For Arora & Choudhary Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 000050N/N500045 Firm Registration No. 003870N

Rahul Singhal Vijay K Choudhary Gagan Banga Ashwini Omprakash Kumar
Partner Partner Vice Chairman / Managing Director & CEO Whole Time Director
Membership Number: 096570 Membership No. 081843 DIN : 00010894 DIN : 03341114
Gurugram New Delhi Mumbai Mumbai

Mukesh Garg Amit Jain

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

New Delhi Gurugram
May 20, 2022 May 20, 2022 May 20, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited for the Year ended March 31, 2022

(All amount in X in Crore, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

A

150

Cash flows from operating activities :

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Employee Stock Compensation

Change in Provision for Gratuity, Compensated Absences and
Superannuation Expense

Impairment on Financial Instruments (Including Bad debt)

Interest Income

Dividend Income

Loss / (Profit) on Lease termination

Interest Expense

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Provision for Diminution in value of Investment

Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Unrealised loss on valuation of Investments

Operating Loss before working capital changes
Working Capital Changes

Trade Receivables, Other Financial and non Financial Assets

Loans

Trade Payables, other financial and non Financial Liabilities
Net Cash (used in) / from operations

Interest received on loans

Interest paid on borrowings

Income taxes paid (Net)

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities :

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
Sale of Property, plant and equipment

Decrease / (Increase) in Capital Advances

Proceeds from / (Investments in) deposit accounts

(Purchase) / Sale of Investments (Net)

Dividend Received

Interest received on Investments

Investments in Subsidiary / Other Investments

Net cash flow from investing activities

ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

Year ended
March 31, 2021

1,555.77 1,561.66
(9.12) (7.09)
9.63 (58.36)
1,138.86 1,264.14
(8,582.52) (9,721.96)
- (0.17)

0.42 (8.61)
5,305.14 6,472.91
77.37 96.70

- (636.61)

0.02 3.48
30.87 23.92
(473.56) (1,009.99)
32.00 615.59
3,648.24 4,500.82
(3,978.31) 668.11
(771.63) 4,774.53
7,647.67 8,438.41
(5,629.69) (6,404.41)
(589.17) 279.97
657.18 7,088.50
(20.04) (34.35)
1.25 5.38
26.91 (13.32)
2,212.91 (2,405.66)
(1,046.57) 5,200.31
- 0.17

474.48 350.56
1,648.94 3,103.09




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

of Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited for the Year ended March 31, 2022

(All amount inX in Crore, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Financial Statements

Consolidated

ded Year ended
0 March 31, 2021
C Cash flows from financing activities :
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share (Including Securities Premium) 0.22 662.31
Distribution of Equity Dividends 15.16 (416.62)
Repayment of loans (Net) (524.73) (7,783.84)
Repayment of Secured Debentures (including Conversion) (Net) (6,479.85) (2,508.26)
Repayment of Subordinated Debt (Net) (64.09) -
Payment of Lease liabilities (46.95) (49.79)
Repayment of Working capital loans (Net) (344.00) (535.82)
Net cash used in financing activities (7,444.24) (10,632.02)
D Net Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (5,138.12) (440.43)
E Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 13,124.16 13,564.59
F Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D + E)®Refer Note5) 7,986.04 13,124.16
The accompanying Notes are integral part of the consolidated financial statements
Notes:
1. The above Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting
Standard (IndAS) - 7 on 'Statement of Cash Flows'.
2 For disclosure of investing and financing activity that do not require cash and cash equivalent(efer note 33(v).
In terms of our report of even date attached
For S. N. Dhawan & CO LLP For Arora & Choudhary Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. 000050N/N500045 Firm Registration No. 003870N

Vice Chairman / Managing Director & CEO

Rah